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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders,

In 2007, Galaxy Entertainment Group Limited {” Galaxy” or the "Group”) continued to deliver strong results. The Gaming and
Entertainment Division has further strengthened Galaxy's position in the Macau market and laid a solid foundation for the
business going forward. The Construction Materials Division has achieved significant improvements, both in terms of growth
and profitability, under challenging market conditions, especially in mainland China.

For the year ended 31st December 2007, revenue from Galaxy’s Gaming and Entertainment Division was HK$11,481 million,
representing a 239% growth from the previous year,

NOTEWORTHY ACCOMPLISHMENTS

The partnership with international private equity firm, Permira Funds, has strengthened the competitiveness of Galaxy.

In October 2007, we concluded the negotiation for Permira Funds to become a 20% shareholder of the Group. The
transaction, which was completed in November, is a vote of confidence from a leading member of the international
investment community to Galaxy in recognition of its prospects, business philosophy and'strategy, and capable management
{eam. Galaxy is also very pleased to form strategic partnership with this expert in the global gaming sector and consumer
market expert. Riding on their expertise and network of premium international brands, the Group is confident of injecting
innovative concepts into Galaxy mega resort, which will in turn significantly enhance Galaxy's overall competitiveness. The
equity injection from the transaction has substantially strengthened the capital base and greatly enhanced the financing
capability and flexibility of the Group.

The outstanding product quality and standard of service at StarWorld Hotel has not gone unnoticed. In November 2007,
StarWorld was honored with the 5-star Diamond Award from the American Academy of Hospitality Sciences — renowned
for awarding excellence in the global travel and luxury services sector. Starworld achieved this award in its first full year of
operation and is the only hotel to qualify for this award in Macau. In January 2008, StarWorld Hotel also achieved the “High-
Flyer Award” by the renowned Hong Kong Business Magazine. In March 2008, StarWorld was further honored with the
award of “The TOP 10 City-Nova Hotels of China”.

THE REMARKABLE EXPANSION OF THE MACAU MARKET

Tourism in Macau continues to enjoy strong growth in 2007 with the number of visitors increased by 23% to 27 million. The
majority of the visitors come from Mainland China (55%) and about 30% from Hong Kong. The gaming sector experienced
an even more remarkable expansion with gross gaming revenue increased by 46% to MOP83.8 billion. Macau overtook Las
Vegas in gaming revenue in 2007 and is today the biggest gaming center in the world.

Galaxy is well positioned in this fast growing market with our ftagship — Starworld Hotel and Casino in the Peninsula gaming
hub and the Galaxy mega resort being developed in the Cotal entertainment hub. The Group is the only operator presently
that will have a flagship property in both key locations. The Group is confident that Galaxy mega resort, when opened, will
considerably enhance its revenue generating capability and competitiveness, setting it apart from its industry peers in the
competitive market. Furthermore, the Group’s {lexibility to continue to roll out new offerings is ensured by the land bank in
Cotai.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

GALAXY MEGA RESORT — MYSTICAL OASIS

With its finger on the pulse of the market, the Group has planned carefully the positioning and long term development
direction of Galaxy mega resort, aiming to make it the most competitive service and entertainment facility. As always, the
Group leverages on the management team’s in-depth understanding of the Asian and Chinese culture in developing Galaxy
mega resort; and takes full advantages of our project team’s local knowledge and experience in construction management.
Our management is conscientious of the principle of developing world-class quality products as well as the importance of
delivering satisfactory return on investment.

In view of the strong surge of the Macau gaming market in 2007, the gaming capacity in Galaxy mega resort, especially for
the VIP business, has been scaled-up to accommodate the expanded demand.

The Galaxy mega resort is presently scheduled to open in mid 2009. The mega resort themed a Mystical Oasis will be a fully
integrated complex of entertainment, leisure and gaming facilities with enchanting charisma promising magical adventures to
its guests.

The Group is pleased to conclude negotiations and partner with an up-market Japanese hotel group Okura Hotels and
Resorts. Galaxy and Okura share a lot of common ideology, including a high expectation for Asian-standard service quality
and hospitality. Okura will manage one of the three hotels in Galaxy mega resort which will comprise the initial anchor cluster
for the whole 15 million square feet development in Cotai.

THE HUMAN FACTOR

In 2007, the openings of new casinos in the market continued to put pressure on staff recruitment and training. The Group
has established our own Centre of Excellence for Casina Training. The facility has been a success in producing an adequate
number of well trained gaming staff of world-class standard for Galaxy's casinos and contributing to the quality service
standard.

Galaxy is very pleased to have Mr. Robert Drake, who has extensive finance and advisory experience in the gaming industry,
joining us as the Group Chief Financial Officer. Mr. Drake worked previously with Harrah's Entertainment in Las Vegas where
he most recently served as Vice President, Finance for the Western Division which includes their extensive Nevada operations.

The Group recruited throughout the year many experienced and high calibre gaming veterans as well as professionals in

other important corporate functions such as project development, information systems and technology, legal, and strategic
marketing to broaden and strengthen the existing management team.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Management fully appreciates the high standard of corporate governance and transparency expected from a world-class
company. The Group conscientiously reviews its internal control and compliance standards to ensure the appropriate best
practices are adopted.

The Group welcomed the appointment of Dr. Martin Clarke and Mr. Guido Pzolo Gamucci as nan-executive Directors of the
Company in November 2007 and believes that their appaintment will bring substantial management expertise and business
experience to support the growth of business and the realization of our established vision to be a world-class company and a
leading Asian-based gaming and entertainment group.

I would also like to pay tribute to our retiring Directors. Mr. Chan Kai Nang will retire as executive Director and the Managing
Director of the Construction Materials Division on 1st May 2008. Dr. Charles Cheung Wai Bun will retire as independent
non-executive Director and will not seek for re-election at our Annual General Meeting on 19th June 2008. On behalf of
the Board, | extend my sincere appredciation to both of them for their continuous efforts and contributions to the Group. |
also congratulate Mr. Joseph Chee Ying Keung on his appointment as the Managing Director of the Construction Materials
Division with effect from 15t May 2008,

CLOSING REMARKS

2007 has been a fruitful year for the Group, we have received recognitions for our accomplishments, collected valuable
experience with another year of operation, especially from our own flagship property — Starworld, and competed successfully
with the other concession holders. To face the intense competition and challenge in 2008 and perform, the Group must build
on its accomplishments — maintaining its momentum in the VIP sector and making further in-roads into the mass market.
Our focus in 2008 is to make StarWorld an even more effective and efficient revenue driver for the Group until Galaxy mega
resort comes into operation. While the importance of the City Club casinos has been taken over by StarWorld, they are still
delivering valuable market share and contributing to the overall profitability of the Group.

tn closing, | would tike to take this opportunity to extend my heartfelt appreciation to my fellow Directors and dedicated
staff for their tireless efforts to achieve the mission for Galaxy to become the leading Asian-based gaming, leisure and
entertainment group. | look forward to working with them to build on the success we achieved in 2007 and work diligently
and proactively in face of the increasingly competitive market environment and accomplish even greater success for the
Group in 2008 and beyond.

Dr. Lui Che Woo, GBS, MBE, J7 LLD, D5Sc, DBA
Chairman

Hong Kong, 18th April 2008
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

tAll amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars unfess otherwise stated)

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

Year 2007 was a productive year for Galaxy Entertainment Group as we defivered a solid financial performance and continued
to successfully execute our corporate strategy of becoming a leading player in Macau, the world's largest gaming market.
StarWorld Hotel & Casino led the Gaming and Entertainment Division where it reported healthy financial results for its first
full year of operation. The development of the Galaxy mega resort, the key driver of the next phase of the Groups growth
strategy, has advanced substantially. City Club casinos continued to generate a profitable stream of revenue for the Division in
an increasingly more competitive market. Finally, the solid results of the Construction Materials Division helped to propel the
Group to new heights.

Permira Funds — Our New Strategic Shareholder

In November 2007, Permira Funds, one of the world’s leading private equity groups, invested US$840 million in exchange for
a 20% ownership stake in the Group. We are especially proud of this strategic relationship which reaffirms our belief in the
vision for the Group. Qur relationship with Permira not only significantly improves our capital position but will enhance our
competitiveness by leveraging Permira‘s proven expertise in the global consumer and gaming sectors.

Group Financial Results

Revenue and profit attributable to shareholders for the year ended 31st December 2007 was $13,035 million and a loss of $466
million respectively, as compared to revenue of $4,669 million and a loss of $1,532 million for the year ended 31st December
2006. The Group's revenue was significantly higher than that of last year reflecting the significant expansion in the Gaming
and Entertainment operations, with the opening of 4 more casinos in Macau during the year of 20086, including the Group’s
flagship, StarWorld.

The Group’s revenue for the first half of 2007 was $6,332 million and for the second half was $6,703 million, up 6%.
Starworld's revenue for the first half was $3,639 million, and for the second half was $4,372 million, up 20%.

For the year ended 31st December 2007, the Group’s earnings before interest expense, tax, depreciation and amortisation
(EBITDA) was $1,461 million, up from $437 million for the previous year, an increase of 234%.

This strong result in 2007 reflects the continued solid performance of all operating divisions and in particular strong revenue
gains and improved efficiencies from Starworld over the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

{All amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated)

The Group's accounting loss for the year was reported after:

. Non-cash depreciation and amortisation charges of $1,413 million, including the $998 million amortisation of the
intangible asset arising from the acquisition of the Macau operation in 2005.

»  $557 miliion in finance charges.

. Non-recurring items of $39 million which mainly include the realised and unrealised gains on investments, impairment
losses of assets, gain on partial disposal of jointly controlled entities and pre-opening expenses related to the
construction of the Galaxy mega resort, including staff costs, training, launch, marketing and branding expenses.

Set out below is the segmental analysis of the Group's operating result for the year ended 31st December 2007.

EBITDA (EXCLUDING NON-RECURRING ITEMS AND AFTER INTEREST INCOME
ALLOCATION)

GaminglandGonstuuction

Ententainmen N A terials RO07 2005
HIZE ™ HIES ™ HIE ™ RSt HIKG ™
Revenue 11,481 1,554 — 13,035 4,669
Operating {loss¥/profit (203} 75 209 81 {1,032)
Share of profits of
jointly controlled entities — 6 — 6 31
Depreciation and amortisation 1,287 123 3 1,413 1,190
Non-recurring items 22 7 (68) (39) 248
EBITDA {excluding non-recurring items} 1,106 2N 144 1,461 437
Interest income allocation 117 8 (125) — —
EBITDA {excluding non-recurring items and
after interest income allocation) 1,223 219 19 1,461 437
TURNOVER BY DIVISION
2007 2006 2007 2006

HKS$'000 HK$ 000

m Gaming and
entertainment 11,481,227 3,388,767
g Construction matenals 1,554,212 1,280,728

13,035,439 4,669,495
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EMPLOYMENT OF TOTAL ASSETS

2007 2006
HK$°000  HK$'000

m Gaming and

entertainment 20,590,530 20,400,561
m Construction materials 2,365,141 2,172,168
1 Corporate office 575,158 853,072

m Cash and bank balances 8,230,362 5,783,197

31,761,191 29,208,998

2007

TURNOVER BY GEOGRAPHICAL SPREAD

2007 2006
HK$'000  HK$'COO

m Macau 11,756,085 3,620,336
m Hong Kong 686,311 516,380
O Mainland 593,043 532,779

13,035,439 4,669,485

2007

5% 0%
%

\

2006

TOTAL ASSETS BY GEOGRAPHICAL SPREAD

2007 2006
HK$'000  HK$'000

m Macau 24,698,271 25,077,008
m Hong Kong 5,694,789 2,860,182
o Mainland 1,368,131 1,271,808

31,761,191 25,208,298

2007

% ew

A

2006

Annual Repart 2007

09




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

{All amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless aotherwise stated)

GAMING AND ENTERTAINMENT DIVISION
Overview

Macau gaming market continued to grow at an astounding 47% from $55 billion to $81 billion in 2007 which surpassed Las
Vegas to emerge as the largest gaming market in the world. Every segment of the gaming market grew last year including
the VIP market with 52%, mass market with 33% and slot machines with 75% for the year.

Galaxy's casinos generated net gaming revenues of $14.7 billion for the year (of which $11.5 billion is recognised in the
statutory accounts due to the differing agreements with the City Cfub casinos’ service providers).

StarWorld

2007 was the first full year of operations at StarWorld. During the year, a3 number of enhancement and additions were made
to the property. These included: increasing the number of mass tables on the popular Level One gaming floor by 40% from
85 tables to 122 tables, adding S additional exclusive VIP gaming rooms, taking the total number of VIP tables from 32 in
January to 69 at year end, increasing the number of slot machines on offer from 335 to 502, opening of the very popular
high limit premium play Jinmen Room where we have achieved net win per table per day 100% above the net wins on the
rmass gaming floors, and the launch of Starworld Ballroom and banquet areas on level 8.

Competition has intensified throughout 2007 and in particular in the second half of 2007 which experienced the opening of
a number of new casinos and the capacity expansion of a number of existing casinos. In 2007, the total number of gaming
tables increased by 58% from 2,762 to 4,375 and the number of slot machines increased by 103% from 6,546 to 13,267
machines.

In spite of this significant increased competition, StarWorld continued to produce a 36% return on investment for the
shareholders. For the year ended 31st December 2007, StarWorld generated total revenues of $8,011 million and earned an
EBITDA of $1,115 million, with an EBITDA margin of 14%.

Gaming results far StarWaorld's three distinct gaming segments were as follows:

*  VIP gaming revenue for the year was $6,027 million. VIP turnover was $203.4 billion with a win percentage of 3.0%,
which was over the expected range of 2.7% to 2.9%. Win per table per day continues to grow and for the fourth
quarter averaged $329,000 with a win rate of 3.3%.

. Mass table games revenue for the year was $1,543 million. Table games drop was $9.9 billien with a win percentage
of 15.6%. StarWorld's mass gaming revenues increased during the fourth quarter which together with improving
operational efficiencies and a hold percentage of 15% resulted in significant improvement in the contribution from
StarWorld’s mass gaming operations. Win per table per day continues to improve and averaged over $33,000 for the
fourth quarter of 2007.

. Slot machine revenue for the year was $190 million. The slot machine win per unit per day for the fourth quarter
averaged over $1,000 with an average number of 476 slot machines and this result was achieved after the number of

slot machines was increased by 8% from 464 to 502 machines during the quarter.

. Tips revenue for the year was $17 million.
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VIP gaming accounted for 77.7% of total gaming revenues for the year, with mass {(excluding Jinmen) contributing 16.5%,
Jinmen 3.4% and slots 2.4%. By the fourth quarter this segmentation was as follows, VIP 81.0%, mass (excluding Jinmen)
11.8%, Jinmen 4.9% and slots 2.3%.

StarWorld's non-gaming revenues for the year were $234 million. The revenue for the first half of the year was $96 million
and this increased to $138 million in the second half of the year.

Official Macau Government statistics indicate that the level of occupancy for 5 star hotels in Macau was 70.2% in January
2007, increasing to 82.2% by December, While the market's average occupancy rate for the year was 75.3%, StarWorld
achieved a significantly higher than market occupancy rate of 83.4% for the full year.

The Ballroom was opened on 29 November 2007 and its first event was StarWorld’s inaugural anniversary. Since then,
numerous events have been held in the facility throughout December. We expect this venue to provide a significant increase
in our banguet revenue in 2008 and will also be utilized as a venue for player events as part of our ongoing player acquisition,
retention and loyalty program. ?

Galaxy Mega Resort

Mystical Oasis

Galaxy mega resort will offer a truly unique and different product to the rapidly growing Macau market. The theme of Galaxy
mega resort is a Mystical Oasis; it truly will be a paradise oasis of running water and lush tropical trees. On the roof of the
casino will be one of the warld’s largest lagoon wave pools measuring 300 feet by 350 feet with two foot beach waves.

The golden external glass curtain walls will radiant wealth and when combined with lush oasis of water and trees will be an
irresistible attraction to all visitors of Macau.

The casino portion of the resort will be one of the largest casinos in the world and the sheer scale of the casino will certainly
leave a lasting impression on all visitors. A number of unigue features is being incorporated into the casino podium including
a brilliant laser light citadel and a fire and water extravaganza.

We believe that Galaxy mega resort truly will be a Mystical Qasis.

Okura Hotel partnership

We are delighted to confirm that the world famous Japanese hotel group, Okura Hotels has entered into an agreement to
manage a 400 room hotel within the second hotel tower. Okura Hotels are the number one rated hotels in both Japan and
Korea and interestingly in 2007, visitor arrivals to Macau from Japan and Korea grew 36% and 39%, respectively.

We expect to be in a position to announce an additional hotel partner in the very near future.

Development Update

In response to the robust growth of the Macau gaming market, Galaxy mega resort is reconfigured and expanded to have an
additional hotel tower and a bigger gaming podium to meet the market demand. The construction of Galaxy mega resort is
proceeding along its critical construction path. We wish to reinforce that Area | of Galaxy mega resort is approximately a 5
million square feet development, making this entertainment complex one of the largest developments in all of Macau.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

{All amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated)

The first hotel tower has been topped out. The gold glass curtain wall is presently being fitted and it is already 60% complete,
the fitting out of the 1,500 hatel rooms and suites will commence in July 2008,

The massive Casino podium superstructure has practically completed and the fitting out of the Casing interior will commence
in July 2008. :

The second tower, which will house two hotels, commenced construction in January 2008 and we are currently adding a
floor to the superstructure every & days. We expect to top out the superstructure in November 2008, The fitting of the glass
curtain wall will commence in August 2008 and to speed the canstruction process, we will simultaneously fit the glass curtain
wall on the lower levels of the tower as we are adding superstructure levels ta the top of the tower. Following rapidly behind
the glass curtain wall, we will be fitting the services which commence in September 2008.

We will open Hotel Tower One and the Casino in mid 2009 and the second Hotel Tower is scheduled to open late 2009.

Project Funding

Galaxy is in a very comfortable position in regard to the funding of the Galaxy mega resort. The construction, fit out and land
costs of Area | of the project, are estimated at approximately $10 billion. Up to the end of 2007, we have already invested
approximately $2 billion with an additional $8 biflion still to spend. With the cash holdings in the bank as at 31st December
2007 of approximately $8.3 billion and expected cash to be generated from operation, the construction of Galaxy mega
resort is fully funded.

Galaxy Cotai Land

Qur Cotai Land Bank continues to represent a critical component of our long term development strategy. A recent land sale
transaction confirms the fact that Galaxy has a very valuable asset on hand which is not yet recorded on the balance sheet.
In January 2008, one million square feet of Gross Floor Area on Catai at a price of $1,667 per square foot was sold in the
market. In regard to Galaxy, approximately 5,000,000 square feet out of a total Gross Floor Area of 15,200,000 square feet is
presently under construction, leaving 10,200,000 square feet as a land bank.

Galaxy’'s City Club Casinos

Galaxy's City Club casinos have continued to perform well in an increasingly competitive environment. City Club casinos’
focus is predominately on the VIP gaming market and has proven to be the correct strategic decision.

City Club casinos’ gaming revenues for the year ended 31st December 2007 were $7.0 billion (of which $3.5 billion is
recognised in Galaxy's statutory accounts due to the differing agreements with the City Club casinos’ service providers). In
spite of keen competition from new properties, the City Club casinos captured 9% of the Macau gaming market for the year,
with strong VIP gaming revenues and innovative mass gaming products. City Club casinos’ EBITDA for the year was $175
million.

The City Club casinos operate 260 gaming tables and 510 slot machines. We believe that whilst Starworld is cur main profit
driver, the City Club casinos will continue to provide a valuable complimentary service to selected VIP clientele.
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USGAAP Comparisons

In comparing our Gaming and Entertainment Division's results to those of US carporations whose results are prepared under
generally accepted accounting principles in the United States (*USGAAP"), it should be noted that gross gaming revenues,
presented under USGAAP, are reduced by commissions and discounts paid to players, to arrive at net gaming revenues. An
adjusted EBITDA margin would then be calculated based on these reduced net gaming revenues, resulting in a significantly
higher EBITD'A margin than that calculated under Hong Kong accounting standards. Galaxy complies with Hong Kong
accounting standards. If calculated under USGAAP, StarWorld's 2007 EBITDA margin would be approximately 23%, as
compared to Hong Kong GAAP which would give an EBITDA margin calculation of 14%.

Corporate Costs

During the year, the Group incurred net corporate costs of $214 million, offset by $165 million of interest income, reducing
EBITDA by $49 million.

Total interest expense {for the year was $557 million of which $112 million was non-cash imputed interest expense on the
US$240 million convertible notes issued in December 2006.

CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS DIVISION

2007 was a year of considerable success, with the Group’s construction materials business again delivering a strong
performance. Sales and profit exceeded last vear, the division’s revenues were $1,554 million and it contributed $219 million
to the Group's EBITDA. Once again, the benefit of management's continuing use of its centralised offshore procurement
platform to achieve diverse, stable and cost-effective supply of construction materials, together with the strategic investments
in the past few years, resulted in higher profit.

The economic backdrop to the year was on balance reasonable, although as always it varied somewhat by region and
markets. The benefits of the balanced spread of operations across gecgraphic regions and construction sectors were again
demonstrated in these results.

Hong Kong and Macau

In the past year, the demand for construction materials in Hong Kong has gradually improved as more construction warks
were released to the market, In particular the ready mixed concrete operation in Hong Kong achieved higher sales volume
and delivered improved profit contribution for the year. The recent policy address by the Chief Executive indicated that the
government wifl implement some sizeable infrastructural projects such as Shatin to Central Link, new Government Head
quarters and the East Kowloon development, over the next few years. In addition the Central Government has now approved
the construction of the Hong Kong, Macau, Zhuhai bridge which we understand will on completion, be the longest bridge
in the world, linking among Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland China. These infrastructure projects will significantly stimulate
the construction materials market; the division is strategically well positioned to capitalise on the increasing market demand
and further consclidate its position as a leading supplier of quality construction materials.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

(All amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated)

The long-term rehabilitation contracts with the Hong Kong SAR Government at Anderson Road Quarry and Lam Tei Quarry
continue to provide the division with secured supplies of aggregates in strategically beneficially locations. Completing the
integration of the acquired Tarmac asphalt, surfacing, and road marking business during the year, together with continued
facus on developing new products, particularly recycled materials, ensures that the division is now a fully integrated
construction materials supplier offering our customers a good range of material products and services unrivaled in Hong
Kong.

In Macau, the demand for construction materials remains strong and we have further improved our production efficiency
and capadity to cope with the increasing market demand. The operation continued to provide good profit contribution to the
division during the year.

Mainland

The trading environment posed particular challenges, not least of which was the continuing austerity measures imposed
by Central Government to cool the overheated economy in most of the larger cities, which have reduced the fevel of
construction activities in those markets. Competition in the market also intensified which combined with increases in raw
material costs applied downward pressure on operating margins. Nevertheless, the division has continued to make progress
by an unrelenting focus on cost saving programs and improving operating efficiency, enabling the division to enhance its
market competitiveness,

Our joint ventures with leading steel producers for the manufacture and sale of granulated blast-furnace slag (GGBFS) in the
Mainland continue to generate good profit contribution for the Group. Further expansion in GGBFS production facilities is in
progress and setting up of new joint ventures is being considered to further strengthen and consolidate the Group's position
as a leading slag producer in the Mainland.

In respect of the division's cement joint ventures in Yunnan Province, the investments are progressing as planned, with the
plant in Baoshan commencing commercial production in January 2008. A third cement plant in Shizong, Qujing, commenced
construction during the year and is expected to commence commercial operation in the second half of 2008. Together the
combined production facilities in Anning, Baoshan and Shizong will have an installed cement production capacity of five
million tonnes per year. With further investments under consideration in other cities, these developments in total underline
the division’s commitment to become one of the leading cement producers in the growing regional market, and will
contribute greatly to the future progress and profitability of the division.
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GROUP OUTLOOK FOR 2008

We are highty confident that the Group is well positioned to execute its long term strategy of providing a high quality gaming
and resort experience for our valued customers while delivering strong returns to our shareholders. 2007 was a successful
year for the Group. We believe that the Macau market will continue to evolve at a rapid pace in 2008 as the market absorbs
the impact of recent and future new properties and competition intensifies across all business segments including areas such
as VIP gaming. We are prepared to address these challenges and lock forward to another rewarding year in 2008 in our core
operations as well as developing the Galaxy mega resort.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The financial position of the Group has remained strong during the year. The shareholders’ funds as at 31st December 2007
was $18,407 million, an increase of approximately 35% over that as at 31st December 2006 of $13,633 million while the
Group’s total assets employed increased to $31,761 million as compared to $29,20% million as at 31st December 2006,

The Group continues to maintain a strong cash position. As at 31st December 2007, total cash and bank balances were $8,230
million as compared to $5,783 million as at 31st December 2006. The Group’s total indebtedness was $6,506 million as at
315t December 2007 as compared to $8,973 million as at 31st December 2006. The Group was in net cash as at end of year
2007, as compared 1o a gearing ratio of 14% as at 315t December 2006.

The total indebtedness of the Group mainly comprises bank loans, guaranteed notes, convertible notes and other obligations
which are largely denominated in Hong Kong Dollar and United States Dollar. The Group’s borrowings are closely monitcred

to ensure a smooth repayment schedule to maturity.

The Group's liquidity position remains strong and the Group is confident that sufficient resources could be secured to meet its
commitments, working capital requirements and future assets acquisitions.

SOURCES OF FUNDING

2007 2006

HKS$'000  HK$'000
A Share capital 393,564 329,612 2007 2006
8 Capital reserve 16,674,435 11,461,424
C Revenue reserve 1,121,029 1,587,229 Hom BN Hitoss 2t
D Share option reserve 28,762 36,927
£ Other reserves 188,862 217,607
F  Minority interests 531,791 490,700 s
G Non-current borrowings 6,010,571 8,439,965 \‘///7 o
H Other non-current liabilities 2,394,653 2,471,848 o ciw

Fix%)
E (1 © (6%
Do)

27,343,667 25,035,312
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

{All amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise stated)

TREASURY POLICY

The Group centinues to adopt a conservative treasury policy with all bank deposits in either Hong Kong Dollar, United States
Doltar or in the local currencies of the operating subsidiaries, keeping a minimum exposure to foreign exchange risks. All of
the Group's borrowings are in either Hong Kong Daliar, United States Dollar or Renminbi. Forward foreign exchange contracts
are utilised when suitable opportunities arise and when considered appropriate, to hedge against foreign exchange exposure.
The Group has engaged in the use of cross currency swaps to reduce the Group’s exposure in foreign currency fluctuations,
which are considered necessary for the Group’s treasury management activities.

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

Leasehold land with net book values of $222 million (2006: $217 million} and bank deposits of $50 million (2006: $259
million} have been pledged to secure banking facilities.

GUARANTEES

The Company has executed guarantees in favour of banks in respect of facilities granted to subsidiaries amounting to $627
million (2006: $210 million), of which $307 millicn (2006: $175 million) have been utilised.

The Group has executed guarantees in favour of a bank in respect of facilities granted to an associated company amounting
to $9 million (2006 $9 million). At 31st December 2007, facilities utilised amounted to $9 million (2006: $9 million).

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31st December 2007, the Group, excluding associated companies and jointly controlled entities, employed around 8,400
employees in Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland China. Employee costs, excluding Directors’ emoluments, amounted to $1,377
million.

REMUNERATON POLICY

The objective of the Group’s remuneration palicy is to attract, motivate and retain talented employees to achieve the Group’s
long-term corporate goals and objectives. To this end, the Group is committed to remunerating its employees in a manner
that is market competitive, consistent with good industry practices as well as meeting the interests of shareholders.

The Group's remuneration structure for its employees comprises fixed compensation, performance-based variable incentive
and long-term incentive. The overall remuneration arrangements are fair and justified, prudent and subject to regular review.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Group operates a share option scheme for its employees. It serves to attract, motivate and retain employees to work for
the Group long term and to better align the interests of the employees with the shareholders’ interests. The number of share
options granted to the eligible employees is determined with reference to the value of share options, market positioning, job
seniority and the individual contribution to the Group.
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TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT

The Group sees the staff as the most valuable asset, as none of our achievements would have been possible without the
talents and contributions of each individual employee. We are committed to the development and growth of all employees
and consider training and development a life-long process. We offer ongoing personal and professianal developmeni
opportunities to employees beginning with our new hire orientation program and continuing with the delivery of training
programs designed to assist our employees in achieving competency and professionalism in their jobs, and to fortify a
continuous learning and improvement corporate culture.

Our training and development programs focus on the key elements that are critical to long term success of the Group:

1. Internal Capacity Building — creating a corporate-wide training and development team capable to deliver core
training programs. In addition, our existing training facilities for gaming staff will be renovated to establish a Centre of
Excellence for the Group.

2. Corporate Culture: Vision, Mission and Values — development, communication and integration of a Corporate
Vision, Mission and Values.

3.  Program Development and Customization — four primary areas of focus:

A,

Core Programs with a focus on our orientation program, development of a Galaxy service excellence program,
identification and prioritization of training on key competencies that drive employee performance.

Leadership Development with a focus on the delivery of a foundational supervisory/management skills
program, development of a three phase internship, fellowship, management trainee program and creation of
leadership development initiatives customized to meet the perscnal and professional learning needs of both
individuals and small groups.

Organizational Effectiveness with a focus on the creation of a succession management program, set up of a
common framework for standard operating procedures and design of a quality assurance program to measure
and drive continuous improvement of our guest service initiatives.

Cotai Pre-opening Plan with a focus on the development of core curriculum units for pre-employment training,
coordination of the on-boarding process for new hires with on-the-job training requirements and ensure
performance outcomes are achieved during pre-gpening.

Qur training and development programs establish direction for the Group with respect to investment in and utilisation of our
human resource capital. A key driver behind this new approach is the competitive environment within Macau and our need
not only to train and develop our people but also to retain them for the continuous growth and long-term success of the

Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company is committed to high standards of corporate governance. There is in place a well-balanced corporate
governance system which sets the framework for the Board of Directors of the Company {(“Board”) to manage the Company
efficiently and to attain the established corporate objectives of providing shareholders with the best return on their
investment and of caring for the community as a good corporate citizen, with a high level of transparency and accountability
to shareholders. The Board has applied the principles in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (“Code”) set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (“Listing Rules”) an The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
{"Stock Exchange").

The Board

The Company is headed by the Board, which is responsible to lead and control the Company and its subsidiaries (" Group”)
and direct and supervise the Group’s affairs. The Board sets strategies for the Company and monitors the performance of
the management. The names and biographical details of the Directors (by category) and their relationships are set out in the
Corporate Information on page 2 and Further Corporate Information on pages 31 to 33.

Chairman, Deputy Chairman and Managing Director

The roles of the Chairman of the Board, the Deputy Chairman of the Board and the Managing Director (Construction
Materials Division) are segregated and are not exercised by the same individual.

The Chairman provides leadership for the Board and manages the Board ensuring that it works effectively and discharges
its responsibilities, and that all key issues are discussed and addressed to in a timely manner. The Deputy Chairman supports
and assists the Chairman in performing the above works and, together with the Managing Director (Construction Materials
Division), lead and oversee the day-to-day management of the Group’s business, and implement the Company’s set strategies.

Board Composition

The Board has a balanced composition of five executive and seven non-executive Directors (including three independent
non-executive Directors). The skill-sets of the Board are determined and regularly reviewed on the basis that members of the
Board as a whole possess all-rounded business and professional skills essential to manage a successful sizeable enterprise and
to suppart continuous growth. In addition to our executive Directors’ substantial experience in the Company’s business, our
Directors have a mix of corporate management and strategic planning, investment, finance, legal and corporate governance
experience and gualifications. In fulfilling their roles and duties, our Directors provide balanced and independent views to the
Board, exercise independent judgement and play check and balance roles on the Board’s decisions, particularly on matters
that may involve conflict of interest.

Apart from the relationships among Directors disclosed in the Directors’ biographical details, Dr. Moses Cheng Mo Chi is the

senior partner of PC. Woo & Co., a Hong Kong firm of solicitors, which provides legal services on normal commercial terms
to certain companies controlled by the Chairman.
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

There is a formal, considered and transparent procedure for the appointment of new Directors to the Board. Candidates
to be selected and recommended are those who are experienced and competent and able to fulfill the fiduciary duties and
duties of skill, care and diligence to a standard required of for listed companies’ directors. The ability to provide balanced and
independent views and exercise independent judgement and to devote sufficient time and attention to the Company’s affairs
is an additional criterion for selecting non-executive directors.

During the year, Mr. Anthony Thomas Christopher Carter was appoeinted by the Board and Dr. Martin Clarke and Mr.
Guido Paolo Gamucci were appointed by sharehaolders in general meeting as additional non-executive Directors of the
Company. In the appointment process, proposals for the appointment of new Directors together with detailed information
on their educational and professional qualifications and the relevant working experience was submitted to the Board and
the shareholders respectively for decision. Changes in the Board members during the year are set out in the Report of the
Directors on page 35.

Non-executive Directors

All independent non-executive Directors of the Company have met all of the guidelines for assessing independence set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company has received from each of them an annuat written confirmation of his
independence and considers each of them to be independent. The Company has complied with Rules 3.10(1) and (2) of the
Listing Rules relating to appointment of at least three independent non-executive Directors and an independent non-executive
Director with appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial management expertise.

Non-executive Directors are appointed for a specific term. Dr. Charles Cheung Wai Bun and Dr. Moses Cheng Mo Chi were
appointed subject to retirement by rotation and re-election pursuant to the Company's Articles of Association. Mr. James
Ross Ancell, Dr. William Yip Shue Lam and Mr. Anthony Thomas Christopher Carter were appointed for a fixed term of three
years pursuant to their service contracts, which may be extended by another three-year term. Dr. Martin Clarke and Mr.
Guido Paclo Gamucci were nominated by a private equity fund known as Permira IV (beneficially a substantial shareholder
of the Company} pursuant to an Investors’ Rights Agreement dated 8th October 2007 entered into between the Company
and, among others, a company wholly owned by Permira IV, details of which were included in the circular of the Company
dated 5th November 2007, and are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election pursuant to the Company’s Articles of
Association,

Responsibilities of Directors

The Company believes that to enable our Directors to provide their maximum contributions, it is essential to keep them
updated on their duties and responsibilities as well as the conduct, business activities and development of the Group. To this
end, the Company has a set of comprehensive induction materials for new Directors and has from time to time organised
corporate seminars and arranged for site visits to certain important operations of the Group for Directors. Timely updates on
changes in laws and compliance issues relevant to the Group and appropriate information the Group’s business and activities
are provided to our Directors. All Directors have access to the management and Company Secretary for any information
relevant to the Group they require in discharging their duties. Reports on the Company's performance and comparison with
budget together with the necessary commentary and explanation on any deviation from budget are provided to our Directors
at regular Board Meetings held at approximately quarterly intervals.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Code of Conduct for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) set out
in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its code of conduct for securities transactions by Directors. The Company, having made
specific enquiry of all Directors, confirms that our Directors have complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code and the Company’s own code.

The Board has also established written guidelines on no less exacting terms than the Model Code to be observed by relevant
employees of the Group who, because of their offices or employments, are likely to be in possession of unpublished price
sensitive information in relation to the Group or the securities of the Company in respect of their dealings in the securities of
the Company.

Delegation by the Board - Board Committees

The Board has proper delegation of its powers and has established three Board Committees, with specific written terms of
reference which deal clearly with their authority and duties, to oversee particular aspects of the Group’s affairs. Sufficient
resources, including the advice of external Auditor and independent professional advisers, are provided to the Board
Committees to enable them to discharge their duties.

Executive Board

The Board has delegated the power, authorities and discretions for the management of the Group's operations and activities
10 a formally established Executive Board constituted by all executive Directors of the Company. The Executive Board reports
to the Board and causes its resclutions circulated to the Board on a quarterly basis. Certain matters are specifically reserved far
approval by the Board, including annual budgets and accounts, dividends and distribution to shareholders, increase of share
capital and allotment of new shares, derivative tradings, connected transactions subject to disclosure and/or shareholders
approval requirements, and acquisitions, disposals, investments, financing and charging of assets above predetermined
thresholds.

In respect of the decision making pracess, Levels of Authority for management have been formally approved by the
Executive Board and management submits written proposals with detailed analysis {both financial and commercial) and
recommendations to the Executive Board for consideration and approval, in accordance with those Levels of Authority. Where
the subject matter exceeds the authority of the Executive Board or relates to any matters specifically reserved to the Board as
aforesaid, it would be submitted to the Board for approval.

The Executive Board sub-delegates the day-to-day management, administration and operations functions to executive

committees of the gaming and entertainment division and the construction materials division and where appropriate, special
task forces charged with specific responsibilities to oversee particular business activities or corporate transactions.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Company has been in place since 1999. It comprises two independent non-executive Directors,
Dr. Charles Cheung Wai Bun as the Chairman and Mr. James Ross Ancell, and a non-executive Director, Dr. Moses Cheng Mo
Chi.

The Audit Committee is accountable to the Board and its primary role is to assist the Board to monitor the Company’s
financial reporting process, to consider the nature and scope of audit reviews, to ensure that effective internal control and risk
management systems are in place and to review the Group's interim and annual financial statements. The Audit Committee
has access to and maintains an independent communication with the external Auditor and the management to ensure
effective information exchange on all relevant financial and accounting matters. The written terms of reference of the Audit
Committee conform to the code provision requirements of the Code.,

The Audit Committee meets at least twice a year, with the attendance of the Group Chief Financial Officer, Financial
Controller and Qualified Accountant, the Company Secretary and the external Auditor. The Audit Committee submits its
written report to the Board after each Audit Committee Meeting, drawing the Board’s attention to important issues that the
Board should be aware of, identifying any matters in respect of which it considers that action or improvement is needed and
making appropriate recommendations.

In discharging its duties, the principal work performed by the Audit Committee during the year included the following:

(i  Review of interim and annual financial statements of the Group, with a recommendation to the Board for approval,
examination of significant matters relating to the external Auditor’s interim review and annual audit, review of tax
matters and review of the accounting policies and practices adopted by the Group;

(i)  Review of new andfor revised accounting standards and practices applicable to the Group and their impacts to the
Group;

(i) Review of internal control and risk management systems and assessment of their effectiveness to ensure that
appropriate measures are in place to safeguard all significant assets and operations of the Group as well as to support
continuous growth;

(iv) Review of overall accounts receivables position of the Group and the effectiveness of credit control, and reinforcing
education to the management and the operation units the importance of adherence to the established credit control

measures,;

(v}  Review of audit strategy, approach and methodologies and assessment of key audit risks with the external Auditor in
the audit planning stage;

(vi) Review of the findings and recommendations from internal audit on the annual internal control review and approval of
the internal audit plan; and

{(vii) Report of the findings and making recommendatians to the Board for improvement or implementation in respect of the
above matters.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee of the Company has been in place since early 2006, t comprises three members, Mr. Francis
Lui Yiu Tung as the Chairman and two independent non-executive Directors, Dr. Charles Cheung Wai Bun and Dr. William Yip
Shue Lam.

The Remuneration Committee is accountable to the Board and its primary role is to conduct annual review of the policy and
structure for all remuneration of Directors and senior management and to make recommendations to the Board on such
policy and structure and an the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy.
The Remuneration Committee also has the delegated responsibility to determine the remuneration packages of all executive
Directors and senior management proposed by the human resources management and make recommendations to the Board
of the remuneration of non-executive Directors. The Remuneration Committee assists the Board to regularly review and
formulate fair and competitive remuneration packages which attract, retain and motivate Directors and senior management
of the quality required to run the Company successfully. The written terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee
conform to the code provision requirements of the Code.

The Remuneration Committee meets at least once a year, with the attendance of representatives from the human resources
department and the Company Secretary. The Remuneration Committee submits its written report to the Beard after each
Remuneration Committee Meeting, making recommendations of the Director’s fees (including Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee members’ fees) and other remuneration related matters.

In discharging its duties, the principal work performed by the Remuneration Committee during the year included the
following:

(i)  Review of the remuneration policy and structure for the Directors of the Company;

(il Made recommendations to the Board on proposed Directors’ fees {including Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee members’ fees) after taking into account the Directors’ fees for previous years, the Company's performance
and level of activities, and other listed companies’ payments, which were endorsed by the Board and would be
submitted to shareholders for approval at the annual general meeting;

(i) Approved the specific remuneration packages of all executive Directors after taking into account the remuneration
policy and structure, the market benchmark, the contribution of and work performed by relevant Directors and their

increasing job responsibilities; and

{ivy Approved the performance-based year-end discretionary bonus paid to the executive Directars of the Company in line
with the Company’s remuneration policy and market benchmark,

The Directors’ rermuneration for the year ended 31st December 2007 is set out in note 9 to the financial statements.
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Board and Board Committee Meetings

The Board schedules regular Board Meetings in advance, at least four times a year at approximately quarterly intervals to give
Directors the opportunity to participate actively. Directors are consulted for including matters in the agenda for regular Board
Meetings. Special Board Meetings are convened as and when needed. Together with the Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee Meetings as aforesaid, it provides an effective framework for the Board and Board Committees to perform their
works and discharge their duties. Minutes of Board and Board Committee Meetings are kept by the Company Secretary and
are made available to all Directors.

Details of individual Directors' attendance at the Board and Board Committee Meetings held in the year are set out in the
following table:

Remuneration

Audit Committee Committee

Board Meetings Meetings Meeting
Number of Meetings 4 (2) (1)
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Dr. Lui Che Woo 4/4 - -
Mr. Francis Lui Yiu Tung 4/4 - 1
Mr. Chan Kai Nang a/4 - _
Mr. Joseph Chee Ying Keung 4/4 - -
Ms. Paddy Tang Lui Wai Yu 474 - -
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Dr. Moses Cheng Mo Chi 4/4 2/2 -
Mr. Anthony Thomas Christopher Carter 33 - -
Dr. Martin Clarke - - -
Mr. Guido Paolo Gamucci - - -
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Dr. Charles Cheung Wai Bun 4/4 22 11
Mr. James Ross Ancell 4/4 212 -
Dr. William Yip Shue Lam 4/4 - 1

It is rernarkable to note that we had a 100% attendance at our Board and Board Committee meetings for the year 2007,
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Financial Reporting

The Board is accountable to the shareholders and is committed to presenting comprehensive and timely information to the
shareholders on assessment of the Company’s performance, financial position and prospects.

Directors’ Responsibility

The Directars acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the financial statements of the Company, which give a true
and fair view and comply with all applicable regulatory requirements and accounting standards. In preparing the financial
staternents for the year ended 31st December 2007, the Directors have selected appropriate accounting policies and applied
them consistently, and made judgements and estimates that are prudent and reasonable. The Directors are not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern as at 31st December 2007. Accordingly, the Directors have prepared the financial statements on a going
cancern basis,

The Board has appointed a Qualified Accountant pursuant to Rule 3.24 of the Listing Rules with the designated responsibility
to oversee the financial reporting procedures and internal controls and compliance with the requirements under the Listing
Rules with regard to financial reporting and other accounting-related issues.

Auditor’s Responsibility
The external Auditor of the Company is PricewaterhouseCoopers, Certified Public Accountants. A statement by the Auditor
about their reporting responsibilities is included in the Report of Independent Auditor on the Company’s financial statements

on page 47.

In arriving at their opinion, the external Auditor conducts full scope audit without any restrictions and has access to individual
Directors {(including Audit Committee members) and management of the Company.

The external Auditor is available at the annual general meeting of the Company to answer questions which shareholders may
have.

Auditor's Remuneration

Fees for auditing services and non-auditing services provided by the external Auditor for the year ended 31st December 2007
are included in note 8 to the financial statements.

Fees for non-auditing services include HK$2,578,000 for the services provided in respect of taxation and internal control
consuitancy services.
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Internal Controls

The Board recognises the importance of a sound internal control system for the Group and commits to continuous
assessment and management of any risk that may adversely affect the Group in achieving its business objectives. To help
successfully achieve the business objectives, the Board employs a well-structured management team with functional heads
who are delegated with authorities to oversee daily operations of all major operating entities of the Group. Regular review on
the management structure is carried out 1o swiftly adapt the structure to the ever changing market conditions.

The Board also endeavors to increase awarenass of risk management across the Group's business operations. A sound internal
control system has been put into place in which policies and procedures have been formulated to help identify and manage
risk in a systematic approach. Under the sound internal control system, unauthorized use or disposition of assets is effectively
prevented, proper maintenance of accounting records and provision of refiable financial information are ascertained, and
strict compliance with relevant statutory rules and regulations is warranted.

The internal audit function provides independent assurance to the Board and executive management as to the adeguacy and
effectiveness of internal controls for the Group on an on-going basis. The Internal Audit adepts a risk and control based audit
methodology in designing the audit plan that is reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee. It is important to recognize
that an internal control system aims to manage rather than eliminate risks; and to provide reasonable but not absolute
assurance,

During the year ended 31st December 2007, Internal Audit has performed a review on the effectiveness of the internal
control system of the Group’s businesses in respect to business processes, practices and procedures, which cover all material
contrals, including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management functions. Internal Audit was not
aware of any significant defect/weakness on the internal control system that would have an adverse impact on the financial
pasition or operations of the Group. Audit report has been submitted to the Audit Committee half-yearly with findings and
recommendations on improvements. The Audit Committee is satisfied with the internal audit works performed.

Looking forward, the Group aims to cultivate an environment where controls are managed in systematic and structured
manners through:

. the process to review and update corporate policies;
. Enhancement of management reporting system;
. Improvement of communication of palicies and procedures through a range of tools; and

. More guidance/ training to operational management on skills of risk assessment, development of mitigation measures,
elc.
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Communication with Shareholders and Investment Community

The Company recognizes the importance of maintaining an on-going and timely communication with shareholders and the
investment community to enable them to form their cwn judgement and to provide canstructive feedback.

During the year, the Company announced selected unaudited key performance indicators of the Group for the first five-
month period and the third quarter period, in addition to its annual and interim results, to enable the shareholders, investors
and the public to better appraise the position and business performance of the Group. The Company holds press conferences,
analysts briefings and investor meetings/calls after the anncuncement of its financial results and the key performance
indicators. The Cempany also organised site visits for analysts to the flagship properties of the Group in order for them
te have an in depth understanding of our products. Management of the Company (including certain executive Directors)
participated in roadshows organised by international leading investment banks to meet institutional investors and analysts
on a regularly basis. Throughout the year, numerous investor meetings were held in Hong Kong, Macau, London, New York,
Boston, San Francisco, Los Angeles and Singapore. The Company's website www.galaxyentertainment.com contains an
investor relations section which offers timely access to our press releases and other business information. Qur Directors are
available at the Company’s annual and extracrdinary general meetings to answer questions and provide information which
shareholders may enquire,

The Company has complied with the requirements of the Listing Rules and the Articles of Association in respect of voting by
poll and related matters.

Compliance with the Code

Throughout the year under review, the Company has complied with the code provisions in the Code, except code provision
A.4.2. The Board considers that the spirit of code provision A.4.2 has been upheld, given that the other Directors do retire
by rotation in accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company and the Group is best served by not requiring
the Chairman and the Managing Director to retire by rotation as their continuity in office is of considerable benefit 10 and
their leadership, vision and profound knowledge in the widespread geographical business of the Group is an asset of the
Company.

26 Galaxy Entertainment Groug Limited




GAMING AND HOSPITALITY EXPERTISE

Galaxy is committed to recruiting and retaining the very best management and staff and will continue to strengthen our
gaming and hospitality executive team as we move forward and continue to build Galaxy into one of the world's leading
internationally acclaimed gaming and entertainment companies.

An indicative profile of the depth of our executive talent in our gaming and hospitality team is detailed below:

David Craig Philip Banks, Group Chief Operating Officer, He was the former Chief Executive Officer of Casinos for
Tabcorp Ltd. in Australia responsible for Star City Casino in Sydney, Jupiters Casino in Gold Coast Queensland, Treasury
Casino Brisbane, and Townsville Casino in Queensland. As the former Chief Operating Officer & Chief Executive Officer
of Star City Ltd., former President and Director of The Australian Casino Association, David has 10 years senior executive
experience in the casino industry.

Robert Charles Drake, Group Chief Financial Officer. He was the former Vice President, Finance for the Western
Division of Harrah's Entertainment Inc., Las Vegas, primarily responsible for the financial reporting of 13 properties in
Nevada including Caesars Palace, Paris and Flamingo in Las Vegas. He holds a Master Degree of Business Administration
and a Bachelor of Science Degree in Economics. He has extensive experience in corporate finance, investment banking
activities such as mergers & acquisitions, financial management as well as domestic & international business development
activities within the gaming industry.

Heinz Roelz, Director, Hotels & Hospitality. He was formerly Executive Vice President, Stanford Hotels International and
graduated from hotel management schools in Germany and in the USA with more than 44 years experience in hotel
development and operations in Germany, Switzerland, Indonesia, mainland China, Bermuda, the USA and Hong Kong.

Baschar Hraki, Director, Project Development. He was the former Executive Vice President, Macao Studio City in charge
of a mega project development in Macau. He is a qualified architect with extensive international experience in design,
and construction management of large and complex projects including hotels, resorts, theme parks, entertainment
centres, residential developments, shopping centers and sports stadiums in Asia, Europe, Middle East and U S.A.

Ciaran Pearse Carruthers, Chief Operating Officer, StarWorld Hotel & Casino. He has 21 years experience in the
gaming and resort industry in various countries including, the UK, the US Commonwealth of the Northern Marianas
Islands, the Philippines and Singapore. He has specialized in the Asia Pacific gaming industry for the past 16 years,
consulting to various Casino Groups such as: Crown, Tabcorp and Pagcor and he has been with Galaxy since late 2002
and was previously Senior Vice President - City Clubs.

Kwa Yew Seng, Chief Financial Officer of Galaxy Casino. S.A. He holds a Master of Business Administration Degree and
a Bachelor Degree in Economics. Mr. Kwa is also a member of the Institute of Chartered Accounts in Australia and a
Fellow of the Australian Institute of Company Directors. He has over 30 years experience in the field of Financial and
Accounting, 20 of which were in the casino industry, in particular at Burswood Casino, Western Australia.

David Robert Lily, Chief Financial Officer, Cotai. He holds a Bachelor Degree of Commerce and is a member of New
Zealand Society of Accountants and a Fellow of Australian Society of Certified Practicing Accountant. He has over 30
years experience in the field of Finance and Accounting, 6 of which were in the casino industry, in particular at SKYCITY
Entertainment Group Limited in New Zealand.

Albert Emile Davia, Vice President, International Premium Market Development, Corporate Marketing and Vice
President of City Clubs. He has 23 years experience in the gaming and resort industry in various countries including,
Singapore, Indonesia, Thailand, Australia, Malaysia and Macau. He has specialized in the VIP gaming industry for the past
16 years, dealing with VIP players from the Asian region, the Casinos in which he has run VIP operations inctude:
SKYCITY, Adelaide and Crown Casino, Melbourne.

Michael Roy Caban, Vice President, Casino Operations, Cotai. He has more than 35 years experience in the gaming
industry and was the former General Manager, Gaming for the SKYCITY in New Zealand and Australia. He has also
warked in the following casinos: Crown Casino, Melbourne, Burswood Casino, Western Australia, casinos of Federal
Hotels Limited in Darwin and Hobart, casino of Haliday Inns, Botswana Africa, Sheraton Breakwater Casino Hotel,
Queensland and Playboy Casino, London.

This list is by no means exhaustive. With the continued development of our management competence resulting in highly
efficient casino and entertainment operations, we believe that it will drive the growth and success of Galaxy for the years
to come.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

As a socially-responsible corporation, the Group is committed to acting as a good corporate citizen in caring for and
serving the communities in which it operates. We fulfilt our corporate social responsibilities through active participation in
sociat voluntary services and community activities as well as sponsorships and donations.

In Hong Kong

The Group, in addition to playing an active role to support Hong Kong's continuous economic growth, it remains
committed to its goals of community involvement.

It is always of our belief that corporate sacial responsibility (CSR) unites us to build strong team spirit and create vital
links with the community. We constantly encourage our employees te participate in CSR activities which enable them to
learn from challenging experience and gain fresh perspectives to enhance their skills through working with a wide range
of people.

Since 2006, the Construction Materials Division established a "CSR Service Committee” to take a proactive stance
pledging to continuously serving the society. During the year, the Division had successfully set up an employee volunteer
team that devoted over 3,500 volunteer working hours to a company-organized community project which last for a term
of 6 months — "Mentoring the Way to the Future” providing mentoring service to selected group in need (single family
children aged between 8 and 12}, with not only money donation, but mare importantly, our people.

Throughout the year, we have organized and participated in a series of CSR activities and the highlights are:

. “KWCM Blood Donation Day” jointly organized by Hong Kong Red Cross

. “Uncle Long Leg Mait Box™ organized by Evangelical Lutheran Church of Hong Kong {ELCHK)

. “Mentoring the Way to the Future” jointly organized with ELCHK

. “Challenging 12 Hours” organized by Sowers Action

Our commitment to the society has been well recognized and we are pleased to receive the award of “Caring Company
Logo” presented by the “Hong Kong Council of Social Service” for the 6th consecutive year.
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In Macau

Ever since the commencement of Macau operations, our Gaming and Entertainment Division has continued to practise
good corporate citizenship through active participation in community activities. During year 2007, we participated in:

Sports
We sponsored major sports events organized by Macau SAR Government in support of the SAR Government's tourism
policy to promote a model of diversified tourism.

. Sponsorship of the Thai Boxing Charity Contest via donation of MCP 100,000 to Tung Sin Tong
. Title sponsor of “Macau Galaxy Entertainment Stankovic Continental Cup 2007

. Title sponsor of “Macau Galaxy Entertainment 2007 FIVB World Grand Prix”

Title sponsor of "2007 Macau Galaxy Entertainment Sinc-Australian Basketball Challenge”
. Title sponsor of “2007 Macau Galaxy Entertainment International Marathon, Half Marathon and Mini Marathon”

Culture & Development of Tourism
We actively participated in tourism related trade shows and forums in support of the SAR Government's initiative to
promote Macau's position as an international destination of culture and entertainment.

. Sponsored “The First Macau International Exchange Meeting on Giant Panda Culture” and “Hong Kong, Macau,
Taiwan Giant Panda Summit Forum”

. Sponsored the Shanghai delegation of promoting tourism & sports cooperation between Shanghai and Macau (B
LR B A 1), 28-30 August in Hong Kong and 31 August-1 September in Macau

Gaming

To support The Institute for the Study of Commercial Gaming {ISCG) at the University of Macau which provides advisory
service to government policy makers on issues relating to gaming regulations and helps gaming operators to solve
practical problems arising directly from gaming operation. ISCG intends to support the development of high quality
gaming research focusing on Macau and Asia and to provide appropriate gaming management programs to fulfill the
greater demand for gaming staff in the near future.

Donation/Participation in charity events

We believe that social commitment involves not merely charitable contributions to our community, but also through
participation in the community welfare activities. Apart from donation to Macao Daily News Readers’ Fund, we also
encourage our staff to participate in the charitable activities including the "Waik For a Million” organized by Macao Daily
News Readers’ Fund.

. Donation to St. Lucia Centre of Caritas & went there for a visit

. Donation to Tung Sin Tong (by sponscring Thai Baxing Charity Contest)

. Donation to Red Cross Macau to support the relief operations on Mainland China caused by natural disasters.

. Donation to Tung Sin Tong and Macao Daily News Readers’ Fund

. Walk for a Million in Dec

Scholarship
Scholarship titled under “Galaxy Entertainment Group” was granted to students nominated by the following tertiary
academic institute based on the academic excellence.

. Macao Polytechnic Institute
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FIVE-YEAR SUMMARY

ES ] fio 00 2R 2007
IS e e B S ERD OGO HK$°000
CONSOUDATED PROFIT AND LOSS STATEMENT
Revenue 1,130,894 1,299,143 1,291,927 4,669,495 13,035,439
Profit/(loss) attributable to shareholders 40,205 55,886 2,395,269 (1,531,546) {466,200)
Dividends 25,168 25,805 — — -
Earnings/(loss) per share (cents) 3.2 4.4 110.7 (46.5) {13.8)
Dividend per share {cents) 20 2.0 — — —_
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
Property, plant and equipment,
investment properties and leasehold
land and land use rights 802,153 787,028 2,889,283 5,566,921 6,374,464
Intangible assets — — 16,493,230 15,520,486 14,520,665
Jointly controlled entities
and associated companies 253,547 266,893 300,778 387,250 506,923
Other non-current assets 240,727 408,883 595,120 951,697 600.757
Net current assets 481,179 507,958 1,712,199 2,608,958 5,340,858
Employment of capital 1,777,606 1,970,762 21,980,610 25,035,312 27,343,667
Represented by:
Share capital 125,893 129,648 329,058 329,612 393,564
Reserves 1,288,370 1,295,616 14,603,396 13,303,187 18,013,088
Shareholders’ funds 1,414,263 1,425,264 14,932,454 13,632,799 18,406,652
Minority interests 147,891 39,025 491,910 450,700 531,79
Non-current borrowings 200,800 311,580 4,643,355 8,439,965 6,010,571
Other non-current liabilities 14,652 14,020 1,778.531 2,351,697 2,259,631
Provisions — 180,873 144,360 120,151 135,622
Capital employed 1,777,606 1,870,762 21,990,610 25,035,312 27,343,667
Net assets per share (dollars) 1.12 1.10 4,54 4.14 4.68

The summary of 2003 has not been restated following the adoption of the new and revised Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards in 2005.
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FURTHER CORPORATE INFORMATION

Biographical information of directors

Executive Directors

Dr. Lui Che Woo, GBS, MBE, JF, LD, DSSe, DBA, aged 78, the founder of the Group, has been a director of the Company
since August 1991 and is the Chairman of the Company. Dr. Lui is also an executive director and the Chairman of
K. Wah International Holdings Limited. He has over 50 years' experience in quarrying, construction materials and
property development. He was the Founding Chairman of the Institute of Quarrying in the UK (Hong Kong Branch) and
Chairman of the Tung Wah Group of Hospitals. Dr. Lui is also the Founding Chairman of The Federation of Hong Kong
Hotel Owners, the President of Tsim Sha Tsui East Property Developers Association, the Founding President of
Hong Kong — Guangdong Economic Development Association and an Honorary President of Hong Kong — Shanghai
Economic Development Association. Further, Dr. Lui was a Committee Member of the 9th Chinese People's Palitical
Consultative Conference, a member of the Selection Committee for the First Government of the HKSAR and a member
of the Election Committee of the HKSAR. Dr. Lui was awarded the Gold Bauhinia Star of the Government of the HKSAR
in July 2005. Dr. Lui has been again elected as a member of the Election Committee of the HKSAR in December 2006.
Dr. Lui was honoured as the Business Person of the Year in DHU/SCMP Hong Kong Business Awards 2007 and the
Lifetime Achievement Award by American Academy of Hospitality Sciences of 2007 respectively. Dr. Lui is the father of
Mr. Francis Lui Yiu Tung and Ms. Paddy Tang Lui Wai Yu.

Mr. Francis Lui Yiu Tung, aged 52, joined the Group in 1979. He has been an executive director of the Company since
June 1987 and is the Deputy Chairman of the Company. Mr. Lui is also an executive director of K. Wah International
Holdings Limited. He holds a bachelor of science degree in civil engineering and a master of science degree in structural
engineering from the University of California at Berkeley, USA. He is a Committee Member of the 11th Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference. Mr. Lui is a son of Dr. Lui Che Woo and a younger brother of Ms. Paddy Tang Lui Wai
Yu.

Mr. Chan Kai Nang, aged 62, joined the Group in 2002. He has been an executive director of the Company since
January 2003 and is the Managing Director of the Construction Materials Division of the Company. He is an associate
member of The Chartered institute of Management Accountants in the UK and a fellow member of The Chartered
Association of Certified Accountants in the UK and The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Chan
has been a top level executive with substantial experience in major multinational and local corporations. He had been the
regional controller and senior executive of these corporations for many years.

Mr. Joseph Chee Ying Keung, aged 50, joined the Group in 1982. He has been an executive director of the Company
since April 2004 and is the Deputy Managing Director of the Construction Materials Division of the Company. Mr. Chee
holds an International Master degree in Business Administration from the University of South Australia and a Bachelor
degree in Mechanical Engineering from the University of Western Ontario in Canada. He is a fellow member of The
Institute of Quarrying in the UK and has over 26 years of broad experience in the construction materials industry
including operations and management, technical and quality assurance, environmental protection, commercial and
strategic planning. He is currently the Chairman of Hong Kong Contract Quarry Association and the member of Standing
Committee on Concrete Technology organized by Civil Engineering and Development Department, HKSAR. He was a
member of the Working Group on Construction Waste of the Provisional Construction Industry Co-ordination Board from
2004 to 2006. He was also the Chairman of The Institute of Quarrying in the UK {(Hong Kong Branch) from 1998 to
2000.

Annual Report 2007 31




FURTHER CORPORATE INFORMATION

Ms. Paddy Tang Lui Wai Yu, jr, aged 54, joined the Group in 1980 and has been an executive director of the
Company since August 1991. She is also an executive director of K. Wah International Holdings Limited. She holds a
bachelor of commerce degree from the McGill University, Canada and is a member of The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales. Ms. Tang was a member of the Election Committee of the HKSAR. She is also a
member of various public and social service organizations, including the Board of Qcean Park Corporation, the Hong
Kong Arts Development Council, the Statistic Advisory Board and the Standing Committee on Company Law Reform. Ms.
Tang has been again elected as a member of the Hotel Sub-sector of Election Committee for the Third Term Chief
Executive of the HKSAR in December 2006. Ms. Tang is the daughter of Dr. Lui Che Woo and the elder sister of Mr.
Francis Lui Yiu Tung.

Non-executive Directors

Dr. Charles Cheung Wai Bun, s/, aged 71, joined the Group in 1986. He was appointed an executive director of the
Company in June 1987 and became an independent non-executive direcior since 1995. Dr. Cheung holds an honorary
doctor’s degree, a master's degree in business administration and a bachelor of science degree. He has over 30 years of
experience at senior management level of companies in various industries including over 22 years of experience in
banking. He is the Chairman of Joy Harvest International Limited, Hong Kong. He is also an independent non-executive
director and chairman of the audit committee of K. Wah International Holdings Limited, Shanghai Electric Group
Company Limited, Pioneer Global Group Limited and Prime Investments Holdings Limited, which are companies listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Dr. Cheung is also the Senior Advisor of the Metropolitan
Bank & Trust Company, Philippines. He was a former director and adviser of the Tung Wah Group of Hospitals and is a
Vice Chairman of Guangdong Province Golf Association. He was awarded the Directors of the Year Awards 2002 of
Listed Company Non-Executive Director. He is also a Council Member of The Hong Kong Institute of Directors.

Dr. Moses Cheng Mo Chi, G8s, 08¢, Jp, aged 58, has been a non-executive director of the Company since August 1996.
Dr. Cheng is the senior partner of P.C. Woo & Co., a Hong Kong firm of solicitors, and is the Founder Chairman of the
Hong Kong Institute of Directors of which he is now the Honorary President and Chairman Emeritus. Dr. Cheng is a non-
official member of the Commission on Strategic Development. He had served as a member of the Legislative Council of
Hong Kong.

Mr. James Ross Ancell, aged 54, has been an independent non-executive director of the Company since April 2004. He
holds a Bachelor's degree in Management Studies from University of Waikato in New Zealand. He is a member of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of New Zealand and has over 30 years of broad experience in building materials and
construction sectors, waste management and recycling business gained from multinational corporations. He is currently
the Chairman of Churngold Construction Holdings Limited in the UK, a leading specialist groundworks subcontractor
carrying out groundworks and road surfacing, with a separate remediation business, cleaning up sites contaminated by
previous industrial activity. He is also a non-executive director of MJ Gleeson Group PLC, a housebuilder and
regeneration company listed on the London Stock Exchange.

Dr. William Yip Shue Lam, 1ip, aged 70, has been an independent non-executive director of the Company since
December 2004. Dr. Yip holds a Bachelor of Arts degree and an honorary Doctor of Laws degree from the Concordia
University, Canada. He is the founder and the Chairman of Canada Land Limited, a company listed on the Australian
Stock Exchange and engaged in real estate development and tourist attraction business. He is also the Chairman of
Cantravel Limited, Guangzhou. Dr. Yip has been active in public services and is presently a Standing Committee Member
of The Chinese General Chamber of Commerce and the President of Concordia Hong Kong Foundation Limited. He also
serves on the Board of Governors of The Canadian Chamber of Commerce in Hong Kong. In addition, Dr. Yip has been
elected a Guangzhou Municipal Honorable Citizen.
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Mr. Anthony Thomas Christopher Carter, aged 62, joined the Group in 2003 and has been a non-executive director
of the Company since April 2007. Mr. Carter holds a LL.B. (Mons) from the University of Leeds in England. He is a
solicitor in the United Kingdom, Hong Kong and Awustralia and a Notary Public in Hong Kong. He has extensive
experience in strategic planning and business management as well as in corporate finance and development. Prior to his
retirement from the Company in March 2007, he was the Chief Executive Officer of Galaxy Casing, S.A,

Dr. Martin Clarke, aged 52, has been a non-executive director of the Company since 27th November 2007. He became
a Partner at Permira (substantial shareholder of the Company) in 2004. He is a member of Permira’s Executive Committee
and Head of the Consumer Sector. He has worked on a number of transactions including Gala Coral Group, New Look,
Principal Hayley Group, Telepizza and Galaxy Entertainment. Dr. Clarke has over 25 years of experience of private equity.
Prior to joining, he was one of the founder directors of PPM Capital, the private equity arm of Prudential plc. and was
involved in over 20 deals with a particular emphasis on the consumer space. His early career was spent at CIN Industrial
Investments, the precursor of Cinven. He holds an MA and PhD in History from Cambridge University, England.

Mr. Guido Paole Gamucci, aged 55, has been a non-executive director of the Company since 27th November 2007. He
is Chairman of Permira’s Asia Pacific operations, having previously managed its Milan office. He is a Partner in Permira
which is a substantial shareholder of the Company. He has worked on numerous transactions including DinoSol
Supermercados, EEMS, Ferretti Group and Seat PG. Prior 1o joining Permira in 1997, he spent six years with UBS Capital
in Italy as Founding Partner and Managing Director. Previously Mr. Gamucal worked at Citicorp in ltaly, as Deputy Head
of Investment Banking and Country Treasurer for Italy. He has a degree in Mechanical Engineering from the University of
Rome, Italy, and an MBA from INSEAD, France.

Senior management

The businesses of the Group are under the direct responsibilities of the executive directors of the Company who are
regarded as senior management of the Group.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors have pleasure in presenting to the shareholders their annual report together with the audited financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31st December 2007.

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and
associated companies of the Company are primarily engaged in gaming and entertainment in Macau and the
manufacture, sale and distribution of construction materials in Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland China, and their
principal activities and other particulars are set out in note 44 to the financial statements.

Results and appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st December 2007 are set out in the consolidated profit and loss
statement on page 49 of this annual report.

No interim dividend {(2006: nil} was paid during the year. The Directors have resolved not to recommend any final
dividend for the year ended 31st December 2007 (2006: nil).

Share capital

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during the year are set out in note 29 to the financial
statements.

On 21st November 2007, the authorised share capital of the Company was increased from HK$688,800,000 to
HK$900,000,000 divided into 9,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.10 each (“Shares”) by the creation of an additional
2,112,000,000 Shares, which new Shares rank pari passu in all respects with the then existing Shares in the capital of
the Company.

On 25th October 2007, 150,000,000 new Shares were issued at a price of HK$8.58 each for cash to independent third
parties pursuant to a placing arrangement as fully described in the announcement of the Company dated 12th October
2007.

On 27th November 2007, 323,384,000 new Shares were issued for cash to a private equity fund known as Permira IV
and 156,804,000 new Shares were issued to holders of fixed rate notes on conversion of such notes, all at a price of
HK$8.42 each. Further details of such issue of Shares were included in the announcement of the Company dated 11th
October 2007.

During the year, 400,000 new Shares, 228,000 new Shares, 580,000 new Shares and 8,126,000 new Shares were issued

at the prices of HK$0.5333, HK$0.5216, HK$0.514 and HK$4.59 each respectively pursuant to share option schemes of
the Company as a result of the exercise of share options by option holders.
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Debt securities

During the year, the fixed rate notes in the aggregate principal amount of HK$2,371,805,067 issued by the Company
were fully repaid, details of which are set out in note 32 to the financial statements.

Details of the guaranteed senior fixed rate and floating rate notes in the aggregate principal amount of U5$600,000,000
issued by Galaxy Entertainment Finance Company Limited, a subsidiary of the Company, which are listed on the
Singapore Stock Exchange, are set out in note 32 to the financial statements.

Details of the zera coupan convertible notes due 2011 in the aggregate principal amount of US$240,000,000 are set out
in note 32 to the financiai statements.

Dealings in listed securities

The Company has not redeemed any of its Shares or listed debt securities during the year ended 315t December 2007.
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries have purchased or sold any of the Company's Shares or listed debt
securities during the year,

Reserves

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the year are set out in note 31 to the
financial statements.

Property, plant and equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during the year are set ocut in note 15 to the
financial statements.

Directors

The Directors of the Company who served during the year were Dr. Lui Che Woo, Mr. Francis Lui Yiu Tung, Mr. Chan Kai
Nang, Mr. Joseph Chee Ying Keung, Mr. William Lo Chi Chung {(who resigned on 1st May 2007), Ms. Paddy Tang Lui
Wai Yu, Dr. Charles Cheung Wai Bun, Dr. Moses Cheng Mo Chi, Mr. James Ross Ancell, Dr. William Yip Shue Lam, Mr.
Anthony Thomas Christopher Carter (who was appeinted on 18th April 2007), and Dr. Martin Clarke and Mr. Guido
Paclo Gamucci (both of whom were appointed on 27th November 2007). Mr. Chan Kai Nang will retire as a Director
with effect from 1st May 2008. The biographical details of the existing Directors are set out on pages 31 to 33 of this
annual report.

In accordance with Article 106{A), Ms. Paddy Tang Lui Wai Yu, Dr. Charles Cheung Wai Bun and Dr. William Yip Shue
Lam shall retire from office by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting. Both of Ms. Paddy Tang Lui Wai Yu
and Dr. William Yip Shue Lam, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election. Dr. Charles Cheung Wai Bun has elected
that he will not seek for re-election and will retire from office at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election has a service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is
not determinable within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

Subject to the approval of shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting, the following directors’ fees in
respect of the year ended 31st December 2007 will be payable to the Directors:

(Ghaizmany Member

S o <6

The Board 120,000 100,000
Audit Committee 100,000 80,000
Remuneration Committee 50,000 40,000

Directors’ interests in contracts
Save as disclosed in this Report of the Directors, no cantracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business, to which

the Company or its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director has or had a material beneficial interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted on 31st December 2007 or at any time during the year.
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Directors’ interests in securities and share options

At 31st December 2007, the interests of each Director in the Shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company,
and the details of any right to subscribe for Shares and of the exercise of such rights, as recorded in the register required

to be kept

under section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Keng (the

“SFO"} or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), were as follows:

(@) Shares (including underlying shares)

NUmbedoffsharesy(includinglundedyingfehares))
Percentage
oflissued]
Persgnal Gexisflky jSharel
Namel InterestsENMInterests! [[nterests] Interests! lLotall (Gapital]
Lui Che Woo 17,187,632 2,181,518 387,773,426  2,563,612,485% 2.970,755,061 75.48
Francis Lui Yiu Tung 24,781,896 —  440,119,661% 2,505,853,504% 2,970,755,061 75.48
Chan Kai Nang 380,000 — — — 380,000 0.01
Joseph Chee Ying Keung 2,720,000 — — — 2,720,000 Q.07
Paddy Tang Lui Wai Yu 8,939,722 — —  2,961,815,339" 2,970,755,061 75.48
Charles Cheung Wai Bun 252,533 -— — — 252,533 0.01
Moses Cheng Mo Chi S00,000 — — — 500,000 0.01
James Rass Ancell 250,000 — — — 250,000 0.01
William Yip Shue Lam 250,000 — — — 250,000 0.01
Anthony Thomas Christopher Carter 2,800,000 — — — 2,800,000 0.07
Martin Clarke — — — — — =

Guido Paclo Gamucgi —_ — — — — —

Notes:

(1)

2)

(3

80,387,837 Shares, 305,401 Shares, 106,716,107 Shares, 162,484,047 Shares, 13,308,179 Shares, 9,660,855 Shares and
14,911,000 Shares were respectively held by Best Chance Investments Ltd., Po Kay Securities & Shares Company Limited, Super
Focus Company Limited, Sutimar Enterprises Limited, Premium Capital Profits Limited, Mark Liaision Limited and Favor Right
Investrnents Limited, all controlled by Dr. Lui Che Woo.

A discretionary family trust established by Dr. Lui Che Woo as founder was interested in 1,313,887,206 Shares. Dr. Lui Che Woo,
Mr. Francis Lui Yiu Tung and Ms. Paddy Tang Lui Wai Yu, as either direct or indirect discretionary beneficiaries of the discretionary
family trust, are deemed to have an interest in those Shares in which the trust has an interest.

Dr. Lui Che Woo, Mr, Francis Lui Yiu Tung and Ms. Paddy Tang Lui Wai Yu are, among others, parties to certain arrangements to
which Section 317 of the SFO applies and each of them is deemed, for the purpose of the disclosure requirements in Part XV of
the SFO, to be interested in any Shares held by the other parties to such arrangements for so long as such arrangements are in
place, The deemed interests pursuant to these arrangements of Dr. Lui Che Wao, Mr. Francis Lui Yiu Tung and Ms. Paddy Tang Lui
Wai Yu were 1,249,725,279 Shares, 1,191,966,298 Shares and 1,647,928,133 Shares respectively.

114,504,039 Shares were heid by Recurrent Profits Limited which is controlled by Mr. Francis Lui Yiu Tung. Top Notch
Opportunities Limited ("Top Notch”) was interested in 231,615,731 underlying shares of the Company. Kentlake International
Invesiments Limited (“Kentlake™ was interested in 60,000,000 Shares and 33,992,891 underlying shares of the Company. Both
Kentlake and Top Notch are contralled by Mr. Francis Lui Yiu Tung.
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(b) Share Options

Details are set out in the SHARE OPTION SCHEME section below.

All the interests stated above represent long positions.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st December 2007, none of the Directors of the Company had any interests or short
positions in the Shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations {within

the meaning of Part XV of the SFQO).

Substantial shareholders’ interests

At 31st December 2007, the interests or short positions of every person {not heing a Director or chief executive of the
Company) in the Shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under

section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

NUmbedof] offissued] iNUmbegol ofliss ied]

Shazes! Sharel Shares] Sharel

Name (Tonglposition) (Gaprtail(Shordbosition) Ceptiel
Brightwealth Investments Limited 265,615,622 6.75 265,615,622 6.75
City Lion Profits Corp. 2,970,755,061" 75.48 — —
Davos Investment Holdings Private Limited 265,615,622 6.75 265,615,622 6.75
ENB Topco 2 S.ar.l 2,955,752,061 13 75.10 — —
Galaxy Entertainment Group Limited 2,970,755,0614" 75.48 — —
Guoco Group Limited 265,615,622 6.75 265,615,622 6.75
Guoline Capital Assets Limited 265,615,622 6.75 265,615,622 6.75
Guocline Overseas Limited 265,615,622 6.75 265,615,622 6.75
HL Holdings Sdn Bhd 265,615,622 6.75 265,615,622 6.75
Hong Leong Company (Malaysia) Berhad 265,615,622 6.75 265,615,622 6.75
Hong Leong Investment Holdings Pte. Ltd. 265,615,622 6.75 265,615,622 6.75
HSBC International Trustee Limited 1,313,887,206? 33.38 — —
Kwek Holdings Pte Ltd 265,615,622 6.75 265,615,622 6.75
Kwek Leng Kee 265,615,622 6.75 265,615,622 6.75
Mark Liaison Limited 2,970,755,061" 75.48 — —
Permira Holdings Limited 2,955,752,061 75.10 — —
Premium Capital Profits Limited 2,970,755,061¢" 75.48 — —
Recurrent Profits Limited 2,970,755,061¢" 75.48 — _
Quek Leng Chan 265,615,622 6.75 265,615,622 6.75
Super Focus Company Limited 2,970,755,061" 75.48 - —
Top Notch Opportunities Limited 231,615,731 5.89 — —
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Notes:

(1)

2

3

(4

City Lion Profits Corp., ENB Topco 2 S.ar.l, Galaxy Entertainment Group Limited, Mark Liaison Limited, Permira Holdings Limited, Premium
Capital Profits Limited, Recurrent Profits Limited and Super Focus Company Limited are, among others, parties to certain arrangements 1o
which Section 317 of the SFO applies and each of them is deemed, for the purpose of the disclosure requirements in Part XV of the SFO,
to be interested in any Shares held by the other parties to such arrangements for so long as such arrangements are in place. Their
deemed interests pursuant te these arrangements were 1,656,867,855 Shares, 2,331,146,527 Shares, 2,970,755,061 Shares,
2,961,094,206 Shares, 2,179,868,061 Shares, 2,957,446,882 Shares, 2,856,251,022 Shares and 2,701,554,907 Shares respectively.

HSBC International Trustee Limited is the trustee of a discretionary family trust estabfished by Dr. Lui Che Woo as founder, which was
interested in 1,313,887,206 Shares.

ENB Topco 2 $.4r.) is deemed to have an interest in the Shares as a result of the direct holding of Shares by ENB Lux 2 5.8rl, its wholly-
owned subsidiary.

Permira Holdings Limited is deemed to have an interest in the Shares in its capacity as the holding company of the general partner and
manager of the funds which control the companies holding the Shares.

There was duplication of interests of:

®

{vi}

(vii)

{viit}

(ix)

1,313,887,206 Shares between Dr. Lui Che Woo, Mr. Francis Lui Yiu Tung, Ms. Paddy Tang Lui Wai Yu, City Lion
Profits Corp. and HSBC International Trustee Limited;

9,660,855 Shares between Dr. Lui Che Woa and Mark Liaison Limited;

13,308,179 Shares between Dr. Lui Che Woo and Premium Capital Profits Limited;
269,200,154 Shares between Dr. Lui Che Woo and Super Focus Company Limited;
114,504,039 Shares between Mr. Francis Lui Yiu Tung and Recurrent Profits Limited;

231,615,731 underlying shares of the Company between Mr. Francis Lui Yiu Tung and Top Notch Opportunities
Limited:;

265,615,622 Shares {both long and short positions) between Brightwealth Investments Limited, Davos Investment
Holdings Private Limited, Guoco Group Limited, Guoline Capital Assets Limited, Guoline Overseas Limited, HL
Holdings $dn Bhd, Hong Leong Company (Malaysia) Berhad, Hong Leong Investment Holdings Pte. Ltd., Kwek
Holdings Pte Ltd, Mr. Kwek Leng Kee and Mr. Quek Leng Chan;

624,605,534 Shares hetween Permira Holdings Limited and ENB Topce 2 S.arl; and

apart from the above, duplication of interests also existed among Dr. Lui Che Woo, Mr. Francis Lui Yiu Tung, Ms.
Paddy Tang Lui Wai Yu, City Lion Profits Corp., ENB Topco 2 S.ar.l, Galaxy Entertainment Group Limited, Mark
Liaison Limited, Permira Holdings Limited, Premium Capital Profits Limited, Recurrent Profits Limited and Super
Focus Company Limited, which are parties to certain arrangements to which Section 317 of the SFO applies. As a
result, each of them is deemed, for the purpose of the disclosure requirements in Part XV of the SFO, to be
interested in any Shares held by the other parties to such arrangements for so long as such arrangements are in
place. Their interests were duplicated to the extent as disclosed in the relevant notes above.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31st December 2007, the Company had not been notified by any persons who had
interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying shares of the Company which are required to be recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

Share option scheme

The share option scheme of the Company (the "Share Option Scheme”) was adopted on 30th May 2002. A summary of
the Share Option Scheme is set out below:

(1)

40

Purpose

To attract and retain the best quality personnel for the development of the Company's businesses; to provide
additional incentives to employees, consultants, agents, representatives, advisers, suppliers of goods ar services,
customers, contractors, business allies and joint venture partners; and to promote the long term financial success of
the Company by aligning the interests of option holders tc shareholders.

Participants
() any employee of the Company or any affiliate and any senior executive or director of the Company or any
affiliate; or

(iy  any consultant, agent, representative or adviser of the Company or any affiliate; or
(i} any person who provides goods or services to the Company or any affiliate; or

()  any customer or contractor of the Company or any affiliate; or

{v)  any business ally or joint venture partner of the Company or any affiliate; or

(vi) any trustee of any trust established for the benefit of employees; or

{vii) in relation to any of the above qualifying grantee who is an individual, a trust solely for the benefit of the
qualifying grantee or his immediate family members, and companies controlled solely by the gualifying
grantee or his immediate family members.

“Affiliate” means any company which is (a} a halding company of the Company; or (b) a subsidiary of a holding
company of the Company; or (¢} a subsidiary of the Company; or {d) a controlling shareholder of the Company; or
{e) a company controlled by a controlling shareholder of the Company; or (f} a company controlled by the
Company; or (g} an associated company of a holding company of the Company; or (h) an associated company of
the Company.

Total number of Shares available for issue

Mandate Limit — Subject to the paragraph below, the total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other schemes of the Company must not in
aggregate exceed 329,464,936 Shares, being 10% of the Shares in issue as at 29th June 2006, the date of passing
of an ordinary resolution of the sharehclders for refreshment of the Mandate Limit.
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Overriding Limit — The Company may by ordinary resolution of the shareholders refresh the Mandate Limit as
referred to in the above paragraph provided that the Company shall issue a circular to its shareholders before such
approval is sought. The overriding limit an the number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other schemes of the
Company must not exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to time.

As at the date of this annual report, the total number of Shares available for issue under the Share Option Scheme
was 279,006,936 Shares, which represented approximately 7.09% of the issued share capital of the Company on
that date.

Maximum entitlement of each participant
The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of options (whether exercised or ocutstanding} in
any 12-month period granted to each participant must not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue.

Subject to separate approval by the shareholders in general meeting with the relevant participant and his associates
{as defined in the Listing Rules) abstaining from voting provided the Company shall issue a circular to shareholders
before such approval is sought, the Company may grant options to a participant which would exceed this timit.

Option period

The period within which the Shares must be taken up under an option shall be determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion at the time of grant, but such period must not exceed 10 years from the date of grant of the
relevant option.

Minimum period for which an option must be held before it can vest
The minimum period, if any, for which an option must be held before it can vest shall be determined by the Board
in its absolute discretion. The Share Option Scheme itself does not specify any minimum holding period.

Payment on acceptance of the option
HK$1.00 is payable by the grantee to the Company on acceptance of the option offer. An offer must be accepted
within 14 days from the date of grant (or such longer period as the Board may specify in writing).

Basis of determining the subscription price
The subscription price shall be determined by the Board in its absolute discretion at the time of the grant but shall
not be less than the highest of:

(i)  the closing price of the Shares on the date of grant;

(iy  the average closing prices of the Shares for the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant;
and

(i}  the nominal value of a Share.
The remaining life of the Share Option Scheme

The life of the Share Option Scheme is 10 years commencing on its adoption date, being 30th May 2002 and wili
expire on 29th May 2012.
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The particulars of the movements in the options held by each of the Directors of the Company, the employees of
the Company in aggregate and other participants granted under the Share Option Scheme or under any other
share option schemes of the Company during the year ended 315t December 2007 were as follows:

N LimbedoOptions] :
U —— . y ¥
ite!dfa AN X cised) ftieldfat . &
Namel Dateloffgran 2607 jthelyear B F007) DricelF xercise]
: E : - SR : .
Lui Che Woo 20th May 1998 1,500,000 — 1,500,000 0.5333  20th May 1999 -
19th May 2008
30th Dec 199% 1,800,000 — 1,800,000 0.5216  30th Dec 2000 -
29th Dec 2009
28th Feb 2003 2,000,000 — 2,000,000 0.5140 1st Mar 2004 —
28th Feb 2013
21st Oct 2005 2,700,000 — 2,700,000 45900  22nd Oct 2005 -
21st Oct 2011
2ist Oct 2005 590,000 — 590,000 45900  22nd Oct 2006 -
21st Qct 2011
Francis Lui Yiu Tung 20th May 1998 1,000,000 — 1,000,000 0.5333  20th May 1999 -
19th May 2008
30th Dec 1999 1,600,000 — 1,600,000 0.5216  30th Dec 2000 -
29th Dec 2009
28th Feb 2003 1,870,000 — 1,870,000 0.5140 15t Mar 2004 —
28th Feb 2013
21st Oct 2005 6,000,000 — 6,000,000 45900  22nd Oct 2005 -
21st Oct 2011
21st Oct 2005 580,000 — 580,000 4500  22nd Qct 2006 —
21st Oct 2011
Chan Kai Nang 28th Feb 2003 110,000 — 110,000 0.5140 st Mar 2004 -
28th Feb 2013
21st Oct 2005 270,000 — 270,000 45900  22nd Oct 2006 -
21st Oct 2011
Joseph Chee Ying Keung 2135t Oct 2005 270,000 — 270,000 4.5800 22nd Oct 2006 -
21st Oct 2011
Paddy Tang Lui Wai Yu 21st Oct 2005 3,000,000 — 3,000,000 45900  22nd Oct 2005 -
21st Oct 2011
21st Oct 2005 400,000 — 400,000 4.5900  22nd Oct 2006 —
21st Oct 2011
Charles Cheung Wai Bun 21st Oct 2005 250,000 — 250,000 45800  22nd Oct 2006 -
21st Gt 2011
Mases Cheng Mo Chi 28th Feb 2003 300,000 300,000@ - 0.5140 15t Mar 2004 -
28th Feb 2013
21st Oct 2005 200,000 200,000% — 45900  22nd Cct 2006 -
21st Cet 2011
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N um bedoflO ptions!
Heldfay Exercised] Held¥at!
{stiianuacylduringktielsisgDecemben Exercise]
INamel Datefoffgranty 2607, yeary 2007 nriccBE xerciselperiod]
& KA
James Ross Anceli 2151 Oct 2005 250,000 — 250,000 4.5900 22nd Oct 2006 -
21st Oct 201
William Yip Shue Lam 215t Oct 2005 250,000 — 250,000 4.5900 22nd Oct 2006 -
21st Oct 2011
Anthony Thomas 21st Oct 2005 *2,500,000 — 2,500,000 4.5900 22nd Oct 2005 -
Christopher Carter 21st Oct 2011
Martin Clarke — — — — — -
Guido Paolo Gamucci — — — — — -_
Employees 20th May 1998 400,000 400,000 — 0.5333 20th May 1999 -
{in aggregate) 19th May 2008
30th Dec 1999 228,000 228,000 — 0.5216 30th Dec 2000 -
29th Dec 2009
28th Feb 2003 280,000 280,000 — 0.5140  1st Mar 2004 -
28th Feb 2013
21st Oct 2005 10,250,000 4,350,000 5,900,000 45900 22nd Oct 2005 -
21st Oct 2011
21st Oct 2005 3,724,000 1,846,000 1,878,000 45900 22nd Oct 2006 -
215t Oct 2011
Others : 215t Oct 2005 5,000,000 1,500,000 3,500,000 4,5800 22nd Oct 2005 -
21st Oct 201
21st Oct 2005 ©230,000 230,000% — 4,5800 22nd Oct 2006 -
21st Oct 2011
* representing share options held by Mr. Antheny Thomas Christopher Carter on his appointment date as a director of the Company
on 18th April 2007
* on reclassification of a total number of 2,500,000 share options held by Mr. Anthony Thomas Christopher Carter under
“Employees” to “Directors”
@ on reclassification of a total number of 1,730,000 share options held by an ex-director under “Directors” to "Others” following his
resignation as a director of the Company during the year
Notes;
a. The weighted average closing price of the Shares immediately before the date on which the options were exercised during the
year was HK37.11.
b. The weighted average closing price of the Shares immediately before the dates on which the options were exercised during the

year was HK$7.36.
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The weighted average closing price of the Shares immediately before the date on which the options were exercised during the
year was HK$7.50.

The weighted average closing price of the Shares immediately before the dates on which the options were exercised during the
year was HK$7.52.

The weighted average closing price of the Shares immediately before the dates on which the options were exercised during the
year was HK$7.47.

The weighted average closing price of the Shares immediately before the dates en which the options were exercised during the
year was HK$7.69.

The weighted average closing price of the Shares immediately before the dates on which the options were exercised during the
year was HK$7.48.

The weighted average closing price of the Shares immediately before the date on which the options were exercised during the
year was HK$7.92.

Except for the options granted on 21st October 2005 exercisable within the period from 22nd October 2005 to
21st October 2011 at an exercise price of HK$4.59 per Share, all options referred to above are subject to a one-
year vesting period.

No options were granted or cancelled during the year,
The consideration paid by each grantee for each grant of options is HK$1.00.
Except for the Share Option Scheme, at no time during the year was the Company or its subsidiaries a party to any

arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in
or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

Connected transaction

On 8th October 2007, a FRN Conversion and Repayment Agreement was entered into between the Company and City
Lion Profits Corp. and Recurrent Profits Limited {both of which are connected persons of the Company by virtue of their
relationship with Dr. Lui Che Woo and Mr. Francis Lui Yiu Tung respectively) pursuant to which, among other things, the
fixed rate notes in the aggregate principal amount and accrued interest of HK$2,371,805,067 issued by the Company
were fully repaid by conversion of HK$1,320,289,680 of the principal amount into 156,804,000 new Shares at a price of
HK$8.42 each and the balance by cash repayment. Such agreement was approved by independent shareholders at the
extracrdinary general meeting of the Company held on 21st November 2007 and completed on 27th November 2007.
Further details of the agreement were included in the announcement of the Company dated 11th October 2007.
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Continuing connected transactions

1. The Company's indirect subsidiaries continued to lease from Jia Hui Da Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. Shanghai
(FSHEEREMAERBELEMR AT, an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of K. Wah international Holdings
Limited ("KWIH"), the office units 1802-1804 of Shanghai K. Wah Centre, No. 1010, Huaihai Zhong Road, Xuhui
District, Shanghai, the PRC pursuant to the Tenancy Agreements {ccllectively the “Tenancy Agreements”) entered
into on 2nd June 2005 for a 3-year term from 1st June 2005 to 31st May 2008, details of which were included in
the joint announcement dated 23rd August 2005 issued by the Company and KWIH. These continuing connected
transactions were carried out during the year within the annual cap for 2007.

Each of the independent non-executive directors of the Company has reviewed the transactions under the Tenancy
Agreements and confirms that the transactions have been entered into;

{1} in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Company;
{2} on normal commercial terms; and

{3} in accordance with the Tenancy Agreements governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole,

The auditor of the Company, PricewaterhouseCoopers, has confirmed to the Board of Directors of the Company
that:

(1}  the transactions have received the approval of the Company's Board of Directors;

(2) the transactions have been entered into in accordance with the Tenancy Agreements governing the
transactions; and

(3) the aggregate annual rental under the Tenancy Agreements amounted to HK$2,015,020 for the year ended
31st December 2007 and is the same of the corresponding annual cap.

2. The guaranteed unsecured revolving loan facility in the maximum amount of HK$330 million granted by a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, namely Brighten Lion Limited to Great Place Developments Limited, a wholly
owned subsidiary of KWIH, pursuant {0 a loan agreement entered into on 22nd luly 2002 expired on the final
maturity date of 12th September 2007. No amount was ocutstanding under such facility at any time during the
year.

Financial summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from
the audited consolidated financial statements and adjusted as appropriate, is shown on page 30 of this annual report.
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Major customers and suppliers

For the year ended 31st December 2007, the aggregate amount of turnover attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers represented less than 30% of the Group's total turnover; and the aggregate amount of purchases {not
including the purchases of items which are of a capital nature) attributable to the Group's five largest suppliers
represented less than 30% of the Group’s total purchases.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5%
of the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in the five largest customers or suppliers {not including of a
capital nature).

Management contracts

No substantial contracts concerning the management and administration of the Company were eniered into or existed
during the year.

Donations

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year amounted to HK$10,668,000 (2006:
HK$13,349,000).

Sufficiency of public float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the Directors of the

Company at the date of this annual report, there was a sufficient public float of the Company as required under the
Listing Rules.

Auditor

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31st December 2007 have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers, who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Dr. Lui Che Woo
Chairman

Hong Kong, 18th April 2008
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

PRICEWATERHOUSE(QOPERS

BOERAKESHGEREN PricewaterhouseCoopers

22/F, Prince’s Building
Central, Hong Kong

To the Shareholders of Galaxy Entertainment Group Limited
{incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Galaxy Entertainment Group Limited {the “Company”) set out
on pages 49 to 124, which comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31st December 2007, and the
consolidated profit and loss statement, the consolidated cash flow statement and the consolidated statement of changes
in equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatary notes.

Responsibility of the directors for the financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the true and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Responsibility of the auditor

Our respaonsibility is to express an opinion on these consclidated financial statements based on our audit and to report
our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accardance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Crdinance and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the internal control of the Company. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
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PRICEWATERHOUSE(COPERS

EERKEBESHEBEISHN PricewaterhouseCoopers

22/F, Prince’s Building
Central, Hong Kong

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
Opinion

In our apinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and
of the Group as at 31st December 2007 and of the loss and cash flows of the Group for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 18th April 2008
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For the year ended 31st December 2007

CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS STATEMENT

| 2007 2996
‘L HK$'000 RSO
Revenue 7 13,035,439 4,669,495
Cost of sales 8 (11,383,472) {4,255,222)
Gross profit 1,651,967 414,273
Other income 8 415,732 262,325
Administrative expenses (928,304) {683,422)
Other operating expenses (1.058,113) (1,025,623)
Operating profit/(loss) 8 81,282 (1,032,447)
finance costs 10 (557.395) {522,226)
Share of profits less losses of

Jointly controlled entities 52 29,623

Associated companies — (612)
Loss before taxation (476.061) (1,525,662)
Taxation 1 (26,172) (5.848)
Loss for the year (502.233) (1,531,510)
Attributable to:

Shareholders 31 (466,200) (1,531,546}

Minority interests (36,033) 36

{502,233) (1,531,510}
HK cents HK cents

Loss per share 13

Basic {13.8) (46.5)

Diluted (13.8) (46.5)
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As at 31st December 2007

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

2007 AN b |
. HK$'000 EKE N o8 |
L - —— N . I ]
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, ptant and equipment 15 4,731,187 3,882,504
Investment properties 16 62,500 62,500
Leasehold land and land use rights 17 1,580,777 1,621,917
Intangible assets 18 14,520,665 15,520,486
Jointly controlled entities 20 506,193 386,520
Associated companies 21 730 730
Derivative financial instruments 22 1,155 47,072
Other non-current assets 23 599,602 904,625
22,002,809 22,426,354
Current assets
Inventories 24 90,449 94,522
Debtors and prepayments 25 1,039,336 689,085
Amounts due from jointly controlled entities 26 339,168 174,053
Taxation recoverable 1,299 2,546
Other investments 27 57,768 39,241
Cash and bank balances 28 8,230,362 5,783,197
9,758,382 6,782,644
Total assets 31,761,191 29,208,998
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2007 20006
Nl HKS$'000 AxG o !
!
EQUITY
Share capital 29 393,564 329,612
Reserves 31 18,013,088 13,303,187
Shareholders’ funds 18,406,652 13,632,799
Minority interests 531,791 490,700
Total equity 18,938,443 14,123,499
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 32 6,010,571 8,439,965
Deferred taxation liabilities 33 1,781,500 1,778,588
Derivative financial instruments 22 477,531 573,109
Provisions 34 135,622 120,151
8,405,224 10,911,813
Current liabilities
Creditors and accruals 35 3,901,630 3,633,551
Amount due to a jointly controlled entity 26 2177 294
Current portion of borrowings 32 495,247 532,888
Taxation payable 18,470 6,953
4,417,524 4,173,686
Total liabilities 12,822,748 15,085,499
Total equity and liabilities 31,761,191 29,208,998

Francis Lui Yiu Tung
Director

Chan Kai Nang
Director
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COMPANY BALANCE SHEET

As at 31st December 2007

(e e s el el el e
‘ 2007 e
3 e HK$'000 SE0eE
L. _ _ _ S s
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Subsidiaries 19 1 1
Current assets
Amounts due from subsidiaries 19 14,831,229 14,973,752
Loans receivable from subsidiaries 19 381,208 544,508
Debtors and prepayments 25 21,378 1,813
Taxation recoverable 339 339
Cash and bank balances 28 4,548,722 1,853,249
19,782,876 17,373,661
Total assets 19,782,877 17,373,662
EQUITY
Share capital 29 393,564 329,612
Reserves 31 17,172,132 11,993,172
Shareholders’ funds 17,565,696 12,322,784
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 32 1,320,525 3,882,559
Derivative financial instruments 32(c) 468,858 573,109
1,789,383 4 455 668
Current liabilities
Amounts due to subsidiaries i9 —_ 172,955
Creditors and accruals 35 30,198 16,555
Current portion of borrowings 32 397,600 405,700
427,798 595,210
Total liabilities 2,217,181 5,050,878
Total equity and liabilities 19,782,877 17,373,662

Francis Lui Yiu Tung

Director
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For the year ended 31st December 2007

-

2007

1
2005 |
|
I

MNiosites HK$'000 HIXG OO0 |
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 36(a) 1,271,060 2,232,518
Hong Kong profits tax paid {4,017) (2,897}
Mainland China income tax and Macau complementary tax paid {6,477) {275)
Interest paid {646,454} (529,100}
Net cash from operating activities 614,112 1,700,246
Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (1,303,467) {2,727,143)
Purchase of leasehold land and land use rights {(104) (22,463)
Purchase of intangible assets (4,.268) (17,767)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 18,022 5,575
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary 36(b) 49,217 —
Proceeds from partial disposal of jointly controlled entities 102,257 —
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired — (23,508)
Acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary — {6,327)
Investments in jointly controlled entities and an associated company (110,686) (64,610)
{Increase)/decrease in amounts due from jointly controlled entities

and associated companies (157,423) 16,030
Decrease in amount due to a jointly controlled entity (3.284) {14,103)
Deferred expenditure (13,232) (977)
Decrease/(increase) in deferred receivable 2,730 (4,047)
Decrease/(increase) in finance lease receivable 38,419 (174,270)
Decrease/(increase) in non-current investrments 7.212 (81,682)
Proceeds from disposal of listed investments 49,902 33,730
Proceeds from disposal of non-current investments 5,509 —
interest received 205,357 161,734
Net gain from cross-currency swaps for hedging 27,298 11,626
Decrease in restricted bank deposits 209,153 —
Dividends received from jointly controlled entities 21,504 6,565
Dividends received from unlisted and listed investments 17,018 9,578
Net cash used in investing activities {838,866} (2,892,059}
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For the year ended 31st December 2007

|

i
!

, 2007 2008
. HK$'000 RS 800
L - SR
Cash flows from financing activities
Issue of new shares 3,948,508 18,626
New bank loans 135,063 287,420
Repayment of bank loans (240,460) (50,540}
Issue of convertible nctes -— 1,872,000
Issue cost of convertible notes — (25,787)
Repayment of fixed rate notes {1,187,939) {172,435)
Capital element of finance lease payments (3.282) (200}
Contribution/(repayment of loans) from minority interests 13,584 (18,200)
Dividends paid to minority interests {4,582) (2,911
Net cash from financing activities 2,660,892 1,907,973
Net increase in cash and bank balances 2,436,138 716,160
Cash and bank balances at beginning of year 5,783,197 5,068,214
Changes in exchange rates 11,027 (1,177
Cash and bank balances at end of year 8,230,362 5,783,197
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31st December 2007

Share) ShareholdersAMIncity)

capital fundsEElinterests] fiotal

HIXS 200 HIKST00 G a0 HIKSOE0 HIRG e

At 1st January 2006 329,058 14,603,396 14,932,454 491,910 15,424,364
Change in fair value of non-current investments — 122,004 122,004 — 122,004
Exchange differences — 40,528 40,528 801 41,329
Change of fair value of cash flow hedges — 47,072 47,072 — 47,072
Net income recognised directly in equity — 209,604 209,604 801 210,405
Acquisition of subsidiaries — — — 2,926 2,926
Acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary -— — — {2,062) (2,062)
Issue of shares upon exercise of share options 554 18,072 18,626 — 18,626
Fair value of share options — 3,661 3,661 — 3,661
Dividend paid to minority interests — — — (2,911} (2,911}
Loss for the year — {1,531,546) {1,531,546) 36 (1,531,510)
554  (1,509,813) {1,509,259) (2,011 (1,511,270)

At 31st December 2006 329,612 13,303,187 13,632,799 430,700 14,123,499
Change in fair vatue of non-current investments — (14,938} (14,938) 1,817 (13,121)
Exchange differences — 47,995 47,995 8,562 56,557
Change of fair value of cash flow hedges — (61,802) {61,802) (316) (62,118)
Net {loss)/income recognised directly in equity — (28,745) {28,745) 10,063 (18,682)
Injection of minority interests — —_ _ 71,643 71,643
Issue of new shares 63,019 5,167,851 5,230,870 — 5,230,870
Issue of shares upon exercise of share options 933 36,995 37,928 — 37,928
Dividend paid to minority interests — — — (4,582) (4,582}
Loss for the year — {466,200) (466,200) (36,033) (502,233}
63,952 4,738,646 4,802,598 31,028 4,833,626

At 31st December 2007 393,564 18,013,088 18,406,652 531,791 18,938,443
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

General Information

Galaxy Entertainment Group Limited (the “Company”} is a limited liability company incorporated in Hong Keng and
has its listing on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The address of its registered office
and principal place of business is Room 1606, 16th Floor, Hutchison House, 10 Harcourt Road, Central, Hong
Kong.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries {together the “Group”) are operation in casino games of
chance or games of other forms, provision of hospitality and related services in Macau, and the manufacture, sale
and distribution of construction materials in Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland China.

Basis of Preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRS") issued by the Hong Kong tnstitute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA™) under the
historical cost convention as modified by the revaluation of investment properties, non-current investments,
financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative financial instruments), which are carried at fair values.

The preparation of consclidated financial statements in conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
accounting policies of the Group. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in note 5 below.

(@) The adoption of new/revised HKFRS
in 2007, the Group adopted the following new standard, amendment and interpretations of HKFRS issued by
the HKICPA which are effective for the accounting periods beginning on or after 1st January 2007 and
relevant to its operations.

HKAS 1 Amendment Presentation of financial statements: Capital Disclosures
HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

HK{FRIC)-Int 8 Scope of HKFRS 2

HK(FRICH-Int 9 Reassessment ¢of Embedded Derivatives

HK(IFRIC)-Int 10 Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment

The Group has assessed the impact of the adoption of these new standard, amendment and interpretations
and considered that there was no significant impact on the Group’s results and financial position nor any
substantial changes in the Group’s accounting policies, whereas the adoption of HKAS 1 Amendment and
HKFRS 7 introduces new disclosures relating to financial instruments and capital management. There is no
impact on the classification and valuation of the Group’s financial instruments.
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2. Basis of Preparation (Continued)

(b) Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards which are
not yet effective
The following new standard, interpretation and amendments to existing standards, which have been
published and are relevant to the Group’s operations and consolidated financial statements, which are
mandatory for the accounting periods beginning on or after 1st January 2008 or later periods but which the
Group has not early adopted:

Effective from 1st January 2008
HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 HKFRS 2 — Group and Treasury Share Transactions

Effective from 1st January 2009

HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of financial statements

HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs

HKFRS 2 Amendment Share-based Payment Vesting Conditions and Cancellations
HKFRS 8 Operating Segments

Effective from 1st July 2009
HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
HKFRS 3 {Revised) Business Combination

The Group has already commenced an assessment of the impact of the above standards and interpretation
but is not yet in a position to state whether substantial changes to the Group's accounting policies and
presentation of the consolidated financial statements will be resulted.

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented.

3.1 Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
made up to 31st December and the share of post acquisition results and reserves of its jointly controlled
entities and associated companies attributable to the Group.

Results attributable to subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and associated companies acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the cansalidated profit and loss statement from the date of acquisition or
to the date of disposal as applicable.

The profit or loss on disposal of subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities or associated companies is calculated

by reference to the share of net assets at the date of disposal including the attributable amount of goodwilt
not yet written off.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

58

3.2

3.3

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies
generally accompanying a direct or indirect shareholding of more than one half of the voting power. The
existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered
when assessing whether the Group controls ancther entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group and are de-
consolidated from the date that control ceases.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The
cost of an acquisition is measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued and
liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable to the acquisition.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of any minority
interest. The excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair value of the share of the identifiable ret assets
acquired by the Group is recorded as goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is recognised directly in the profit and loss statement.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between Group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

In the balance sheet of the Company, investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less provision for
impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
income.

Minority interests
Minority interests represent the interest of outside shareholders in the operating results and net assets of
subsidiaries.

The Group applies a policy of treating transactions with minority interests as transactions with parties
external to the Group. Disposals of equity interests to minority interests result in gains and losses for the
Group that are recorded in the profit and loss statement. Purchases of equity interests from minority interests
result in goodwill, being the difference between any consideration paid and the relevant share of the
carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary being acquired.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

3.4 Jointly controlled entities and jointly controlied operations

35

A jointly controlled entity is a joint venture in respect of which a contractual arrangement is established
between the participating venturers and whereby the Group together with the venturer undertake an
economic activity which is subject to joint contral and none of the venturers has unilateral control over the
economic activity,

The share of post-acquisition profits or losses of jointly controlled entities attributable to the Group is
recognised in the profit and foss statement, and the share of post-acquisition movements in reserves is
recognised in reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying amount
of the investment. When the share of losses of the Group in a jointly controlled entity equals or exceeds its
interast in the jointly controlled entity, including any other unsecured receivable, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the jointly
controlled entity.

In the balance sheet of the Company, investments in jointly controlled entities are stated at cost less
provision for impairment losses. The results of jointly controlled entities are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend income.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its jointly controlled entities are eliminated to the
extent of the interest in the jointly controlled entities held by the Group. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of the
jointly controlled entities have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies of the
Group.

Interests in unincorporated jointly controlled operations are accounted for using the proportionate
consclidation method under which the share of individual assets and liabilities, income and expenses and
cash flows of jointly controlled operations is included in the relevant components of the consolidated
financial statements.

Associated companies

An associated company is a company, not being a subsidiary or a joint venture, in which an equity interest is
held for the long-term and significant influence is exercised in its management, generally accompanying a
shareholding of between 20% to 50% of the voting rights.

Investments in associated companies are accounted for under the equity method of accounting and are
initially recognised at cost. The investments in associated companies of the Group include goodwill, net of
any accumulated impairment loss, identified on acquisition.

The share of post-acquisition profits or losses of associated companies attributable to the Group is
recognised in the profit and loss statement, and the share of post-acquisition movements in reserves is
recognised in reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying amount
of the investment. When the share of losses of the Group in an associated company equals or exceeds its
interest in the associated company, including any other unsecured receivable, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the associated company.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

3.5 Associated companies (Continued)
Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associated companies are eliminated to the
extent of the interest in the associated companies held by the Group. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
associated companies have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies of the
Group.

3.6 Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the share of the net
identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiary, jointly controlled entity and associated company attributable to
the Group at the effective date of acquisition, and, in respect of an increase in holding in a subsidiary, the
excess of the cost of acquisition and the carrying amount of the proportion of the minority interests
acquired. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments
issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable to the
acquisition.

Goodwill on acquisition of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets while goodwill on acquisition of jointly
controlled entities and associated companies is included in investments in jointly controlled entities and
associated companies. Goodwill is tested for impairment and carried at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Impairment losses on goodwill are not reversed.

If the cost of acquisition is less than the fair value of the net assets acquired or the carrying amount of the
proportion of the minority interests acquired, the difference is recognised directly in the profit and loss
statement.

3.7 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets.
Subsequent costs are included in the carrying amount of the asset or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the asset will flow to the
Group and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the profit and loss statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.

No depreciation is provided on assets under construction until it is completed and is ready in use.
Depreciation of other property, plant and equipment is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their cost to their residual values over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Leasehold improvement Over the remaining period of the lease
Buildings 50 years

Gaming equipment 3 to 5 years

Other assets 2 to 10 years

|
|
I
| Plant and machinery 4 to 20 years
|
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting I%‘olicies (Continued)

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10 Computer software

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The residual values and useful lives of the assets are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance
sheet date. Where the carrying amount of an asset is greater than its recoverable amount, it is written down
immediately to its estimated recoverable amount. i

Gains and losses on disposal is determined as the differénce between the net sales proceed and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in the profit and loss statement.

Investment properties |

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for cépital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied
by the Group, is classified as investment property. Investment property comprises freehold land, land held
under operating leases and buildings held under finance leases. Land held under operating leases is classified
and accounted for as investment property when the rest of the definition of investment property is met. The
operating lease is accounted for as if it were a finance lease.

investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related transaction costs. After initial
recognition, investment property is carried at fair value. Fair value is based on valuations carried out annually
by external valuers. Changes in fair values are recognisecli in the profit and loss statement.

|
Subsequent expenditure is charged to the carrying amount of the asset only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the asset will flow to the Group and the cost of the asset can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the profit and loss statement
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

|
If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified as property, plant and equipment, and
its fair value at the date of reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes. Property that is being
constructed or developed for future use as investment property is classified as properties under development
and carried at cost until construction or development is complete, at which time it is reclassified and
subsequently accounted for as investment property. |

|
If a property becomes an investment property because its use has changed, any difference resulting between
the carrying amount and the fair value of this property at the date of transfer is recognised in equity as
revaluation of property, plant and equipment, Howevelr, if the fair value gives rise to a reversal of the
previous impairment loss, this write-back is recognised in, the profit and loss staterment.

Gaming licence
Gaming licence is carried at cost less accumulated amortisation. It has a finite useful life and is amortised
over its estimated useful life of 17 years on a straight-lin? basis.

Costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific computer software licences are capitalised and are
amortised over their estimated useful lives of three years on a straight line basis. Costs associated with
developing or maintaining computer software programmes are recognised as an expense as incurred.

l
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

3.11 Impairment of investments in subsidiaries, associated companies and

non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or have not yet available for use are not subject to amortisation and
tested annually for impairment. Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
far the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of the fair value of an asset less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows. Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal
of the impairment at each reporting date.

3.12 Deferred expenditure
Quarry site development represents costs of constructing infrastructure at the guarry site to facilitate
excavation. Overburden removal costs are incurred to bring the quarry site into a condition ready for
excavation. Quarry site improvements represent estimated costs for environmental restoration and any
changes in the estimates are adjusted in the carrying value of the quarry site improvements. These costs are
amortised over the estimated useful lives of the quarries and sites concerned using the straight-line method.

Pre-operating costs are expensed as they are incurred.

3.13Financial assets
The Group dassifies its financial assets in the categories of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
{including other investments), loans and receivable, and available-for-sale financial assets. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition depending on the purpose far which
the investments were acquired and re-evaluates this designation at every balance sheet date.

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or foss {including other investments)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are classified as current assets if they are either held
for trading or are expected to be realised within twelve manths of the balance sheet date. A financial
asset is classified in this category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term or if
so designated by management. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially
recognised at fair value and subsequently carried at fair value. Transaction costs are expensed in the
profit and loss statement.

{b) Loans and receivable
Loans and receivable are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payment terms that
are not quoted in an active market, They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater
than twelve months after the balance sheet date, which are classified as non-current assets. Loans and
receivable are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

3.13Financial assets (Continued)
{(c) Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated in this category or not
classified in any of the other categories. They aré included in the balance sheet under non-current
investments unless management intends to dispose of the investment within twelve months of the
balance sheet date. Available-for-sale financial 1assets are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction cost and subsequently carried at fair value.

Regular way purchases and sales of investments are recbgnised on trade-date, which is the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the investments have expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Realised and unrealised gains and losses arising from
changes in fair value of the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are included in the profit and
loss statement. Unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in fair value non-monetary available-for-sale
investments are recognised in equity. When available-for-sale investments are sold or impaired, the
accumulated fair value adjustments are included in the profit and loss statement as gains or losses from
investments.

The fair values of quoted investments are based on current bid prices. If the market for a financial asset is
not active and for unlisted securities, the Group establishes fair value by using valuation techniques. These
include the use of recent arm's length transactions, reference to other instruments that are substantially the
same, discounted cash flow analysis, and option pricing inodels, refined to reflect the specific circumstances
of the issuer.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired. In the case of available-for-sale investments, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the investment below its cost is considered as an indicator in determining whether
the investments are impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale investments, the cumulative
loss measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that investment previously recognised in the profit and loss statement is removed from equity and
recognised in the profit and loss statement. Impairment losses recognised in the profit and loss statement on
available-for-sale investments are not reversed through the profit and loss statement.

3.14 Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments, including put option of shares and embedded derivative liability of
convertible notes, are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and
are subsequently remeasured at their fair value. |

1
The Group documents at the inception of the transaction the relationship between hedging instruments and
hedged items, as well as its risk management objective and strategy for undertaking various hedge
transactions. The Group also documents its assessment, both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of
whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in
cash flows of hedged items.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

3.14Derivative financial instruments (Continued)
The fair value of hedging derivative is classified as a non-current asset or liability where the remaining
maturity of the hedge item is more than twelve months, and as a current asset or liability, where the
remaining maturity of the hedged item is less than twelve months. Trading derivatives are classified as a
current asset or liability.

For fair value hedge, where the instruments are designated to hedge {fair value of recognised assets or
liabilities, changes in the fair value of these derivatives and the changes in the fair value of the hedged assets
or liabilities attributable to the hedged risk are recognised in the profit and loss statement as finance costs.
When the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, the adjustment to the carrying amount
of & hedged item for which effective interest method is used is amortised to profit or loss over the period to
maturity.

For cash flow hedge, where instruments are designated to hedge against the variability in cash flows
attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability or a highly probable forecast
transaction, the effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as
cash flow hedges are recognised in equity. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised
immediately in the profit and loss statement within finance costs. Amounts accumulated in equity are
recycled in the profit and loss statement in the financial period when the hedged item affects profit or loss.
However, when the forecast transaction that is hedged results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or
liability, the gains and losses previously deferred in equity are transferred from equity and included in the
initial measurement of the cost of the asset or liability.

Changes in fair value of any derivative instruments that do net qualify for hedge accounting are recognised
immediately in the profit and loss statement.

3.15Debtors and prepayments

Debtors and prepayments are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment, which is established when there is
objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the criginal terms
of receivable. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy
and default or delinquency in payments are considered indicators that the trade receivable is impaired. The
amount of the provision is the difference between the carrying amount of the asset and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of debtors
is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the provision is recognised in the
profit and loss statement within other operating expenses. When a debtor is uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account for debtors. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to the profit and loss statement against other cperating expenses.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
3.16Inventories '
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of construction materials is
calculated on the weighted average basis, comprising materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion
of production overhead expenditure. Cost of playing cards is determined using the first-in, first-out method
and food and beverages using the weighted average method. Net realisable value is determined on the basis
of anticipated sales proceeds less estimated selling expenses.

3.17 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and bank balances, deposits with banks and financial institutions
repayable within three months from the date of placement less bank overdrafts.

3.18 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental ¢osts directly attributable to the issue of new shares or
options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

When the Company re-purchases its equity share capital, the consideration paid, including any directly
attributable incremental costs, net of income taxes, is deducted from equity attributable to the equity holders
and the shares are cancelled.

3.19Borrowings |
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds, net of transaction costs, and
the redemption value is recognised in the profit and loss statement over the period of the borrowings using
the effective interest method. |
Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least twelve months after the balance sheet date.

3.20Convertible notes |

{a} Convertible notes with equity component
Convertible notes that can be converted to equity share capital at the option of the holders, where the
number of shares that would be issued on conversion and the value of the consideration that would
be received do not vary, are accounted for as compound financial instruments which contain both a
liability component and an equity component.

At initial recognition, the liability component of the convertible notes is determined using a market
interest rate for an equivalent non-convertible note. The remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the
conversion option as equity component. Transaction costs that relate to the issue of a compound
financial instrument are allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion to the allocation
of proceeds. !
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

66

3.20 Convertible notes (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Convertible notes with equity component (Continued)

The liability component is subsequently carried at amortised cost, calculated using the effective interest
method, until extinguished on conversion or maturity. The equity component is recognised in equity,
net of any tax effects.

When the note is converted, the relevant equity component and the carrying amount of the liability
component at the time of conversion are transferred to share capital and share premium for the shares
issued. When the note is redeemed, the relevant equity component is transferred to retained profit.

Convertible notes without equity component
All other convertible notes which do not exhibit the characteristics mentioned in (a) above are
accounted for as hybrid instruments consisting of an embedded derivative and a host debt contract.

At initial recognition, the embedded derivative of the convertible notes is accounted for as derivative
financial instruments and is measured at fair value. Any excess of proceeds over the amount initially
recognised as the derivative component is recognised as a liability under the contract. Transaction costs
that relate to the issue of the convertible notes are allocated 1o the liability under the contract.

The derivative component is subsequently carried at fair value and changes in fair value are recognised
in the profit and loss statement. The liability under the contract is subsequently carried at amortised
cost, calculated using the effective interest method, until extinguished on conversion or maturity.

When the note is converted, the carrying amount of the liability under the contract together with the
fair value of the relevant derivative component at the time of conversion are transferred to share
capital and share premium as consideration for the shares issued, When the note is redeemed, any
difference between the redemption amount and the carrying amounts of both components is
recognised in the profit and loss statement.

3.21Leases
Leases that substantially transfer to the Group all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets are accounted
for as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the inception of the lease at the lower of the fair value
of the leased assets or the present value of the minimum lease payments. Each lease payment is allocated
between the capital and finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the remaining lease liability. The
corresponding lease obligations, net of finance charges, are incuded under current and non-current
liabilities. The finance charges are charged to the profit and loss statement over the lease periods. Assets
held under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of their estimated useful lives or the lease periods.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

3.21 Leases (Continued)
Assets |eased to third parties under agreements that transfer substantially all the risk and rewards incident to
ownership of the relevant assets to the lessees are classified as investments in finance leases. The present
value of the lease payments is recognised as a receivable in the balance sheet. The difference between the
gross receivable and the present value of the receivable is recognised as unearned finance income. Gross
earnings under finance leases are recognised over the term of the lease using the net investment method,
which reflects a constant periodic rate of return on the net investment in the leases.

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Rentals payable under operating leases, net of any incentives received from the
lessors, are charged to the profit and loss statement on a straight line basis over the period of the leases. The
up-front prepayments made for leasehold land and land use rights are amortised on a straight-line basis over
the period of the lease or where there is impairment, the impairment is expensed in the profit and loss
statement. The amortisation of the leasehold land and land use rights is capitalised under the relevant assets
when the property on the leasehold land is under construction.

3.22 Creditors and accruals
Trade creditors are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

3.23 Provisions
Provisions are recognised when there is a present legal é)r constructive obligation as a result of past events,
and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate of the amount ¢can be made. Where a provisionJ is expected to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is
recognised as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation, before any tax effects, that reflect current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risk specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

3.24 Current and deferred taxation
The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at
the balance sheet date in the countries where the Company, its subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and
associated companies operate and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation
and establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities. ;
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

3.24 Current and deferred taxation (Continued)

Deferred taxation is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and labilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, if the deferred tax arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss,
it is not accounted for, Deferred tax is determined using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax
asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is settled.

Deferred taxation assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred taxation is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, jointly
controlled entities and associated companies, except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

3.25Employee benefits

. (a) Employees entitlement, benefits and bonus

Contributions to publicly or privately administered defined contribution retirement or pension plans on
a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis are recognised as employee benefit expense in the financial
period when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash
refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave and long-service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date. Employee entitlements to sick
leave and maternity leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Provisions for bonus plans due wholly within twelve months after the balance sheet date are
recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the cbligation can be made.

(b) Share-based compensation

The fair value of the employee services received in exchange for the grant of the options under the
equity-settled, share-based compensation plan is recognised as an expense. The total amount to be
expensed over the vesting period is determined by reference to the fair value of the options granted,
excluding the impact of any non-market vesting conditions. Non-market vesting conditions are included
in assumptions about the number of options that are expected to become exercisable. At each balance
sheet date, estimates of the number of options that are expected to become exercisable are revised.
The impact of the revision of criginal estimates, if any, is recognised in the profit and loss statement
over the remaining voting period with a corresponding adjustment to equity. The proceeds received net
of any directly attributable transaction costs are credited to share capital and share premium when the
options are exercised.
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3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

3.26 Borrowing costs !
Interest and related costs on borrowings directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to complete and prepare the assets for its
intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. All other borrowing costs are charged to
the profit and loss statement in the financial period in which they are incurred.

3.27 Revenue recognition
Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration for the sale of goods and services provided in the
ordinary course of the activities of the Group. Revenue is'shown, net of value-added tax, returns, rebates and
discounts, allowance for credit and other revenue reducing factors.

Revenue is recognised when the amount can be reliably measured, it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the Group and specific criteria for each of the activities have been met. The amount of
revenue is not considered to be reliably measurable until all contingencies relating to the activities have been
resolved. Estimates are based on historical results, taking into consideration the type of customers, the type
of transactions and the specifics of each arrangement.

(a)

(b)

{c)

{d)

(e)

(9

(g)

Gaming operations

Revenue from gaming operations, representing the net gaming wins, is recognised when the relevant
services have been rendered and is measured at the entitlement of economic inflows of the Group
from the business. !

Hotel operations
Revenue from hotel room rental and food and bevérages sales is recognised when the relevant services
have been rendered.

Construction materials
Sales of construction materials are recognised \irvhen the goods are delivered and legal title is
transferred to customers.

Rental income
Rental income, net of any incentives given to the lessee, is recognised over the periods of the
respective leases on a straight-line basis.

Administrative fee
Administrative fee is recognised when the services have been rendered.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis using the effective interest method, taking
into account the principal amounts outstanding and the interest rates applicable.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.
I
{
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

3.28 Foreign currencies
Transactions included in the consolidated financial statements of each of the entities in the Group are
measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Group operates (the
“functional currency”}. The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollar, which is the
functional and presentation currency of the Campany.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at
the exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date are recognised in the profit and loss statement, except
when deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow hedges or gualifying net investment hedges.

Transiation differences on non-monetary financial assets held at fair value through profit or loss is reported
as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation difference on non-monetary available-for-sale investments is
included in equity.

The results and financial position of all the entities in the Group that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

() assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at the exchange rate ruling at the
date of that balance sheet;

(il income and expenses for each profit and loss statement are translated at average exchange rates; and
(i)  all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment in foreign entities,
and of borrowings and other currency instruments designated as hedges of such investments, are taken to
equity. When a foreign operation is partially disposed of or sold, such exchange differences are recognised in
the profit and loss statement as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date.

3.29S5egment reporting
A business segment is a group of assets and operations engaged in providing products or services that are
subject to risks and returns that are different from those of other business segments. A geographical
segment is engaged in providing products or services within a particular economic envircnment that are
subject to risks and returns that are different from those of segments operating in other economic
environments.
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3.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

3.30Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to the shareholders of the Company is recognised as a liability in the consolidated
financial statements in the financial period in which the dividend payable becomes legal and constructive
obligations of the Company. |

Financial Risk Management

The major financial instruments of the Group include tradeiand other receivables, amounts due from related
parties, cash and bank balances, restricted bank deposits, non-current and other investments, trade and other
creditors, amounts due to related parties and borrowings. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The activities of the Group expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk {including foreign
exchange risk, interest rate risk, and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. Management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

The Group seeks to minimise the effects of these risks by using derivative financial instruments to hedge these risk
exposures. It does not enter into or trade derivative financial instruments for speculative purpose. The management
of the Group identifies, evaluates and manages significant finlancial risks in the individual operating units of the
Group.

4.1 Financial risk factors
(a) Market risk

(i} Foreign exchange risk ‘
The Group operates in Hong Kong, MacaLzl and Mainland China and is exposed to foreign
exchange risk arising from various currency expasures, primarily with respect to the US dollar, the
Renminbi and the Macau Patacas. Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial
transactions, recognised assets and liabilities, which are denominated in a currency that is not
the functional currency of the Group. |

Foreign currency exposures are covered by forward contracts and cross-currency interest rate
swap contracts whenever appropriate.

As at 31st December 2007, the Group had entered into cross-currency interest rate swap
contracts, which were designated as cash flow hedges and fair value hedges to hedge the
foreign currency risk on the Guaranteed Notes (see note 32{b)).

At 31st December 2007, if Hong Kong dollar had weakened or strengthened by 0.1% against
the United States dollar with all other variables held constant, loss after tax for the year would
have been HK$473,000 (2006: HK$1,548,000) higher or lower, mainly as a result of foreign
exchange gainsfosses arising on translation of US dollar-denominated bank balances and
debtors, borrowings and fair value change in derivative financial instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. Financial Risk Management (Continued)

72

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) WMarket risk (Continued)
(i)  Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising from equity investments held by the Group
classified on the consolidated balance sheet either as other investments (see note 27) or non-
current investments (see note 23(a)). Other than unguoted securities held for strategic purposes,

all of these investments are listed. The Group is not exposed to commodity price risk.

All of the Group's ungquoted investments are held for long term strategic purposes. Their
performance is assessed at least bi-annually against performance of similar listed entities, based
on the information available to the Group, together with an assessment of their relevance to the

Group's long term strategic plans.

The Group is also exposed to equity price risk arising from changes in the Company’s

own share

price to the extent that the Company's own equity instruments underlie the fair values of
derivatives or gther financial liabilities of the Group. As at 31st December 2007, the Group was
exposed to this risk through the conversion rights attached to the Convertible Notes issued by

the Company as disclosed in note 32(c).

The following table shows the approximate effect on the Group's loss after tax if the Company’s
own share price (for the conversion option of certain convertible bonds) were 5% (2006: 5%)

higher or lower with all other variables held constant.

[' S 2007

i HK$'000

| S

If the market price of the Company’s own share price
were 5% (2006: 5%) higher with all other variables
held constant

Loss after tax for the year increased by 43,000

If the market price of the Company’s own share price
were 5% (2006: 5%) lower with all other variables
held constant

Loss after tax for the year decreased by 41,000

R

2005 1
9L 00 {

P — |

42,000

42,200
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4. Financial Risk Management (Continued)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) |
(a) Market risk (Continued) I
(i) Interest rate risk l
The Group is exposed to interest rate risk through the impact of changes in the rates on interest
bearing liabilities and assets. The Group follows a policy of developing long-term banking
facilities to match its long-term investments in Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland China. The
policy also involves ¢lose monitoring of mterest rate movements and replacing and entering into
new banking facilities when favourable pncmg opportunities arise.

As the Group has no significant interest bearing assets, other than deposits and cash at banks,
the Group's income and operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates. The interest rate risk of the Group arises from borrowings. Borrowings issued at
variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. Borrowings issued at fixed rates
expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk.

At 31st December 2007, if interest rates on'borrowings at that date had been 0.5% higher or
lower with all other variables held constant, loss after tax for the year would have been
HK$3,056,000 (2006; HK$3,566,000) higher or lower, mainly as a result of higher or lower
interest expense on floating rate borrowings.:

At 31st December 2007, if interest rates on?deposits and cash at banks at that date had been
0.5% higher or lower with all other variables held constant, loss after tax for the year would
have been HK$37,234,000 (2006: HK$24,347,000) lower or higher.
[
(b) Credit risk 1
Credit risk arises from cash, derivative financial mstruments and deposits with banks and financial
institutions, as well as credit exposures to customers, including outstanding receivables and committed
transactions, and the VIP club promoters. Cash and bank balances are deposited in banks with sound
credit ratings to mitigate the risk arising from banks The Group has no significant concentration of
credit risk with any single counterparty or group of counterparties. The Group also has policies in place
to assess the credit worthiness of customers 10 ensure that sales of construction materials are made to
customers with an appropriate credit history. Besides, management of the Group monitors its credit
risk on an ongoing basis by reviewing the debtors’ aging to minimise its exposure to credit risk.

The Group currently provides credit to the VIP club promoters and players of gaming. The provision of
credit in gaming is governed by the group credit policy and procedures for gaming operation. Credit
checks of the applicants are performed before the [approval of credit applications and credit limits are
granted based on the performance record of the agplicants and the financial strength of the applicants
and the guarantors. Management of the Group performs regular review of the credit profile to

minimise the credit risk. |
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. Financial Risk Management (Continued)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(c) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to meet its current obligations when they fall due. The
Group measures and monitors its liquidity through the maintenance of prudent ratios regarding the
liquidity structure of the overall assets, liabilities, loans and commitments of the Group.

The Group also maintains a conservative level of liquid assets to ensure the availability of sufficient
cash flows to meet any unexpected and material cash requirements in the course of ordinary business.
in addition, standby facilities are established to provide contingency liquidity support.

The contractual maturity of the Group and the Company for its financial liabilities, drawn up based on
the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group and
the Company is required to pay and include both interest and principal, is set out below.

Group

Between Between
one to two to
Within two five Over five

one year years years years Total
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'Q00

At 31st December 2007

Bank loans 589,828 3,267 9,157 16,477 618,729
Guaranteed notes 461,248 461,248 5,680,423 — 6,602,919
Convertible notes — — 1,403,142 — 1,403,142
Other borrowings 3,990 4,389 — — 8,379
Derivative financial instruments —_— 60 477,471 — 477,531
Creditors and accruals 3,523,414 62,921 1,889 313,406 3,901,630

At 31st December 2006

Bank loans 689,955 3,440 9,628 19,561 722,584
Fixed rate notes — 2,778,985 — —~— 2,778,985
Guaranteed notes 471,402 471,402 3,155,931 2,990,858 7,089,593
Convertible notes — — 1,293,443 — 1,293,443
Other borrowings 108 — — — 108
Derivative financial instruments — — 573,109 — 573,109
Creditors and accruals 3,243,325 5,777 1,848 382,601 3,633,551
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4. Financial Risk Management (Continued)

4.1 Financia! risk factors (Continued)
(c) Liquidity risk {Continued) '
Company

Between Between
one to two to
Within two five

one year years years Total
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$000 HK$°000

At 31st December 2007

Bank loans 397,891 _ — 397,891
Convertible notes — — 1,403,742 1,403,142
Derivative financial instruments — — 468,858 468,858

Creditors and accruals 30,198 — — 30,198

At 31st December 2006

Bank loans 561,369 — — 561,369
Fixed rate notes I — 2,778,985 — 2,778,985
Convertible notes — — 1,293,443 1,293,443
Derivative financial instruments — — 573,109 573,109
Creditors and accruals 16,555 — — 16,555

]
1
I
Amounts due to subsidiaries ' 172,955 — —_ 172,955

'\
The table below analyses the Group’s cross-currency swap contracts which will be settled on a gross
basis into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash
flows.

Between Between
one to two to
Within two five

one year years years Total
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000 HK5°000

At 31st December 2007 ?
Cross-currency swap contracts |
Outflow |(427.888) {3,144,888) (2,111,548) (5,684,324)
Inflow 1 461,248 3,191,248 2,141,661 5,794,157

At 31st December 2006

Cross-currency swap contracts
QOutflow {434,031  (434,031) (5,268,721) (6,136,783}
Inflow 470,126 470,126 5,337,828 6,278,080
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4. Financial Risk Management (Continued)
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4.2

4.3

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group will consider the macro economic conditions, prevailing borrowing rate in the market and adequacy of
cash flows generating from operations and may raise funding through capital market or bank borrowings as
necessary. The Group may also adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by
total assets less cash and bank balances. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings {including “current and

non-current borrowings” as shown in the consolidated balance sheet) less cash and bank balances.

The gearing ratios at 31st December 2007 and 2006 were as follows:

.r 2007 8 e
! HKS'000 [EEEESSEe0e
Total borrowings (note 32) {6,505,818) (8,972,853)
Less: cash and bank balances {note 28) 8,230,362 5,783,197
Net cash/{debt) 1,724,544 (3,189,656}
Total assets less cash and bank balances 23,530,829 23,425,801

Gearing ratio N/A 14%

The improvement in the gearing ratio during 2007 resulted primarily from the full repayment of the fixed
rate notes and the issuance of new ordinary shares during the year as disclosed in note 29(b) below.

Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the
balance sheet date. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Group is the current bid
price; the appropriate quoted market price for financial fiabilities is the current ask price.

In assessing the fair value of non-trading securities, other financial assets and embedded financial liabilities,
the Group uses a variety of methods and makes assumptions that are based on market conditions existing at
each balance sheet date.

The fair values of long-term borrowings are estimated using the expected future payments discounted at
market interest rates.

The nominal values less any estimated credit adjustments for financial assets and liabilities with a maturity of
less than one year (including debtors, cash and bank balances, creditors and current borrowings) are
assumed to approximate their fair values.

Galaxy Entertainment Group Limited




Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

Estimates and judgements used in preparing the consolidated, financial statements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. The Group makes estim:ates and assumptions concerning the future. The
resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial period are discussed below:

(a)

{0

(d)

(e)

Impairment of gaming licence

Gaming licence represents the fair value of licence acquwed on the acquisition of Galaxy and is amortised cn
a straight line basis over its estimated useful life, whu:h is the remaining licence period. When there is
indication for impairment, the Group tests whether the licence has suffered any impairment based on value-
in-use calculations. The methodologies are based upon estimates of future results, assumptions as to income
and expenses of the business, future economic conditions on growth rates and estimation of the future
returns.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipr{went

The management determines the estimated useful Iaves and residua! values for its property, plant and
equipment. Management will revise the depreciation charge where useful lives are different from previously
estimates, or it will write-off or write-down obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or
sold.

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined by using
valuaticn technigues. The Group uses its judgement to select a variety of methods and make assumptions
that are mainly based on market conditions existing at each balance sheet date. The fair value also reflects
the discounted cash flows that could be expected from the ultimate sale after deducting the estimated
expenses directly associated with the sale. The Group determines whether an investment is impaired by
evaluating the duration and extent to which the fair value of an investment is less than its cost.

Fair value of derivative financial instruments

The fair value of derivative financial instruments is with reference to the valuation performed by an
independent valuer by reference to the Binomial model; In making the judgement, consideration has been
given to assumptians that are mainly based on market conditions existing at the balance sheet date.

Provisions

The Group carries out environmental restoration for its guarry sites. Management estimates the related
provision for future environmental restoration based on an estimate of future expenditure for the restoration.
These provisions require the use of different assumptions, such as discount rates for the discounting of non-
current provision due to time value of money, the timing and extents of cash outflows.

Share-based payments

The fair value of option granted is estimated by independent professional valuers based on the various
assumptions on volatility, life of options, dividend paid ¢ut rate and annual risk-free interest rate, excluding
the impact of any non-market vesting conditions, which generally represent the best estimate of the fair
value of the share options at the date of granting the options.
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5. Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements (Continued)

(g) Taxation

The Group is subject to taxation in Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland China. Significant judgement is
required in determining the provision for taxation for each entity in the Group. There are transaction and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The
Group recognises liabilities for potential tax exposures based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be
due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the current and deferred taxation provisions in the financial period in which such
determination is made.

6. Segment Information

In accordance with the internal financial reporting and operating activities of the Group, the primary segment
reporting is by business segments and the secondary segment reporting is by geographical segments. Segment
assets consist primarily of property, plant and equipment, investment properties, leasehold land and land use
rights, intangible assets, other non-current assets, inventories, debtors and prepayments, and mainly exclude
investments, derivative financial instruments, taxation recoverable and cash and bank balances. Segment liabilities
comprise mainly creditors, accruals and provisions and mainly exclude tax fiabilities and borrowings. There are no
sales or trading transaction between the business segments.

(@) Business segments

78

Gaming and  Construction
entertainment materials Unallocated Total
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
Year ended 31st December 2007
Revenue 11,481,227 1,554,212 — 13,035,439
Operating {loss)/profit (note} (203,059) 74,898 209,443 81,282
Finance costs (557,395)
Share of profits less losses of
Jointly controlled entities 174 (122) — 52
Loss before taxation (476,061)
Taxation (26,172)
Loss for the year (502,233)
Capital expenditure (1,233,343) {32,413) (4,184) (1,269,940)
Depreciation (248,491} (77,331} (2,458) (328,280)
Amortisation (1,038,612) (45,731) — (1,084,343)
impairment of non-current investments — — (4.569) (4,569)
Impairment of property, plant and
equipment — (27,457) — {27,457
Impairment of trade debtors — {3,016) — (3.016)

Note: Results of the gaming and entertainment division include pre-opening expenses of HK$22,199,000 incurred for the Galaxy

mega resort,
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6. Segment Information (Continued)

(a) Business segments (Continued)

[‘ G e € @rsire Yo
EFERAINEEr meferals  Unalllenaiee il
IS OO, XS OO0 HEH D0 HIRS 000
Year ended 31st December 2006 -
Revenue 3,388,767I 1,280,728 — 4,669,495
1
Operating (loss)/profit (note) (1,187,893) 52,512 102,934 (1,032,447)

Finance costs
Share of profits less losses of

Jointly controlled entities (2,803) 32,426
Associated companies -—! {612)
Loss before taxation
Taxation
Loss for the year ‘
Capital expenditure {2,773,738) (69,533)
Depreciation (60,570) (82,729)
Amortisaticn (1,007,187) (38,459)
Impairment of non-current investments — —
Impairment of property, plant and
equipment — (784)

(5,459)
{(1,194)

(4,237)

(522,226)

29,623
(612)

{1,525,662)
(5,848)

(1,531,510

(2,848,730}
(144,493}
(1,045,646}
{4,237

(784)

Note: Results of the gaming and entertainment division included priie-opening expenses of HK$267,868,000 incurred for the City

Club Casinos and the StarWorld Casino and Hotel.
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6. Segment information (Continued)

(@) Business segments (Continued)

(b)

80

Gaming and

Construction

! entertainment materials Unallocated Total
‘ HKS$'000 HKS$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
e

As at 31st December 2007

Segment assets 20,593,125 1,855,623 8,805,520 31,254,268
Jointly controlled entities (2,595) 508,788 — 506,193
Associated companies — 730 — 730
Total assets 31,761,191
Segment liabilities 3,153,545 586,592 9,082,611 12,822,748
As at 31st December 2006

Segment assets 20,403,330 1,782,149 6,636,269 28,821,748
Jointly controlled entities (2,769) 389,289 — 386,520
Associated companies — 730 — 730
Total assets 29,208,998
Segment liabilities 2,907,093 539,522 11,638,884 15,085,499

Geographical segments

i,._._. —— e —
I
'
1

i

Year ended 31st December 2007

HK$°000

Capital
Revenue expenditure

HK$000

Total assets
HK$'000

Macau 11,756,085 1,238,195 24,698,271
Hong Kong 686,311 9,592 5,694,789
Mainland China 593,043 22,153 1,368,131
13,035,439 1,269,940 31,761,191
Year ended 31st December 2006
Macau 3,620,336 2,796,186 25,077,008
Hong Keng 516,380 30,515 2,860,182
Mainland China 532,779 22,029 1,271,808
4,669,495 2,848,730 29,208,998
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7. Revenue

i
Revenue comprises turnover from sales of construction materials, gaming operations and hotel operations.

: 2007 20005
HK$'000 H$ 006
Sales of construction materizls 1,554,212 1,280,728
Gaming operations
Net gaming wins : 11,135,284 3,186,893
Contributions (note} - 78,966 167,057
Tips received 33,276 19,692
Hotel operations
Room rental 139,519 10,739
Food and beverages 37.835 3,924
Others 56,347 462
13,035,439 4,669,495

Note: In respect of the operations of certain city club casinos {the “Certain City Club Casinos"}), the Group entered into ceriain

agreements (the “Agreements”) with third parties for a term equal to the life of the concession agreement with the Gavernment of
Macau Special Administrative Region {the "Macau Government”) up to June 2022.

Under the Agreements, certain service providers {the “Service Providers”) undertake for the provision of a steady flow of customers
to the Certain City Club Casinos and for procuring and or introducing customers to these casinos. The Service Providers also agree
to indemnify the Group against substantially all risks arising under the leases of the premises used by these casinos; and to
guarantee payments to the Group of certain operating and administrative expenses. Revenue attributable to the Group is
determined by reference to various rates on the net gaming wins after special gaming tax and funds to the Macau Government,
The remaining net gaming wins and revenue from gaming operations less all the relevant operating and administrative expenses
belong to the Service Providers.

After analysing the risks and rewards attributable io the Group, and the Service Providers under the Agreements, revenue from the
Cenrtain City Club Casinos is recognised based on the established rates for the net gaming wins, after deduction of special gaming
taxes and funds to the Macau Government, which reflect the gross inflow of economic benefits to the Group. In addition, all
relevant operating and administrative expenses refating to the operations of the Certain City Club Casinos are not recognised as
expenses of the Group in the consolidated financial statements.
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7. Revenue {Continued)

The revenue and expenses related to the gaming operations of the Certain City Club Casinos are summarised as

follows:
P - _
I 2007 ¢ 6]
’ HKs'000 [ECEEENRe0E)
b o S
Net gaming wins 1,730,121 2,732,614
Tips received and other income 11,242 22,820
Interest income 9,527 18,085
1,750,890 2,773,519
Operating expenses
Special gaming tax and funds to the Macau Government (698,314) (1,101,141
Commission and allowances to promoters (615,260) {1,042,232)
Employee benefit expenses (292,793) {328,559)
Other operating expenses (84.770) {73,065)
(1,691,137) {(2,544,997)
Contributions from gaming operations 59,753 228,522
Contributions from/{net entitlements of) the Service Providers 19,213 {61,465)
Contributions attributable to the Group 78,966 167,057
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8. Cost of Sales, Other Income and Operating Profit/(Loss)

3 ! 2007 2006
' ! HKS$'000 HIRH T
!
(a) Cost of sales |
Special gaming tax and funds to the Macau Government| 4,439,215 1,289,236
Commission and allowances to promoters , 4,207,442 1,240,210
Cost of inventories sold 1,306,974 1,106,659
Other direct costs 1,429,841 619,117
: 11,383,472 4,255,222
(b} Other income X
Rental income 3,792 9,286
Interest income
Bank deposits 219,281 156,578
Loan to jointly controlled entities (note 26a) I 5,409 2,073
Loan to a related company | — 3,371
Deferred receivable (note 23c) 719 797
Administrative fees from gaming operations 30,089 16,864
Dividend income from unlisted investments 11,973 9,229
Dividend income from listed investments 1,223 349
Realised and unrealised gain on listed investments 68,429 3,883
Gain on partial disposal of jointly controlled entities , 28,863 —
Gain on disposal of non-current investments - 1,736 —
Gross earnings on finance lease 14,514 11,441
fForeign exchange gain 1,146 9,417
Others | 28,558 39,037
i ! 415,732 262,325
|
|
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8. Cost of Sales, Other Income and Operating Profit/(Loss) (Continued)

i 2007 RS 2006
HK$'000 MRS O99
|
(¢  Operating profit/(loss) is arrived at after charging
Depreciation 328,280 144,493
Amortisation
Gaming licence 998,360 998,089
Computer software 5,728 1,135
Overburden removal costs 15,057 16,475
Quarry site improvements 20,609 15,050
Quarry site development 3,105 1,959
Leasehold land and land use rights {note i} 41,484 12,938
QOperating lease rental
Land and buildings 81,169 49,166
Plant and machinery 1,738 3,900
Royalty 4,790 5916
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 5,229 119
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary (note 37) 2,337 —
Staff costs, including Directors’ remuneration (note ii) 1,406,263 947.069
Impairment of non-current investments 4,569 4,237
Impairment of property, plant and equipment 27,457 784
Impairment of trade debtors 3,016 —
Change in fair value of investment properties — 500
Qutgoing in respect of investment properties 518 660
Auditor's remuneration
Audit services
Provision for the year 7,525 7,643
Under-provision in prior year 54 1,375
Non-audit services
Provision for the year 2,501 476
Under-provision in prior year 77 78

(i) There is no capitalisation of amortisation of leasehold land and land use rights in assets under construction in 2007 (2006:
HK$26,349,000).

(i) Staff costs do not include share option expenses in 2007 (2006; HK$3,661,000). The amount is stated after amount capitalised in
assets under construction and fixed assets in the aggregate of HK$92,210,000 (2006: HK348,559,000).
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9. Management Remuneration

(a)

Directors’ remuneration

[]
j5alary :
. [Pension] jshare
andlbenefit schiamelilioptions] 2007 P006!
Fecs] infkind] bondses nefts @ Total lotal
[ETEA R [Faikicuel m:«isf'@I 3 TR ell (ARG HKS 000 =TS
Executive Directors [
Dr. Lui Che Woo 100 3,150 3,000 158 — 6,408 3,527
Mr. Francis Lui Yiu Tung 127 11,550 3,000 577 — 15,254 12,067
Mr. Chan Kai Nang B0 2,587 L= 100 — 2,767 2,692
Mr. Joseph Chee Ying Keung 80 2,288 610 205 — 3,183 2,712
Mr. William Lo Chi Chung 80 789 172 38 — 1,079 1,061
Ms. Paddy Tang Lui Wai Yu 80 — b— - — 80 268
|
547 20,364 6.'782 1,078 — 28,771 22,327
i
Non-executive Directors
Dr. Charles Cheung Wai Bun 217 — o= — — 217 288
Mr. Moses Cheng Mo Chi 160 — — —_ — 160 254
Mr. James Ross Ancell 160 — — - — 160 278
Dr. william Yip Shue Lam 117 — I — — 117 198
Mr. Anthony Themas
Christopher Carter — 98 ;- —_— — 98 —
Dr, Martin Clarke — — - — — — —
Mr. Guido Paoclo Gamucci — — — —_ — — —
654 98 —_ —_ — 752 1,028
Total 2007 1,201 20,462 6.782 1,078 — | 29.523
I
Total 2006 1,080 19,406 , 304 1,017 1,548 23,355

The discreticnary bonuses paid in 2007 were in relation to performance for 2006.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

9. Management Remuneration (Continued)

86

(b) Five highest paid individuals

(©

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group for the year include two (2006: one)
Directors whose emoluments are reflected in note (a) above. The emoluments of the remaining three
individuals (2006: four) are as follows:

[

o o 2007 ¥ SENEPCN

: HKks'000 § B Heetk
L £ _ 0
Salaries and other emoluments 12,915 21,380
Discretionary bonuses 2,188 3,194
Retirement benefits 476 675

15,579 25,249

The emoluments of these individuals fell within the following bands:

HK$4,000,001 - HK$4,500,000 — 2
HK$4,500,001 — HK$5,000,000 2 —
HK$5,500,001 - HK$6,000,000 1 —_
HK$6,000,001 - HK$6,500,000 — 1
HK$10,500,001 - HK$11,000,000 - 1

3 4

Retirement benefit schemes

In Hong Kong, the Group makes monthly contributions to the Mandatory Provident Fund (MPF) Scheme
equal to 5% of the relevant income of the employees in compliance with the legislative requirement. In
addition, the Group also makes defined top-up contributions to the same scheme or the Occupational
Retirement Scheme Ordinance (ORSC) Scheme for employees depending on circumstance. For the top-up
schemes, the Group’s contributions to the schemes may be reduced by contributions forfeited by those
employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions. The assets of the Schemes are
held separately from those of the Group in independently administered funds.

The Group also operates a defined contribution scheme which is a unitized scheme, for eligible employees in
Macau. The Galaxy Staff Pension Fund Scheme is established and managed by an independent management
company appointed by the Group. Both the Group and the employees make equal share of monthly
contributions to the scheme,
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9. Management Remuneration (Continu'ed)

(c)

(d)

Retirement benefit schemes (Continued)

Employees in Mainland China participate in various pension plans organised by the relevant municipal and
provincial governments under which the Group is required to make monthly defined contributions to these
plans at rates ranging from 10% to 22%, dependent upon the applicable local regulations. The Group has
no other obligations for the payment of pension and other post-retirement benefits of employees other than

the above payments.
i

The costs of the retirement benefit schemes charged ‘to the profit and loss statement during the year
comprise contributions to the schemes of HK$43,298,000 (2006: HK$29,356,000), after deducting
forfeitures of HK$27,571,000 (2006: HK$1,119,000), leaving HK$1,388,000 (2006: HK$292,000} available
to reduce future contributions.

Share options l

The value of the share cptions granted to the Directors a!nd employees under the share option scheme of the
Company represents the fair value of these options charged to the profit and loss statement for the year
according to their vesting periods.

10. Finance Costs

§ 2007 2006
| HKS$'000 ARG 00

Interest expenses :
Guaranteed fixed rate notes not wholly repayable within five years — 276,340
Guaranteed fixed rate notes and floating rate notes wholly repayable
within five years , 493,842 206,393
Fixed rate notes wholly repayable within five years ' 123,141 140,781
Convertible notes wholly repayable within five years 111,630 5,464
Bank loans and overdrafts ! 35,792 31,795
Obligations under finance leases wholly payable within five years 1,227 56
Change in fair value of derivative under the convertible notes {105,924) {67.818)
Net gain from cross-currency swap contracts for hedging {14,174) {11,626}
Other borrowing costs 15,981 12,901
[ 661,515 594,286
Amount capitalised in assets under construction (104,120) (72,060}
: 557,395 522,226
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11. Taxation

88

’E
2007 [ 2005
HK$'000 [ ENGReCH

r

Current taxation

Hong Kong profits tax 7,660 708
Mainland China income tax 11,965 1,932
Macau complementary tax 3,635 4029
Deferred taxation 2,912 (821)
26,172 5,848

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 17.5% (2006: 17.5%) on the estimated assessable profits
for the year after setting off available taxation losses brought forward. Taxation assessable on profits generated
outside Hong Kong has been provided at the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries in which those profits
arose.

The taxation on the loss befare taxation of the Group differs from the theocretical amount that would arise using
the applicable taxation rate being the weighted average of rates prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates, is as follows:

Loekgues |
Loss before taxation {476,061} {1,525,662)
Share of profits less losses of
Jointly controlled entities {52} (29,623)
Associated companies — 612
{476,113) (1,554,673)
Tax calculated at applicable tax rate 73,925 198,149
Income under tax relief 527 1,769
Income not subject to tax 20,607 7.638
ProfitAloss) exempted from taxation 97,881 (33,654)
Expenses not deductible {for tax purpose {163,216} (145,778)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses 1,257 6,866
Tax losses not recognised (56,653) (40,556}
Under provision of tax (500) (282}
Taxation charge (26,172) {5,848)
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12.

13.

14.

Loss Attributable to Shareholders

The loss attributable to shareholders is dealt with in the finalncial statements of the Company to the extent of
HK$25,886,000 (2006: HK$68,975,000). '

Loss Per Share |

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the loss attributable to shareholders of HK$466,200,000 (2006
HK$1,531,546,000) and the weighted average of 3,373,0651022 shares (2006: 3,293,135,440 shares) in issue
during the year.

The diluted loss per share for 2007 and 2006 equals to the basic loss per share since the exercise of the
outstanding share options or conversion of convertible notes would not have a dilutive effect on the loss per share.

|
Dividends ?

The Board of Directors has resolved not to declare any dividend for the year ended 31st December 2007 (2006:
nil). !
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15. Property, Plant and Equipment

Group

' ) [Buildings) i'mproveents [machinerys loth efassats] - aED |

IRICE goTe ’ ‘:-']E(ﬁﬁ_".{-:‘]ﬂﬁ) HIER GLE (L ka3 yEa 6l R

Cost
At 31st December 2006 1,694,939 53,251 1,246,604 866,015 798,305 4,659,114
Exchange differences 2,933 6 19,608 12,788 — 35,335
Additions 173,268 4,989 38,964 42,939 992,176 1,252,336
Transfer 376 {1,434) (60,395} 61,453 — —
Disposal of a subsidiary (5,294) — (51,719) {1,34%) — {58,354)
Disposals (2,354) (2,253) (43,977) (21,763) — (70,347)
At 31st December 2007 1,863,868 54,559 1,149,085 960,091 1,790,481 5,818,084
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
At 31st December 2006 21,652 35,368 511,403 208,187 — 776,610
Exchange differences 488 100 8,872 8,823 — 18,283
Charge for the year 57,280 6,697 99,430 164,873 — 328,280
Disposal of a subsidiary (2,498) — (9,156) (983} — {12,637}
Disposals (986) {706) (38,461} (10,943) — {51,096)
Impairment 13,781 1,863 11,585 228 — 27,457
At 31st December 2007 89,717 43,322 583,673 370,185 — 1,086,897
Net book value
At 31st December 2007 1,774,151 11,237 565,412 589,906 1,790,481 4,731,187
Cost
At 31st December 2005 41,773 34,778 726,144 274,274 752,306 1,829,275
Exchange differences 1,751 81 11,609 7,575 —— 21,016
Acquisition of subsidiaries — — 6,922 1,398 — 8,320
Additions 23,644 9,051 55,473 595,139 2,142,245 2,825,552
Transter 1,628,168 9,638 458,440 — (2,096,246) —_
Disposals (397) (297) {11,984) (12,371) — (25,049)
At 31st December 2006 1,694,939 53,251 1,246,604 866,015 798,305 4,659,114
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
At 31st December 2005 7,736 26,102 455,177 152,597 —_ 641,612
Exchange differences 253 36 4,693 4,004 — 9,076
Charge for the year 13,722 9,276 59,707 61,788 —_ 144,493
Disposals {59} (46} (8,958) (10,292) — (19,355)
impairment — — 784 — — 784
At 31st December 2006 21,652 35,368 511,403 208,187 — 776,610
Net book value
At 31st December 2006 1,673,287 17,883 735,201 657,828 798,305 3,882,504

(a) Cther assets comprise barges, furniture and equipment, operating equipment and motor vehicles.

{b)  The net book amount of other equipment held under finance leases amounts to HK$7,702,000 (2006: HK$127,000).

(o] During the year, borrowing costs of HK$104,120,000 (2006 HK$72,060,000) arising on financing specifically entered into for the
construction of a building, as well as amortisation of prepaymenis of lease premium of nil (2006: HK$26,349,000), have been

capitalised and included in assets under construction. A capitalisation rate of 3.84% (2006: 5.96%) was used, representing the
effective borrowing cost of the loan used to finance the project.
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16.

17.

Investment Properties

2007

HK$°000

At valuation

Beginning of the year 62,500 63,000
Change in fair value — (500)
End of the year 62,500 62,500

Investment properties are held under leases of 10 to 50 years in Hong Kong and were valued on an open market
value basis by Vigers Appraisal & Consulting Limited, independent professional valuers.

Leasehold Land and Land Use Rights.

; 2007

: HKS$'000
Net book value at beginning of the year 1,621,917 1,638,620
Exchange differences 240 121
Additions 104 22,463
Amortisation (41,484) (39,287)
Net book value at end of the year 1,580,777 1,621,917
Cost 1,766,277 1,765,933
Accumulated amortisation {185,500) (144,016)
Net book value 1,580,777 1,621,917

Leases of between 10 to 50 years

Macau 1,344,091 1,378,510
Hong Kong 233,503 240,462
Mainland China 3,183 2,945
1,580,777 1,621,917

Leasehold land in Hong Kong with net book values of HK$222,173,000 (2006: HK$216,978,000) has been

pledged as securities for the bank borrowings (note 32).
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18. Intangible Assets
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Group

Geodwill jicencel Softwarel Tanel |
L B T HKSILe X IEE HEEELE |
Cost
At 31st December 2006 33,014 16,887,329 18,201 16,938,544
Additions — — 4,268 4,268
Disposals —_ —_ (2} (2)
At 31st December 2007 33,014 16,887,329 22,467 16,942,810
Accumulated amortisation
At 31st December 2006 — 1,416,851 1,207 1,418,058
Charge for the year — 998,360 5,728 1,004,088
Disposals — — ( 0
At 31st December 2007 — 2,415,211 6,934 2,422,145
Net book value
At 31st December 2007 33,014 14,472,118 15,533 14,520,665
At 31st December 2006 33,014 15,470,478 16,994 15,520,486

Goodwill is allocated to the Group's cash-generating units identified according to country of operation and
business segment. Goodwill with carrying amount of HK$28,524,000 (2006: HK$28,524,000) and HK$4,490,000
{2006: HK$4,490,000) is allocated 1o the construction materials segment in Macau and Hong Kong respectively,
The recoverable amount of the business unit is determined based on value-in-use cafculations. The key assumptions
used in the value-in-use calculations are based on the best estimates of growth rates and discount rates of the

respective segments.
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19.

20.

Subsidiaries

Unlisted shares, at cost ' 1 1
Amounts due from subsidiaries : 14,831,229 14,973,752
Loans receivable from subsidiaries I 381,208 544,508
Amounts due to subsidiaries | — {172,955

|

The amounts receivable and payable are unsecured, interest free and have no fixed term of repayment.

The loans receivable are unsecured, carry interest at prevailing market interest rate and have no fixed terms of

repayment.

Details of the subsidiaries which, in the opinion of the Directors, materially affect the results and/or net assets of

the Group are given in note 44(a).

Jointly Controlled Entities

2007
HKS'000

2006
(RS GE

Beginning of the year 386,520 279,432
New investments 110,984 63,880
Share of results

Profit before taxation 6,162 31,974

Taxation {6,110) {2,351)
Dividends (21,504) {6,565)
Share of exchange reserve 30,141 20,150
End of the year 506,193 386,520
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20. Jointly Controlled Entities (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(@) The share of assets, liabilities and results of the jointly controlled entities attributable to the Group is

summarised below:

2007
HKS'000

g < 20006 - |
R el J
Eg::‘ .

Non-current assets 814,795 441,948
Current assets 443,256 380,915
Current liahilities (238,249} (159,690}
Non-current Habilities (513,609 {276,653)
506,193 386,520
Income 469,028 462,691
Expenses {462,866) (430,717)
Profit before taxation 6,162 31,874

{b) Details of the jointly controlled entities which, in the opinion of the Directors, materially affect the resulis

and/or net assets of the Group are given in note 44(b).

21. Associated Companies

2007 o N
HK57000 R EE00 ‘
£ ’
Beginning of the year 730 21,346
New investments —_ 730
Share of results
Loss before taxation —_ (612)
Transfer to subsidiary — {20,734)
End of the year 730 730
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21. Associated Companies (Continued)

|
(a) The share of assets, liabilities and results of the associated companies attributable

summarised as follows:

to the Group is

2007
HK$"000 ISR 000)
Non-current assets 7,211 —
Current assets . | 12,385 730
Current liabilities 1 {(4,700) —
Non-current liabilities {14,166} —
! 730 730
Income 5,929 —
Expenses (5,929) —
i
Profit before taxation | — —
(b)Y  Details of the associated company are given in note 44(c);.
22. Derivative Financial Instruments .
2007 205
HKS$'000 i IRGI6) )

Cross-currency swaps for cash flow hedges 1,155 47,072
Cross-currency swaps for cash flow and fair value hedges ! (B.673) —
Derivative component of the Convertible Notes {note 32¢) {468,858) (573,109)

(477,531) (573,109}

The notional principal amounts of the cross-currency swaps are US$600 million (2006: US$600 million).

At 31st December 2007, the fixed interest rates vary from 9.47% to 9.495% (2006: 9.47% to 9.495%). The main
floating rates are HIBOR and LIBOR. Gains and losses recognised in the hedging reserve in equity {note 31) on
cross-currency swaps as of 31st December 2007 will be continuously released to the profit and loss statement until

the repayment of the borrowings (note 32). |
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23. Other Non-current Assets

96

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

.
2007 ; ]

HK$'000 § HSJWDDJ@

& ]
Non-current investments (note a) 256,257 284,932
Finance lease receivable (note b) 137,438 168,552

Deferred expenditure

Qverburden removal costs 51,538 68,574
Quarry site development 15,867 10,930
Quarry site improvements 83,675 105,880
Deferred receivable {note ) 4,827 6,604
Restricted bank deposits (note d) 50,000 259,153
599,602 904,625

(a) Non-current investments

2
HK$000 \<€5
Unlisted investments, at fair value 123,256 151,931
Advances 10 investee companies 133,001 133,001
256,257 284,932

Advances to investee companies are unsecured, interest free and have no fixed terms of repayment. They are

considered equity in nature.
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23. Other Non-current Assets (Continued)

(b) Finance lease receivable

Group!

2007 i 6]

HKS'000 HIEB T

Gross receivable , 204,435 250,860
Unearned finance income | (30,603) (38,609)
' 173,832 212,251

Current portion included in current assets ! {36,394) (43,699)
% 137,438 168,552

The finance lease is receivable in the {ollowing years:

ﬁlmam&@ﬁm

20075 20018

Within one year 36,394 | 43,699 50,709 57,844
Between one to five years 121,685 | 166,245 137,550 190,592
Over five years 15,753 ! 2,307 16,176 2,424

173,832 | 212,251 204,435 250,860

Deferred receivable represents advances to various contractors. The advances are secured by assets provided
by the contractors, carry interest at prevailing market rate and are repayable by monthly instalments up to
2012. The current portion of the receivable is included under other debtors.

At 31st December 2007, restricted bank deposits of HKS%O million are pledged to secure banking facilities
extended to the Company and the Group which comprise a guarantee amounting to HK$291 million for the
period from 1st April 2007 to the earlier of 90 days after?the expiry of the Concession Agreement or 31st
March 2022 which is in favour of the Macao Government against the legal and contractual liabilities of the
Group and the Company under the Concession Agreement.

At 31st December 2006, restricted bank deposits of HK$259 million were pledged to secure banking facilities
extended to the Company and the Group which comprised a guarantee amounting to HK$485 million for
the period up to 31st March 2007 in favour of the Macau Government against the legat and contractual
liabilities of the Group and the Company under the Conc:ession Agreement. They were also pledged for two
revolving term loans amounting to HK$75 million. l

The effective interest rate on restricted bank deposits was: 4.37% {2006: 3.86%) and these deposits have an
average maturity of 25 days (2006: 32 days). ‘
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24. Inventories

2007 | 2006
HKS'000 [ESEEYFAR

©3 &y
CENE

€ {o

Lo

Construction materials

Aggregates and sand 33,019 31,720
Concrete pipes and blocks 8,485 13,527
Cement 7.118 6,599
Spare parts 14,767 24,116
Consumables 14,770 6,766

78,159 82,728

Gaming and entertainment

Playing cards 6,462 8,769
Food and beverages 2,052 1,521
Consumables 3,776 1,504
12,290 11,794
90,449 94,522

25. Debtors and Prepayments

2007 20 206

HK$'000 e K fRhale) o =S I0E

Trade debtors, net of provision {note a) 616,574 504,390 — —

Other debtors {note b) 348,254 68,193 21,138 1,245
Amount due from an associated company

(note ¢} 5,166 183 — —

Prepayments 32,948 72,620 240 568

Current portion of finance lease receivable 36,394 43,699 — —

1,039,336 689,085 21,378 1.813
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25. Debtors and Prepayments (Continued)

(a)

Trade debtors mainly arise from the sales of construction materials. The Group has established credit policies
which follow local industry standards. The Group normally allows an approved credit period ranging from 30
to 60 days for customers in Hong Kong and Macau and; 120 to 180 days for customers in Mainland China.
These are subject to periodic reviews by management. I

The aging analysis of trade debtors of the Group based on the invoice dates and net of provision for bad
and doubtful debis is as follows:

]
2007 )36 O]
HK$'000 L KGR0 0]

|
Within ane month | 160,066 136,508
Two to three months r 178,714 148,612
Four to six months ‘ 118,994 97,840
Qver six months 158,800 121,430
| . 616,574 504,390

|

The carrying amounts of trade debtors of the Group are denominated in the following currencies:

2007
HK$'000

Renminbi 398,942 329,594
Hong Kong dollar 161,365 129,724
Macau Patacas ‘ 56,267 45,072

616,574 504,390
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25. Debtors and Prepayments (Continued)

{a)

(Continued)

Included in the Group’s trade debtors were debtors with a carrying amount of HK$354,343,000 (2006:
HK$302,826,000) which were not yet due. Debtors with a carrying amount of HK$262,231,000 (2006:
HK$201,564,000) which were past due over their credit terms for which the Group has not provided for
impairment loss. The ageing analysis of these trade debtors based on due dates is as follows:

[ - -

2007 _ XE
HKS'000 HICB OO
Overdue:

Within one month 66,566 47,161
Two to three months 73,867 50,621
Four to six months 63,051 44,656
Over six months 58,747 59,126
262,231 201,564

As of 31st December 2007, trade debtors of the Group amounting to HK$54,400,000 (2006:
HK$50,288,000) were impaired and fully provided for. The factors the Group considered in determining
whether the trade debtors were impaired are disclosed in note 3.15.

Movement in the provision for impairment of trade debtors

2007 2008

HKS$'000 [EKARE® )]

Balance at 1 January 50,288 52,832
Acquisition of subsidiaries — 100
Provision for impairment of receivables 3,016 —
Receivables written off during the year as uncollectible (3,133) (46)
Unused amounts reversed — (2,643)
Exchange differences 4,229 45
Balance at 31 December 54,400 50,288

(b}  Other debtors of HK$348,254,000 (2006: HK$68,193,000) are mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars

which are not yet due.

(@  Amount receivable is unsecured, interest free and repayable in accordance with agreed term.
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26. Amounts Due From/(Due To) Jointly IControlled Entities

.

Amounts due from jointly controlled entities {note a)

[Group]

2007

HK$'000

339,168

174,053

Amount due to a jointly controtled entity (note b)

(2,177)

(294}

{a) Amounts receivable of HK$187,226,000 (2006: HK$34,483,000), of which HK$5,648,000 (2006
HK$5,648,000) are secured, carry interest at prevailing |[market rate and are repayable in accordance with
agreed terms of repayment. The remaining amounts receivable are unsecured, interest free and repayable in
accordance with agreed terms. The amounts receivable a:re denominated in Renminbi.

(6) The amount payable is unsecured, interest free and has no fixed terms of repayment.

27. Other Investments |

2007
HK$'000

006
HIXS T

Equity securities listed in Hong Kong, at market value 57,768 29,636
Derivative financial instruments, aptions on listed equity securities — 9,605
57,768 39,241
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28. Cash and Bank Balances

2007 [N 2007 BRI G0T

HKS'000 [E HKs'000 [ S Sen0s

Cash at bank and on hand 1,339,154 1,625,187 438 —
Short-term bank deposits 6,891,208 4,158,010 4,548,284 1,853,249
8,230,362 5,783,197 4,548,722 1,853,249

Cash and bank balances of the Group of HK$1,934 million {2006: HK$3,325 million) and of the Company of
HK$1,577 million (2006: HK$1,577 million} are restricted to specified uses in accordance with the note offering
agreements as set out in note 32 (b) and {c).

The carrying amounts of cash and bank balances are denominated in the following currencies:

2007 o
HK$'000 o - HKS$'000
Heng Kong dollar 5,587,741 2,302,649 2,647,691 —
us dollar 2,264,440 3,337,891 1,901,031 1,853,249
Macau Patacas 306,976 73,385 —_ —
Renminbi 71,205 69,272 —_ —
8,230,362 5,783,197 4,548,722 1,853,249

The effective interest rate on cash and bank balances was 4.1% (2006: 4.7%) and the average maturity was 36
days {2006: 24 days).
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29. Share Capital

-

Shares)

: eff (KIZ30.90 cadi 11654000

i ]
Authorised: |
At 315t December 2006 6,888,000,000 688,800
Addition (note a) ! 2,%12,000,000 211,200
At 31st December 2007 l 9,000,000,000 900,000
tssued and fully paid: |
At 31st December 2005 | 3,290,579,361 329,058
Issue of shares upon exercise of share options | 5,538,000 554

i
At 31st December 2006 . 3,296,117,361 329,612
Issue of new shares (note b) ' 630,188,000 63,019
Issue of shares upon exercise of share options : 9,334,000 933
At 31st December 2007 I 3,935,639.361 393,564

{a)

(o))

On 21st November 2007, the authorised share capital of the Company was increased from HK$688,800,000
to HK$900,000,000, divided into 9,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.10 each, by the creation of an additional
2,112,000,000 new shares of HK$0.10 each, which rank pari passu in all respects with the then existing
shares in the capital of the Company. '

On 25th October 2007, the Company issued 150,000,000 new shares of HK$0.10 each at the issue price of
HK$8.58 per share for cash, tetalling HK$1,287 millien, to independent third parties. Net proceeds from the
issue of shares were intended to be used to fund gaming related business, facility development, acquisition
opportunities, and general working capital purposes.

On 27th November 2007, the Company issued 323,384,000 new shares of HK$0.10 each at the issue price
of HK$8.42 per share for cash, totalling HK$2,723 million, to a private equity fund known as Permira iV. On
the same date, the Company has converted approximately 50% of the principal amount of the fixed rate
notes and accrued interest, being HK$1,320 million into 156,804,000 new shares of the Company of
HK$0.10 each at the issue price of HK$8.42 per share. Net proceeds from the issue of shares were intended
to be used to fund gaming related business, facility development, acquisition opportunities, general working
capital, and the repayment of approximately 50% of the fixed rate notes in the amount of HK$1,320 miliion.
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30. Share Option Scheme

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company operates a share option scheme under which options to subscribe for ordinary shares in the
Company are granted to selected qualifying grantees. The axisting scheme was adopted on 30th May 2002 and
the options granted under the previous schemes remain effective. Under the scheme, share options may be
granted to, amongst others, Directors, senior executives or employees of the Company or its affiliates.
Consideration to be paid by the grantee on acceptance of each grant of option is HK$1.00. The period within
which the shares may be taken up under an option is determined by the Board at the time of grant, except that
such period shall not expire later than ten years from the date of grant of the option.

Movements in the number of share options outstanding during the year are as follows:

-~ B

At beginning of year 47,552,000 53,908,000
Exercised (note a) (9,334,000) {5,538,000)
Lapsed {note b) —_ {818,000)
At end of year {note ¢} 38,218,000 47,552,000
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30. Share Option Scheme (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Options exercised

[ | Bvmer off dheres
EXEEGISE] - Exercisefprice] isstied!
{ (LS
January 2007 4.5900 840,000
January 2007 ' 0.5333 270,000
lanuary 2007 0.5216 228,000
January 2007 : 0.5140 242,000
February 2007 ! 4.5900 834,000
March 2007 | 4.5900 110,000
April 2007 ' 4.5900 104,000
May 2007 | 4.5900 2,992,000
June 2007 4.5900 554,000
July 2007 4.5900 28,000
August 2007 | 4.5900 257,000
August 2007 ! 0.5140 38,000
September 2007 4.5900 618,000
October 2007 ! 4.5900 138,000
November 2007 ' 4.5900 915,000
December 2007 ‘ 4.5900 736,000
December 2007 0.5333 130,000
December 2007 0.5140 300,000

1

‘ 9,334,000

Options lapsed

E;m@&@ Numbegoffsharefoptions}

22nd October 2005 to 215t October 2011 I 4.5900 — 400,000
22nd October 2006 to 21st October 2011 } 4.5900 — 418,000
’ — 818,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30. Share Option Scheme (Continued)

(¢) Outstanding options

. 3 .
Directors
20th May 1999 to 19th May 2008 0.5333 2,500,000 2,500,000
30th December 2000 to 29th December 2009 0.5216 3,400,000 3,400,000
15t March 2004 to 28th February 2013 0.5140 3,980,000 4,280,000
22nd Qctober 2005 to 21st October 2011 4.5900 14,200,000 13,200,000
22nd October 2006 to 21st October 2011 4.5900 2,860,000 3,290,000

|
| Employees and others
|

20th May 1999 to 19th May 2008 0.5333 — 400,000
30th December 2000 to 29th December 2009 0.5216 — 228,000
1st March 2004 to 28th February 2013 0.5140 — 280,000
22nd QOctober 2005 to 21st October 2011 4.5900 9,400,000 16,250,000
22nd October 2006 to 21st October 2011 4.5900 1,878,000 3,724,000

38,218,000 47,552,000
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31. Reserves :

Group w
Capitat Share Revenue
Share Capital redemption Hedging investment option Exchange reserve
premium reserve reserveg reserve reserve raserve reserve (note a) Total
HK$'000  HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$'000  HKS'000 HKS$000 HK$°000 HK$'000
At 15t January 2007 11,456,959 4,395 70 47,072 I 118,133 36,927 52,402 1,587,229 13,303,187
Exchange differences — - — - — - 47,995 — 47,995
Change in fair value of cash
flow hedges - — - (61,802 — - —_ — (61,802)
Issue of new shares {note b) 5.167,851 — — -— I — —_ —_ - 5,167,851
lssue ef shares upon exercise l
of share options 45,160 — — -_— | — (8,165) —_ — 36,995
Change in fair value of non- '
current investments - — -— - (14,938) —_ — —— (14,938}
Loss far the year —_ o _ —_ —_ — -— (466,200) {466,200}
At 315t December 2007 16,663,970 4,395 70 (14,730} [ 103195 28,762 100,397 1,121,029 18,013,088
|
At Jst January 2006 11,435,004 4,395 70 — ' (ar 37561 11,874 3,118,363 14,603,396
Exchange differences — — —_ — —_ — 40,528 — 40,528
Change in fair value of
cash flow hedges — — — 472072 ! - — — — 47,072
Issue of shares upon '
exercise of share options 21,955 — _ - — (3,883) — — 18,072
Fair value of share opticns —_ — - — e 3,661 — — 3,661
Share options lapsed —_ — — - —_ {412) — 412 —
Change in fair value of
nen-current investments —_ — - — 122,004 — —_ — 122,004
Loss for the year — — — — —_ — —  (1,531,546) (1,531,546)
At 31st December 2006 11,456,959 4,395 70 47,072 | 118,133 36,927 52,402 1,587,229 13,303,187

(a) A 88.1% owned subsidiary of the Group, incorporated in Macau and limited by shares, is required under the
Macau Commercial Code No. 432 to set aside a minimum of 10% of this subsidiary’s profit after taxation to
the legal reserve until the balance of the reserve reaches a level equivalent to 25% of the subsidiary's capital.
The amount of HK$45,549,000 (2006: nil) will be treated as a distribution of reserve upon approval by the
shareholders of this subsidiary at the annual general mee:ting and is not distributable to shareholders of the
subsidiary.

{b) Share premium for issuance of shares during 2007 includes share issuance costs of HK$99 million.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. Reserves (Continued)

Company
Capital
Share Capital redemption Share option Revenue
premium reserve reserve reserve raserve Toatal
HK$000 HK$000 HKS000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS'000
At 1st January 2007 11,456,959 235,239 70 36,927 263,977 11,993,172
Issue of new shares 5,167,851 — —_ _ -— 5,167,851
Issue of shares upon exercise
of share options 45,160 —_ — (8,165) — 36,995
Loss for the year — — — - {25,886) {25.886)
At 315t December 2007 16,669,970 235,239 70 28,762 238,001 17,172,132
At 1st January 2006 11,435,004 235,239 7C 35,561 332,540 12,038,414
Issue of shares upon exercise
of share options 21,955 — — {3,883) — 18,072
Fair value of share options — — — 5.661 — 5,661
Share options lapsed — — — (412) 412 —
Loss for the year — - — — (68,975) {68,975)
At 31st Decemnber 2006 11,456,959 235,239 70 36,927 263,977 11,993,172

Reserves of the Company available for distribution to shareholders amount to HK$238,091,000 (2006:
HK$263,977,000).
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32. Borrowings

2007 p) 966}
HK$'000 HXS T HK$'000 15 KEGR0) 6

Bank loans
Secured 178,700 259,860 153,400 157,400
Unsecured 432,597 453,420 244,200 403,500
i
611,297 713,280 397,600 560,900
Other borrowings
Fixed rate notes (note a) —_— 2,521,982 — 2,521,982
Guaranteed notes (note b) 4,565,617 ! 4,532,106 —_ —
Convertible notes (note ¢} 1,320,525 | 1,205,377 1,320,525 1,205,377
Bank loans and other borrowings 6,497,439 8,972,745 1,718,125 4,288,259
Obligations under finance leases
(note d) 8,379 | 108 — —
1
Total borrowings 6,505,818 | ' 8,972,853 1,718,125 4,288,259
Current portion included in current
liabilities (495,247) | + (532,888) (397,600) {405,700)
6,010,571 ! 8,439,965 1,320,525 3,882,559
(@) ©On 22nd July 2005, the Company issued HK$2,544,240,000 fixed rate notes, which would mature on 21st

August 2006, with variable rates as part of consideration for the acquisition of Galaxy Casino S.A.. On 14th
January 2006, holders for HK$2,371,805,000 of the fixed rate notes agreed to amend the terms to extend
the maturity date of their notes from 21st August 2006 to 30th September 2008 and change the interest
rate to a fixed rate of 6% per annum. On 22nd May 2006, the remaining HK$172,435,000 of the fixed rate
notes, plus accrued interest of HK$3,401,000, were fully tpaid by the Group.

On 8th Octoher 2007, the Company and the holders for HK$2,371,805,000 of the fixed rate notes entered
into an agreement under which the Company agreed to convert approximately 50% of the principal amount
of the fixed rate notes and accrued interest, being HK$1,320,289,680, into 156,804,000 new shares of the
Company of HK$0.10 each at the issue price of HK$8.42 per share; and to redeem the balance of the
principal in cash. On 27th November 2007, the conversion of the fixed rate notes was completed and all the
remaining fixed rate notes have been fully paid by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32. Borrowings (Continued)

{b)

©

On 14th December 2005, the Group, through its subsidiary, Galaxy Entertainment Finance Company Limited,
issued guaranteed senicr fixed rate and floating rate notes with aggregate principal amount of US$600
millien (the “Guaranteed Notes”). The fixed rate guaranteed senior notes with nominal value of
US$350,000,000 carry fixed interest at 9.875% per annum and will be fully repayable on 15th December
2012. The floating rate guaranteed senior notes with nominal value of U$$250,000,000 carry interest at six-
month US Doltar London Inter-Bank Offering Rate plus 5% and are fully repayable on 15th December 2010,
The Guaranteed Notes are listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited.

The proceeds from the notes are restricted to be used for the repayment of a specific bank loan, interest
payments of the Guaranteed Notes, financing the construction and development of assets under
construction, and for general corporate purpose (note 28).

On 14th December 20086, the Company issued zero coupon convertible notes {the “Convertible Notes") with
an aggregate principal amount of US$240 million (approximately HK$1,872 million). The Convertible Notes
are unsecured, do not carry any interest and have a maturity date of 14th December 2011. Subject to the
terms of the Convertible Notes, the holders have the option to convert the Canvertible Notes into ordinary
shares of the Company at any time on or after 14th lune 2007 up to the maturity date at the initial
conversion price of HK$9.36 per share, subject to adjustmeni. The conversion price is subject to a reset
mechanism pursuant to the terms of the Convertible Notes. Unless previously redeemed and cancelled, or
converted, the Convertible Notes will be redeemed at 100% of their principal amount on the maturity date,
The Group may, at its option at any time after 14th December 2007 and prior to the maturity date, redeem
the Convertible Notes in whole or in part, at 100% of their principal amount subject to the terms of the
Convertible Notes.

The praceeds from the Convertible Notes are restricted to be used for financing the construction and
development of assets under construction, and for general corporate purpose (note 28).

The fair value of the derivative under the Convertible Notes was estimated at the issue date by reference to
the Binomial model. The excess of net proceeds over the fair value of the derivative compaonent is recognised
as a liability.

The liability under the Convertible Notes and the derivative compenent recognised in the balance sheet are
analysed as follows:

b

5 wegaoe

£ 1]

2007
HKS$'000

3

Liability under the Convertible Notes

At beginning of the year/at the issue date 1,205,377 1,203,415
Exchange difference 3,518 {3,502}
Interest expense 111,630 5,464
At end of the year 1,320,525 1,205,377
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32. Borrowings (Continued)

Interest expense on the Convertible Notes is calculated ﬂjsing the effective interest method by applying the
effective interest rate of 9.23% {(2006: 9.23%).

2007 A8 (0 6
HK$‘000 HIKS 900

Derivative component
At beginning of the year/at the issue date 573,109 642,798
Change in fair value ‘ (105,924) (67.818)
Exchange difference 1.673 {(1,871)
At end of the year (note 22} i 468,858 573,109

The fair value of the derivative component is determined by reference to the Binomial model. The significant
assumptions used in the calculation of the fair values wer:e as follows:

() The valuation is based on the assumption that the Convertible Notes will continue without default,
delay in payments and no earlier redemption. |

I
(i)  The expected volatility of 45% (2006: 50%) of the share price of the Company is based on the share

price movements for the last three years.

(i) The risk free rate is based on the yield of Exchalnge Fund Notes as at the respective dates, with
maturity in accordance with the life of the Convertible Notes.

(iv) The expected dividend paid out rate is 0.1% (2006:i 0.1%) during the life of the Convertible Notes.
l

Obligations under finance leases

The finance lease obligations are payable in the following years:

Minimumpa
2007 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000
Within one year 4,828 135 3,990 108
In the second year 4,828 | — 4,389 —
9,656 135 8,379 108
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32. Borrowings (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

{&)  The borrowings are repayable as follows:
[
2007 2007 2007
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000
Wwithin one year 491,257 532,780 — -_ — - — —
Between one 10 two years 99,060 157,360 — 2,521,982 - — - —
Between two io five years 6,480 £,480 —_ — 4,565,617 1,889,973 1,320,525 1,205,377
Over five years 14,500 16,660 -— — —_ 2,642,133 —_ —
611,297 713,280 —_ 2,521,982 4,565,617 4,532,106 1,320,525 1,205,377
(Gompany]
notes)
2007 e 2007 PO 2007 AT
HK$'000 WS TR HKS'000 Fl K] (I HK$'000 IS e
Within one year 397,600 405,700 _ — —_ —
Between one to two years —_ 155,200 —_ 2,521,982 —_ —_
Between two 1o five years _ — _ — 1,320,525 1,205,377
397,600 560,900 — 2,521,982 1,320,525 1,205,377
(f)  Effective interest rates:
2006]
41} o2 )
' J

Bank loans 3.8% 5.8% — 4.4% 5.0% —
Fixed rate notes 5.7% -— —_ 5.7% —_ —
Guaranteed Notes — — 10.9% — — 10.9%
Convertible Notes —_ — 9.23% — — 9.23%
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32. Borrowings (Continued)

Q)

(h)

The exposure of the Group's borrowings to interest rate changes and the contractual repricing dates or
maturity (whichever is earlier) are as follows:

2007 2006
HK$'000 | HIKG 000 HK$'000

6 months or less 2,513,637 : 2,603,361 397,600 560,900
6 to 12 months — | — — —
1 to 5 years 3,992,181 : 3,727,359 1,320,525 3,727,359
Over 5 years — 1 2,642,133 —_ —

6,505,818 8,972,853 1,718,125 4,288,259

The carrying amounts and fair value of the borrowings are as follows:

6] pLae pistiol FE
HK5$'000 [E KSRBEE HK$ 000 | =R HK$'000 1R el HK$'000 (A

i
Bark loans 611,297 713,280 611,297 | 713,280 397,600 560,900 397,600 560,900

Fixed rate notes — 2,521,982 — :2,281,206 — 2,521,982 — 2,281,206
Guarantead notes 4,565,617 4,532,106 4,661,763 | 4,552,934 - — — -
Convertible notes 1,320,525 1,205,377 1,183,827 :1,139,685 1,320,525 1,205,377 1,183,827 1,139,685
Other borrowings 8,379 108 gas || 108 - - - —

|
F

:
6,505,818 8,972,853 6,465,312 8,687,213 1,718,125 4,288,259 1,581,427 3,981,791

f
The fair value of the borrowings is calculated using cash flows discounted at prevailing borrowing rates. The
carrying amounts of floating rate and other current borrowings approximate their fair value.
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32. Borrowings (Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(i)  The carrying amounts of bank loans and other barrowings are denominated in the following currencies:

GLoup)

2007 2L
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HERTRE
ol _ I
Hong Kong dollar 539,800 3,185,342 397,600 3,082,882
us dollar 5,886,142 5,737,591 1,320,525 1,205,377
Renminbi 71,497 49,920 - —
Macau Patacas 8,379 — — —
6,505,818 8,972,853 1,718,125 4,288,259
|
| . . I
. 33. Deferred Taxation Liabilities
’r" o o I e
| Group! '
T 00 ool
$'000 el S 00E |
At beginning of the year 1,778,588 1,778,531
Acquisition of subsidiaries — 878
Debit/{credit) to profit and loss statement 2,912 {821)
At end of the year 1,781,500 1,778,588

114  Galaxy Entertainment Group Limited

Deferred taxation assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legal right to set off current taxation assets with
current taxation liabilities and when the deferred taxation relates to the same authority. The above liabilities shown
in the consolidated balance sheet are determined after appropriate offsetting of the relevant amaunts.




33.

34.

Deferred Taxation Liabilities (Continued)

Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary differences; under the liability method using applicable tax rates
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates. Movéments on the deferred taxation liabilities/assets) are
as follows: :

haigvaluel

5] 0ssc SR d ustments Tetel
XS 006 LS00 T (SR 0 0] ESTRC Jl
i —
At 31st December 2005 34,146 | {20,262) 1,764,647 1,778,531
Acquisition of subsidiaries 878 — — 878
{Credit)/charge to profit and loss statement 4,101 (4,105) (817) (821)
At 31st December 2006 39,125 (24,367) 1,763,830 1,778,588
(Credit)/charge to profit and loss statement (6,317} | 12,611 (3,382) 2,912
1

At 31st December 2007 32,808 (t1,756) 1,760,448 1,781,500

Deferred taxation assets of HK$63,862,000 (2006: HK$67,883,000) arising from unused tax losses and other
temporary differences totalling of HK$460,394,000 (2006: ﬁK$403,086,000) have not been recognised in the
consolidated financial statements. Unused tax losses of HK$138,352,000 (2006: HK$171,174,000) have no expiry
date and the remaining balance will expire at various dates up to and including 2013.

Provisions
JEnviconment
Light EOLa!
R0 RE TG LS IO
|
At 1st January 2006 i 122,070 63,090 185,160
Additional provisicn | 5,500 — 5,500
Charged to the profit and loss statement , 1,460 12,820 14,280
Applied during the year : (9,160) {8.710) (17,870}
At 31st December 2006 ] 119,870 67,200 187,070
Reversal of provision ! (1,597) —_ (1,597}
Charged to the profit and loss statement 1,438 17,740 19,178
Applied during the year i (16,807) (15,258) {32,065)
At 31st December 2007 ‘ 102,904 69,682 172,586

The current portion of the provisions amounting to HK$36,964,000 (2006: HK$66,919,000) is included under

other creditors. |
|
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. Creditors and Accruals

e L - |

2007 P $F 20005

|

i

t .

| HK$'000 b 000 HKS$ 000 L HKSOEE
L ;

Trade creditors (note a) 1,038,002 975,230 — —
Other creditors 678,030 668,863 — ——
Chips issued 1,322,394 1,065,413 — —
Loans from minority interests {note b) 89,672 76,088 —_ —
Accrued operating expenses 765,649 843,663 30,198 16,555
Deposits received 7,883 4,294 — —

3,901,630 3,633,551 30,198 16,555

{a) The aging analysis of trade creditors of the Group based on the invoice dates is as foltows:

TF_ - 2007 B 206

HK$'000 - S TED j

- L o .
Within one manth 608,429 816,005
Two to three months 86,894 65,820
Four to six months 43,952 55,560
Over six months 298,727 37,845
1,038,002 975,230

The carrying amounts of trade creditors of the Group are denominated in the following currencies:

2007 2606
HK$'000 B Sk o ol

i

Macau Patacas 206,157 795,853
Renminbi 204,646 147,710
Hong Kong dollar 617,369 31,667
Other 9,830 —

1,038,002 975,230

(b}  The loans payable are unsecured, interest free and have no fixed terms of repayment.
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36. Notes to Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

(a) Reconciliation of operating profit/loss) to cash generated from operations

2007 2306
HK$'000 MG 6

Operating profit/{foss) 81,282 (1,032,447)
Depreciation 328,280 144,493
Change in fair value of investment properties I — 500
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 1,229 119
Loss on disposal of intangible assets ! — 42
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary I 2.337 —
Gain on partial disposal of jointly controlled entities i {28,863} —
Gain on disposal of non-current investrments I (1,736} —
Realised and unrealised gain on listed investments I (68,429) (3,883)
Change in fair value of derivative financial instruments - — 407
Impairment of non-current investments ‘ 4,569 4,237
Impairment of property, plant and equipment | 27,457 784
Impairment of inventories I 943 —
Interest income , (225,409) (162,819)
Gross earnings on finance lease ' (14,514) (11,441)
Dividend income from listed and unlisted investments {13,196) (9,578}
Amortisation of deferred expenditure 38,771 33,484
Amortisation of intangible assets i 1,004,088 999,224
Amortisation of leasehold land and land use rights 41,484 12,938
Fair value of share options granted ‘ — 3,661
|
Operating profit/{loss) before working capital changes 1,178,293 {(20,279)
Increase in inventories (716) (600)
{Increase)/decrease in debtors and prepayments ' (329,928) 110,976
Increase in creditors and accruals 423,411 2,142,421
Cash generated from operations 1,271,060 2,232,518

(b) Analysis of net cash inflow in respect of :disposal of a subsidiary

2007 2005
| HKS'000 XS "9010
b
Consideration settled in cash 49,217 —
Net cash inflow on disposal 49,217 —
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37. Disposal of a Subsidiary

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

in October 2007, the Group disposed 100% of the equity interest in K. Wah Quarry (Huzhou) Co., Ltd. Details of

net assets disposed are as follows:

Carrying amount

of assets disposed

HK$'000
Property, plant and equipment 45,717
Quarry site development 7,648
Inventories 3,846
Exchange reserves (5,657)
Net assets disposed 51,554
Cash consideration (49,217)
Loss on disposal {note 8) 2,337

38. Capital Commitments

Contracted but not provided for
Authorised but not contracted for

2007
HK$000

2,519,750
3,866,781

2666
LS 90e

2,315,845
1,206,054
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39. Operating Lease Commitments

40

The future aggregate minimum lease rental expense in respect of land and buildings and equipments under non-

cancellable operating leases is payable in the following periods;

Grotp]
2007
HK5°000
First year 29,245 22,258
Second to fifth years inclusive 43,518 47,846
After the fifth year 108,742 108,527
181,505 178,631

Operating Lease Rental Receivable

The future aggregate minimum lease rental income in respect of land and buildings under non-cancellable

operating leases is receivable in the foltowing periods:

Group

2007
HK$'000 HIX$ 000
First year 15,752 20,992
Second to fifth years inclusive 54,670 73,257
After the fifth year 35,098 42,256
105,520 136,505

[
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

41. Related Party Transactions

Significant related party transactions carried out in the normal course of the Group's business activities during the
year are as follows:

(@} Interest income from jointly controlled entities amounted to HK$5,409,000 (2006 HK$2,073,000) based on
terms agreed among the parties and no interest income was received from a subsidiary of K. Wah
International Holdings Limited ("KWIH"), a substantial shareholder of the Company {2006: HK$3,371,000).

(b)  Management fee received from jointly controlled entities amounted to HK$3,286,000 (2006: HK$1,391,000).

(¢} Rental expenses of HK$2,015,000 (2006: HK$2,015,000) were paid to a subsidiary of KWIH based on the
terms of the rental agreement between the parties.

(d) Sales of property, plant and equipment to an associated company amounted to HK$3,122,000 (2006: nil).
(e)  The balances with jointly controlled entities and an associated company are disclosed in note 26 and 25(c).

(f)  Finance cost on fixed rate notes issued to City Lion Profits Corp. and Recurrent Profits Limited amounted to
HK$133,157,000 (2006: HK$140,081,000) and HK$2,921,000 (2006: HK$3,073,000) respectively based on
the terms of fixed rate notes between the parties. City Lion Profits Corp. is wholly owned by a discretionary
trust established by Dr. Lui Che Woo as founder with Dr. Lui Che Woo, Mr, Francis Lui Yiu Tung and Ms.
Paddy Tang Lui Wai Yu, all being Directors of the Company, being either direct or indirect discretionary
beneficiaries; and Recurrent Profits Limited is wholly owned by Mr. Francis Lui Yiu Tung.

(g) Key management personnel comprise the Chairman, Deputy Chairman, Managing Director, Deputy
Managing Director and other Executive Directors. The total remuneration of the key management is shown

below:

2007

HK$'000
Fees 547 500
Salaries and other allowances 20,364 19,406
Discretionary bonuses 6,782 304
Retirement benefits 1,078 1,017
Share options e 1,100
28,771 22,327

42. Guarantees

The Company has executed guarantees in favour of banks in respect of facilities granted to subsidiaries amounting
to HK$627,109,000 (2006: HK$209,858,000), of which HK$307,087,000 (2006: HK$175,147,.000) have been
utilised.

The Group has executed guarantees in favour of a bank in respect of facilities granted to an associated company
amounting to HK$9,125,000 (2006: HK$9,125,000). At 31st December 2007, facilities utilised amounted to
HK$9,125,000 (2006: HK$9,125,000).
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43. Approval of Consolidated Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 18th April 2008.

44, Principal Subsidiaries, Jointly Controlled Entities and
Associated Companies

!

{(a) Subsidiaries ;
| S— |
‘ Numbedof, :
I Zrincipal [Numbe o {nonsvoting| otfequity] !
placot ey dfaed  Ruude GGy oo ;
Nameloticompany] Bharcs) jshatesElpedshare @op  Gulneps) s |
y w
Incorporated in Hong Kong !
Barichon Limited Hong Keng 3,000,000 — 1 99.93 Sate and distribution
of concrete pipes
Chelsfield Limited Hong Kong 2,111,192 | —_ 10 100 Investment holding
Construction Materials Limited Hong Kong 30,000 — 10 100 Sale of aggregates
Doran (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong +,000 - 10 100 Sale and distribution
| of concrete pipes
Galaxy Entertainment Hong Kong 1 bo—- 1 100 Provision of
Management Services ' ' management
Limited services
K. Wah Asphalt Limited Hong Kong 1,100,000 — 10 100 Manufacture, sale
{formerly known as Tarmac ! and distribution
Asphalt Hong Kong Limited) and laying of
asphalt
K. Wah Cencrete Company Hong Kong 2 1,000 100 100 Manufacture, sale
Limited | and distribution
! of ready-mixed
concrete
K. Wah Construction Materials Hong Kong 2 2 10 100 Provision of
{Hong Kong) Limited managemaent
services
K. Wah Construction Products Hong Kong 2 | 1,000 100 100 Manufacture, sale
Limited and distribution
of concrete
producis
K. Wah Materials Limited Hong Kong 28,080,002 - 1 100 Trading
K. Wah Quarry Company Hong Kong 200,002 100,000 100 100 Sale of aggregates
Limited
K, Wah Stones (Zhu Hai) Zhuhai 2 1,000 10 100 Quarrying
Company Limited |
KWP Quarry Co. Limited Hong Kong 9,000,000 | —_ 1 63.5 Quarrying
Lightway Limited Hong Kong 2 | 2 1 100 Property investment
Master Target Limited Hong Kong 2 — 1 100 Investment holding
Quanturn Limited Hong Kong 2 . —_ 1 100 Equiprnent leasing
Rainbow Country Limited Hong Kong 2 —_ 1 100 investment holding
Rainbow Mark Limited Hong Kong 100 — 1 95 Investment holding
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

44. Principal Subsidiaries, Jointly Controlled Entities and
Associated Companies (Continued)

{a) Subsidiaries {Continued)

Principaiptacefof]

INamefoifcompany,

Percentagelo
equitylheld

capitalibylthelGrouplRPnnGipalfactivities]

Incorporated in Maintand China

Wholly-owned foreign enterprise
Doran Canstruction Products Shenzhen
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.

|
‘ K. Wah Consuhtancy (Guangzhou)  Guangzhou

Co., Ltd.

K. Wah Consultancy (Shanghai) Shanghai
Co, Ltd.

Shanghai Jia Shen Concrete Co., Shanghai
Ltd.

Shanghai K.Wah Qingsong Shanghai

Concrete Co., Ltd.

FNESEESTIEHERLE Shenzhen

Cooperative joint venture
Beijing K.Wah GaoQiang Concrete  Beijing
Co., Ltd.

K. Wah Materials (Huideng) Ltd. Huidong

Nanjing K. Wah Concrete Co., Lltd. Nanjing

Shanghai Beicai Concrete Co., Ltd. Shanghai

Shanghai liajian Concrete Co., Ltd. Shanghai

Shanghai K. Wah Concrete Co., Shanghai
Ltd.

Equity joint venture
Shanghai Ganghui Concrete Shanghai
Co., Ltd.

HK$10,000,000

HK$1,560,000

Us$350,000

RMB20,000,000

US$2,420,000

US5$2,100,000

Us$2,450,000

UsS$2,800,000
Us$$1,330,000

RMB31,500,000

RMB17,400,000

RMB10,000,000

L5$4,000,000

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100
100

100

60

100

60

Manufacture, sale and
distribution of concrete
pipes

Provision of management
services

Provision of management
services

Manufacture, sale and
distribution of ready-mixed
concrete

Manufacture, safe and
distribution of ready-mixed
concrete

Manufacture, sale and
distribution of concrete
piles

Manufacture, sale and
distribution of ready-mixed
concrete

Quarrying

Manufacture, sale and
distribution of ready-mixed
concrete

Manufacture, sale and
distribution of ready-mixed
concrete

Manufacture, sale and
distribution of ready-mixed
concrete

Manufacture, sale and
distribution of ready-mixed
concrete and provision of
quality assurance service

Manufacture, sale and
distribution of ready-mixed
concrete

122 Galaxy Entertainment Group Limited




|
|
|

44. Principal Subsidiaries, Jointly Controlled Entities and
Associated Companies (Continued)

(@) Subsidiaries (Continued) ~

NUmberof
issued] Percentagelof
BrincipalfplaceloiMlordinary, Pardvalueliequitylheld]

NameJoflcompany; sharesSnedsharcllbyRthelGroupMiErincipallactivities)
Incorporated in the British Virgin

Islands !
Canton Treasure Group Lid. Macau j!O ussy 100* Investment holding
Cheer Profit International Limited Macau 10 uss1 100 Property investment
Eternal Profits International Limited Hong Kang 10 uss1 100 Property investment
Forcecharm Investments Limited Hong Kong 10 uUs$1 80  Investment holding
Galaxy Entertainment Finance Macau !10 uss1 88.1 Financing

Company Limited |
K. Wah Constructicn Materials Limited Hong Kong 10 ussi 100*  Investment holding
High Regard Investments Limited Hong Kong 20 uss1 100 Investment holding
Profit Access Investmenits timited Hong Kong 10 ussi1 100 Investment helding
Prosperous Fields Limited Hong Kong 10 usyl 100 Investment holding
Taksin Profits Limited Hong Kang 17 uss1 100 Investment holding
Right Grand Investments Limited Hong Kong 100 uss§1 80  Investment holding

|
Incorporated in Macau !
Galaxy Casino, S.A. Macau 951 ,§00 MQP100,000 88.1 Casino games of
chance
Starworld Hotel Company Limited Macau N/A N/A 88.1 Property holding
| and hospitality

K. Wah (Macao Commercial Offshore) Macau I 1 MOP10,000 100 Trading

Company Limited ‘
Wise Concrete Limited Macau 25,000  MOP25,000 75  Trading

*

wholly owned and directly held by the Company
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

44. Principal Subsidiaries, Jointly Controlled Entities and
Associated Companies {(Continued)

(b) Jointly controlled entities

| aff “E
l Principaliplace] Registered lequitygheld| f
lianeleHcompany aff fcapita (b vAthelGroup IR ncipa activities) f
: _ _ ey
Incorporated in Mainland China
Anhui Masteel K. Wah New Maanshan us$4,290,000 30 Manufacture, sale and
Building Materials Co., Ltd. distribution of slag
Beijing Shougang K.Wah Beijing RMEBS0,000,000 40  Manufacture, sale and
Construction Materials Co., Ltd. distribution of slag
Shanghai Bao Jia Concrete Shanghai UsS$4,000,000 50  Manufacture, sale and
Co., Ltd. distribution of
ready-mixed concrete
Maanshan Masteel K.Wah Maanshan 15$2,450,000 30 Manufacture, sale and
Concrete Co., Ltd. distribution of
ready-mixed concrete
Yunnan Kungang & K. Wah Cement  Kunming RMB660,000,000 32 Manufacture, sale and
Construction Materials Co., Ltd. distribution of cement
Baoshan Kungang & K. Wah Cement  Baoshan RMB253,000,000 32 Manufacture, sale and
Construction Materials Co., Ltd. distribution of cement
Guangdong Shaogang Jia Yang Shacguan Us$6,000,000 35 Manufacture, sale and
New Materials Co., Ltd, distribution of slag
Shaoguan City New Shaogang Shaoguan U5$5,000,000 35  Manufacture, sale and
Jia Yang New Materials Co., Ltd. distribution of slag
Associated Company
; Principal NUmbegot off
placelof] lisstedlordinacy, Fer vl eguitviheld;
= meroitomeany R hares) oo Ene by e Cranp  Crisl) ardbuiies
‘ )
Incorporated in Hong Kong
AHK Aggregates Limited Hang Kong 2,000,000 1 36.5 Quarrying
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MIEWBLAT AELHSBEHE AT (H)
by HFEIZHIEE

Hi# 2.000,0(?0

i

g B Ema
EFAABERRY
EREOHERABHAR LA B 2 774,290,000 30 MiE HERSHUH
LrEARERHARDT IR )\E%'.%so,ooo,oop 40 HE HERSHRE
LFENHERELTER LT g %7‘54,000,005) 50 BiE HERSHHEHERT
ERUEARFRARELARAR S8l 2 712,450,000 30 B HERSWAMNERRL
CRHERHEEKERHBER AR EH A R % 660,000,000 32 HE - -HELDBEKER
RUBHABREKEEHER AR {F AEHZSB,OO0,00P 32 HE-HEERSBEKE
BEBAYEFUARERAA BH %7‘1:5,000,00}) 35 HBiE-HERSHDA
PHTHFEEEEHEAMRARLR #HM %y‘ns.ooo,oojo 35 BE HERSHBE@E
B A A |

BHE @R

AT EH RGOS D‘EJIEDID BIRESD Eak SELD
1E & AR i
FHENERERR LA 1 365 ABRR
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4. TENBELE -  AEZEFHEEERBE QR (®)

(@) MEB~Ra (&)

PN

asen

EERBTBEATRA Y

Canton Treasure Group Lid. pA ] 10 EIT1 100 #HEERE
Cheer Profit international Limited P3| 10 E3A 100 PELER
Eternal Profits International Limited Ei 10 11 100 MERR
EARBRBRASR Bit 10 Ex 80 HERR
Galaxy Entertainment Finance Company Limited 387 10 Em 881 WMHRH
BERMARRF 53 10 £ 100 RAER
High Regard Investments Limited FE 20 E | 100 RAER
Profit Access Investments Limited 5t 10 EL 100 BAERE
Prosperous Fields Limited BB 10 ET 100 BARR
Taksin Profits Limited EiE 17 Em1 100 #F TR
EEREARLDA &t 100 £ B0 BEKR
HARERAY

SHRBERHBAR LA M 951,900 2 P9% 100,000 881 WEEFHY
ERBEARAF p: Tl +EA T@EA 881 MEBREEE
RE(RMBESTEEBARAA 1| 1 EP%10,000 100 85
BEERELIARDA 1 25000 EPFY% 25,000 75 BS

* ADRHEZHES
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REMBBRRME

M. IENBLR HEZHEBEBRE QT (K)
(@) HIE8 R A) ()

- COBTEs
EPRARGLERET
NERBRLH
ZHEEAR(FINARAF ZF #& % 10,000,000 71 100 B - HERSEREHLEY
gegn(RM) AR LR [ # % 1,560,000 100 EHETRE
BREEN(LB)ERAR L5 £ 7T.350,000 100 REUEFERY
FEREBRRELARAA i A E % 20,000,000 100 & - HERIHRANERL
FEREFRERLIBER AR L 72,420,000 100 B - HERoBEANEREL
AN RERLEEBRAA 3 712,100,000 00 - HERSHERLES
BEBELR |
TRREERREELARLA R 3 7T.2,450,000 100 HiE - WEERSEBHEREL
ERREMHERLA BE £ 702,800,000 100 ASEER
BRBERALERAR AR %7‘51,330,00;0 100 BiE HERSHEBEREREL
|
]
S BEEL R AR ap ] }\E'r'%ausoo,oo:o 100 B HERSHEHEEL
LBEERERLER AR L& A B % 17,400,000 60 HE - HERSHBAHEEL
IERERET AR L& A R % 10,000,000 100 By BERSWBEEREELIR
| BB HIRE RS
EHEELR
FeAERELHB LA L5 %ﬁ:a,ooo,oo? 60 Bt HERSHEHEEL

|
|
!
|
i
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3. XN BRI Z

FEeMBRRCR_FENFOR+TNBRESEIE

U IEWBLQAR HEZHEBRBELQF
(a) HtE§ A

|

i@@%@ BEACIME DRRED
L
EESEMREY
HMBHM LA ER 3,000,000 - 1 9993 HERSHEHLEN
Chelsfield Limited ER 2,111,192 - 10 100 REER
Construction Materials Limited & 30,000 - 10 100 BHEAH
Em(EA)ERLA &R 1,000 - 10 100 BERSHEEHTEM
BARETEEBERAR BE 1 - ] 100 REERRE
RERGRBR LA oy 1,100,000 - 10 100 Rig - HER
(AIERE L EFHA
EHAERDE)
HEREZHRLA EHE 2 1,000 100 100 i HER
STHERREL
RERH(ER)EREAA &8 2 2 10 100 REERERE
BERERHAERAF B 2 1,000 100 100 25 - HER
SHERTER
HEHMERLA E# 28,080,002 - 1 100 BE&
RELHERDE EiE 200,002 400,000 100 100 E#HAH
RELE (KB IARLDE s 2 1,000 10 100 GWED
BEOBHRAR BH 9,000,000 - 1 635 ARER
DREERDE BE 2 2 1 100 WERE
EZ@EFBR LA B 2 - 1 100 #@ER
nasRLsE &k 2 - ! 100 REHE
FRERDE E& 2 - 1 100 HEER
EEHERLAE P _ 100 - ] 95 BEER
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41.

42.

REMBERMHE

EREALRE

ER AL FYEBEERNETZEREREATRZOT

(a) HINHSBEZHER BEREREZSIBEEF WA BABESI000T(_TBAF &K
207300 ) REEMALRTIERFTEEREEMER 2 ([BERRK)) —HHE QW
FB(ZFTNE  B¥3,371,0007T) °

by WHEAAFEEH KM YEERA 3,286,000 (ZBF/NE  H%1,391,000L) °

(& FMEHFBAEM20150007T (ZTBAE  EHE201500T) NERNTREERE 2 —BHEQR -
BEREBESANBEEBRANRTE -

d HEDE BRELRET-HBLATSHABYII2200T(ZFFF:8) -

() RERPRHTRVEHEDRAZHRCRIIF26 R25(OERE -

) BBEEIBTZTLEEBEBES - 817 T City Lion Profits Corp. B Recurrent Profits Limited 7 & 8. R i#
ZRAEME SR BB 133,157,0007 ( Z 2R NE ¢ E%140,081,0007T) &4 #2,921,0007T (=
BRE - HM3,073,00078) © City Lion Profits Corp. R S EMB L UBITAZFERIN-HE
BESLBEY  BitfEt SRFEALLABEBERLIT (2HYARLRAESE) ALE2ERE
N EENRBESET S A - ERecurrent Profits Limited l BB R A £ 2 H SR -

@ TEERABGETIE IR HFEQE ANFROERHARTES - TEEZAR
ZREMBSINT

|

[ _

wE 547 500

FahHMmES 20,364 19,406

g el 6,782 304

RBRkER 1,078 1,017

A e - 1,100
28,771 22,327

& 1%

AL EMMBLoENEZEREEY627,190,0007T (ZBR/F ¢ HH209,858,0007C) MRITHA
BR HAEEHAEN307,087,000L (ZFFAF : B%175147,0007T) °

AEMEH - MBEQAINB I EEEB,125000 L (ZFB/NF - B¥9,1250007T) MKIT L
AR - RZZR+tF+-_A=+—B CHAZEHBARBLIB00T(ZFF R EF  B¥
9,125,000 ) °
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39. FEHERR

RETAHEz LR EETFRABKLREMARREN2REHEXHATOT

E—F 29,245 22,258

F_EEREF 43,518 47,846

HEB E 108,742 108,527
181,505 178,631

40 REHERWNEE

BETIHEz - EFREHENRAREW 7 FEEERAEENAT -

:

|

B—F 15,752 20,992

FE-FEZERF 54,670 73,257

HEM 35,098 42,256
105,520 136,505
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37.

38.

HEREL S

GEMBHRRME

R-BE+E+H FEHLEREELBCAM) AR DT 100% % - ERBEEFEDT

P - eSS R 45,717
FESZ®R 7.648
TH 3,846
N REE {5,657)
CHEEESHE 51,554
BHe /8 (49,217)
HERZBE(KS) 2,337
=

DEMEBEREE 2,519,750 2,315,845
CHERRED 3,866,781 1,206,054
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6. mEREKERKT

@ SEEF/ (BB BKEEERB AL HER

(

g LR
BEFR

g |

e e

BERF (B8 81,282 (1,032,447)
i1 328,280 144,493
BEYDELTEHEES - 500
HEME  BERIAHEE 1,229 119
HEEREERR - 42
HEHEB2REER 2,337 -
5 58 3 R 1 S 7T 80 4k 2% (28,863) -
HEFRBHRENRSE (1.736) -
IHRECRE LR B RE NS (68,429) (3,883)
FTHEERITALYERD - 407
SEmEBIEERE 4,569 4,237
M HEERERERE 27,457 784
FERE 943 -
| F R U A (225,409) {162,819)
| BREEELZAF (14,514) (11,441)
EmERIELETEHERSWRA (13,196) (9,578)
B L#E 38,771 33,484
| BRAEBH 1,004,088 999,224
| HErE L ERERE 41,484 12,938
BYZERELFEE - 3,661
HEBEERASBRIEBEHRF,(FR) 1,178,293 (20,279)
FEEM (716) (600)
EWEZRER&EZ (M R (329,928) 110,976
M ER BB AEM 423,411 2,142,421
REELEER LIRS 1,271,060 2,232,518

(b) HEKMBRRMEBRRRASN

| B

—E2LF S B
BT By or .

MWReHEHZRE

49,217

HERZHERAFR

49,217

117 fseeEqgRa s




REMBHRRME

5. ESRRNRESTER

¥RBEEMBRR(FEa) 1,038,002 975,230 - -
Hin 3R 678,030 668,863 - -
EBLER 1,322,394 1,065,413 - -
DR EES (M Eb) 89,672 76,088 - -
CERER 765,649 843,663 30,198 16,555
BMEE 7,883 4,294 - -

3,901,630 3,633,551 30,198 16,555

(@ FEMZEBEEMNERRAEKBERASZKREKRINET

L

—EAA 608,429 816,005

~—z2={@A 86,894 65,820

ZREA 43,952 55,560

~EA B 298,727 37,845
1,038,002 975,230

FEBZEHFRUAERZEEELATIE®RE

peigl:- 206,157 795,853
ARE 204,646 147,710
A 617,369 31,667
HE b 9,830 —

1,038,002 975,230

) EFHEEF RELERE
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33.

34,

ELERBARME (K)

EERADRBRARZEAGSEZEERZ EAREMERZE28GH - EXEBAAG (BE)

ZEHNT

|' . .

| M DEFZE] AVEEL e
i ZHE o BOEO¥ B % T

L 1 _ .
R-_EZTRE+-_A=+—8F 34,146 (20,262) 1,764,647 1,778,531
Y 15 B B 2 7 878 — - 878
EREER (GFA) B 4,101 (4,105) (817) (821)
R_EERF+_AZ=Z+—H 39,125 (24,367) 1,763,830 1,778,588
ERZERGTA) /MK (6,317) 12,611 (3,382) 2,912
R-g8+&E+=-A=+-—8 32,808 (11,756) 1,760,448 1,781,500

FARBEEERAGEEZ R4 HBH460,394,0007T (Z BB - #H%403,086,0007) EE 2B
HIAEEE¥63,86200t (ZEBNF  BHe788300 ) Y EESEAHBEREDRER - RBAB
EEBAK138352000 T (S T,NE - FH171,174,000L) W EFHH  MEKEHER-BR—=

FhAmzZ A BN -

B

f

| I = ) L

| DDER  BO0E e
l B E A FoE b oL SR
R-_EEX¥E—H—H 122,070 63,090 185,160
HAEE 5,500 — 5,500
FEERNR 1,460 12,820 14,280
FEFEEHER (9,160) (8710) (17,870)
R-ZEFEANFt+-_A=1+—H 119,870 67,200 187,070
RERG (1,597) - (1,597
iR RN 1,438 17.740 19,178
AEFHH (16,807) {(15,258) (32,065)
Bo-88t+tFE+=-B=+-—8 102,904 69,682 172,586

RERHASSSEEH3696400T (2
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3.8 ()

REVMBHRRME

() RITEERAMEERNERETINEYIE

™)
N

B

B 539,800 3,185,342 397,600 3,082,882
S 5,886,142 5,737,591 1,320,525 1,205,377
AR 71,497 49,920 - —
piNigt 8,379 — - —
6,505,818 8,972,853 1,718,125 4,288,259
BIREBHBAE
gt GO

BREY 1,778,588 1,778,531
U B Bt B8 o 8) - 878
EBE RN (G A) 2,912 821
BREXR 1,781,500 1,778,588

EHEAEENTIRRAREEAERREAAMEEMEER RS RA—HE - A HEERASR
ERABEIHEN SHAEEEEE UWLARGERSEERERAIIR -
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32. B & ()

(@ AREERZAEZEZHERIEETAOESANRIBA(UREERE) DT :

AEHEUT 2,513,637 2,603,361 397,600 560,900
NE+TZMA - - - -
—EREF 3,992,181 3,727,359 1,320,525 3,727,359
HEL E - 2,642,133 - -
6,505,818 8,972,853 1,718,125 4,288,259
h BEZERSHEELFELT

- ]

e |

|

—BELE

AT ‘

_d
X0 64 611,297 713,280 611,297 713,280 397,600 560,500 397,600 560,800
BEoRRE - 2,521,982 - 2,281,206 - 2,521,982 - 2,281,206
BRRREH 4,565,617 4,532,106 4,661,763 4,552,934 - - - -
pp:Y iy g 1,320,525 1,205,377 1,183,827 1,139,685 1,320,525 1,205,377 1,183,827 1,139,685
Hibig | 8,379 108 8,425 108 - - - -
6,505,818 8,972,853 6,456,312 8,687,213 1,718,125 4,288,259 1,581,427 3,981,791

EREATEHRRATERFRINBAGRFRZEZNE - T REARBEECREERAL QAT HE
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32. 8 & (&)

(e)

(f}

EEIMA

REMBHRERHE

HEBR RO EXRE

—FR 491,257 532,780 - - - - - -
F-RECF 99,060 157,360 - 2,521,982 - - - -
F_ZERF 6,480 6,480 - - 4,565,617 1,889,973 1,320,525 4,205,377
BELHE 14,500 16,660 - - - 2,642,133 - -
611,297 713,280 - 2,521,982 4,565,617 4,532,106 1,320,525 1,205,377
&G
RATER EEEUT B RERETE

—FR 397,600 405,700 - - - -
F-EE-HF - 155,200 - 2,521,982 - -
FZEHAF - - - - 1,320,525 1,205,377
397,600 560,300 - 2,521,982 1,320,525 1,205,377

EEEHE
RITIEX 3.8% 5.8% - 4.4% 5.0% —
TERZE 5.7% - - 5.7% — -
BREARE - - 10.9% — — 10.9%
aBRRERE - - 9.23% - — 9.23%
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32. ff & (&)

111

{d)

RARLEERGR LG

MHREFEZMNEATEERAEILBU(ZFTTRE © 9.23%) IBEBF HEAE -

— D EEE e
- A

=

/f‘-i

I
MR

TESD

€3, RETH 573,109 642,798
nFEE (105,924) (67,818)
EHER 1,673 (1,871)
R (P gk 22) 468,858 573,109

tTEMoRTFESEZHAIEAEE -

AHAMLOFEMBAZIERROT

i) HEISBRXTEAKRBEESSUEMYETCEOIMN  TEMR - HXBEAER -

(iy ALOFREZRIFRERISR{(ZFERF - 50%) NV EBRF=ZFRAZRBNIMEE

(i) BEARENEZEAZEAZEGERZNAEMET FHTHRETRRRBCFHET -

vy HEBREEEHRERANZ EEES01%(ZFEF 1 01%)

MEHERE

REEFEREARTIFERM

—5R 4,828 135 3,980 108
EF 4,828 - 4,389 -
9,656 135 8,379 108




e BB RHE

32. B8 (&)

(b)

()

MZBERFE+ - A+MA - A% MiE @ EH B 2 5 Galaxy Entertainment Finance Company Limited
[ITH RS BE00,000000EANTERFEEREARB([ERER]) - E{E350,000,000
EAvERERBEAERZENRAISSE AR -_Z— -+ -_A+HBZ2H8NE-EHR
250,000,000 X R 2 Z 8RB EARBE "BRAREBTREZETIFSNSEFHE - RR_-_F—
Z2FE+_A+HABZHNR - HREERFNEESZEMBER LR LT -

ZERMEBREERBENERERTER BERERANFEMNN  EREEZABRRETEMUR
— AT AR (KiE28) -

RIZERE+_H+WB RAFHEITHEARSH HB240000,000 X T (HERHBYE
1,872,000000 L) ZERAMBREE ([FTARTRE]) - BEETRREEER  TRARRBEAE
i FHREBER T —F+_A+EAHH - EVRBEREZ2ERART -  TRKER
BEATBER-RPLLEAATNARZEZHHB AL BRESROLERITAENKII0
T(AATFHAR)BIRBRERIMNBARRAIZEER  BRUTARERER  HAQURETHE
Bl TFAEAE RBRIEAHNECHLFALD FEAED TRREEEXRNHAEERERHI100% 2 EK
BoME - -EUERERZERBRET  FAEATHEER_ZS+F+ A+ HE 2@ RIIH
BrR CBEREASTEI0%2ZHENS MO AT BRRIR -

THMRESHMBREARRAFHEEREEARRERAR—RAFBE (HiE28) -

THRBEREETAETAQRTFENSE [ —RAJHEEAMRARKITERITEE - fTEBS 2HE
RAFEBHEQFEZRALERINERE -

REERARERZIRBERBRETERS 2ARSHNAT ¢

ARRERTAE

4/ RETB 1,205,377 1,203,415
[EHEE 3,518 (3,502)
Famt 111,630 5,464
FER 1,320,525 1,205,377
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32. B &

£309

Wi e 4 g
WP -

R T

T

BA

FITER
R 178,700 259,860 153,400 157,400
m R 432,597 453,420 244,200 403,500
611,297 713,280 397,600 560,900
Hifg &
EBERE (KMita) - 2,521,982 - 2,521,982
EEHEERS (HiEh) 4,565,617 4,532,106 - -
AR R (M iEe) 1,320,525 1,205,377 1,320,525 1,205,377
BITEREEGEE 6,497,439 8,972,745 1,718,125 4,288,259
B E A E &R (MsEd) 8,379 108 - -
BEEER 6,505,818 8,972,853 1,718,125 4,288,259
AR RABZENRS (495,247) (532,888) (397,600) (405,700)
6,010,571 8,439,965 1,320,525 3,882,559

(a)

—E2RRFLAT A ARABTACHEABE 254424000 TR BB ANENAZ-+—
BEMMAEMATRAMNEZERLRE  FAKNBRITREGROHMEGBIAFZHIARE - H2F
ZARE—A+HAB -  BE2INBS000TTEERYBEBACRESITIGRY  SZBTHEHA
TERRENAZA+-BEE-ZFZRN\FAAZTH  EBMNRLRBETEFNREF6E - B
EEREFIAZH R - AEHEEH B TEBK172435000 t ER BB S MBS FI 88
3,401,0007C ©

ZEREFEFTANR  ALTRER237IB50TTEEEIHEEART —HIGE B
- FALFEABRRAEEEBRBEFE 2 XS BHI50% (BN % 1,320,289,6807C ) B A 4 7]
156,804,000 R B EEEWOIOLZHE  BRBTHEAERSQZ T RURSHEEASH
e _BEL+F+—A-++H EBRREBRTFLER MAZEEC2HENRTHAETELE
ﬁo

109 samsamaRLF



mEMBHRERME

31. 4 ()

N

R-_SEtE—H—H 11,456,959 235239 70 36,927 263977 11,9317
BOHR 5,167,851 - - - - 5,167,851
BRERTEERTRG 45,160 - - (8,165) - 36,995
AEEER - - - - (25,886) (25,886)
R-8Q+E+-HA=+-8 16,669,970 235,239 70 28,762 238091 17,172,132
R-82,%-R—-A 11,435,004 235,239 70 35,561 332,540 12,038,414
DREBAEREEORG 21,955 - - {3,883 - 18,072
BRECTR - - - 5,661 - 5,661
BREXY - - - [3p)) 42 -
KFEBEA - - - - (68,975) {68,975)
R-BEAF+=-A=+-8 11,456,959 235,239 70 36,927 263977 11,993172

AABHESER FPHREZHEEBESE238.001,000T( B4 : #%263977,0000T) ©

2007 108




%
|
BRERE 2REGHK

i AMTR  ARIR
L
RZESEF-A—-8 | 11456959 4395 10 47401 118,133 36,927 52402 1,587,229 13,303,187
EXZH - - - - - - 47,995 - 47,995
HYHeRATHEYE - - - {61,802) - - - - {61,802)
BIHR (ML) 5,167,851 - - - - - - - 5167851
BRERGAEREORG 45,160 - - - - {8,165) - - 36,995
FEYRALTFELD - - - - (14,938) . - - {14,938)
XEEER - - - - - - - (466,200)  (466,200)
RZ-89tE

+-8=+-8 16,669,970 4,395 70 {18,720} 103,195 1,762 100,337 1,121,029 18,013,088
BR-2E~E-R-0 13435004 4,395 70 - (3,871) 37,561 11874 3118363  14,6033%
EXZE - - - - - - 40,528 - 40,528
HABERDTERY - - - 4107 - - - - 4101
ARERTERBARA 21,955 - - - - {3,883 - - 18,072
ZRELTA - - - - - 3,661 - - 3,661
RRREER - - - - - {412) - a12 -
FEHERACTRRY - - - - 122,004 - - - 122,004
RERER - - - - - - - {1531,548)  (1,531,546)
R-BEAE

+-A=+-A 1,456,359 4395 70 470m2 118,133 36,927 52402 1587229 13,303,187

(@ RERPIEENER  —MAREAE 88 1%ER T HBR T (ORPIERR TN RHER
L) EREBBEEHBLI0BAETHEE EEARARBEIESTREHB R ARA
25% 2 KFRI - BEHBRAVRRERRAFE AR Ll &% - 5%45549,0007 (ZFEA
F @) ZRERSEERE BTTSRTHBAABRN -

b —BELFARTROOKGHEELIEERMD TR A A% 99,000,000 -
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30. AR REST B ()
© MARITE 2 R E

e MBRREE

mad BREDSE

iy 25 B —28+tE L EANE
HE

—hANREEARA=1+HBE

—E2E2ZNERATAB 0.5333 2,500,000 2,500,000
ZEREE+-_FZ+HE

—Z2TAE+-_A=-+AhA 0.5216 3,400,000 3,400,000
“RENFE=A—HBZE

IR—=F-A=+NE 0.5140 3,980,000 4,280,000
—EZ2RF+A=+tz=8ZE

—B-—F+/=+—8 4.5900 14,200,000 13,200,000
“RERFEF+AZFZRE

—EB-—F+/=-+—8 4.5800 2,860,000 3,290,000
BERRMAL

—RAAFRAZFTAEE

—EENFRnARATAE 0.5333 - 400,000
—EZREE+_AZ+HE

—BREAF+_ARZ=-TANB 0.5216 - 228,000
—EEME=A—HE

—E2-ZF#=-R=+ANAR 0.5140 - 280,000
ZERERF+AZ-+ZBZE

—2——%+A=+—8 4.59500 9,400,000 16,250,000
—ERRERE+AZGZBE

—B2——%+A=-+-—8 4.5900 1,878,000 3,724,000

38,218,000 47,552,000
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30. B RESTE (&)
(@) 2Tl BRLHE

e =4 Y=g
—E2R+F-HR 4.5900 840,000
—EE2LH¥—HA 0.5333 270,000
—EEtLFE—R 0.5216 228,000
—ZF+¥F—HA 0.5140 242,000
2R ¥R 4.5900 834,000
—ERrF= A 4.5900 110,000
—EE+FNAA 4.5900 104,000
—Z®¥t¥hAR 45900 2,992,000
—EBRLERA 4.5900 554,000
—Z2RLFE+LA 4.5900 28,000
—BE2+FNAR 4.5900 257,000
ZE2F+HENR 0.5140 38,000
—ZBRtLFANA 4.5900 618,000
—ERLFE4AR 45900 138,000
ZE2®tEFE+—-R 4.5900 915,000
ZE2FEL¥+TZHR 4.5900 736,000
—BERt+F+=HA 0.5333 130,000
—EE+FE+ A 0.5140 300,000

9,334,000

(b) KB ZBHAE

ksl il HREAE
HERE P

—B2E¥RF+AE-+-_EBE
—2——F+A=-+—H 4.5900 - 400,000

—BEXF+A-GZBE
~E——F+A=-+—H 4.5900 - 418,000
- 818,000
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REMBBRRHE

30. AR EFE

FRAAT Y ZREHE  AIRBALREARRREEETFEEZAR - ARRIR-BEF
AAZ+HAFEGRATARETE CREERAREHBFETZREENABE - REHE - BRE
BUSTALRNSHEBBRAAZEE RRITHRABSNES - SRRLZEREHRNER1.00L
EBREBE - EFTEATIARRARBEZEROZ SR  EXRENTHERREER L QBENT
7 o

AEFEMATEZRRERZSNT

—eTts R

= 47,552,000 53,908,000
DIT{E 7 A8 (FisEa) {9,334,000) (5,538,000)
K7 BRE (i) — (818,000)
TR (M iEc) 38,218,000 47,552,000
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29. B &

@ﬂﬁﬁ

081 Obr]
l ZERm BEERR
EE
ROBEERFET_A=1+—8 6,888,000,000 688,800
¥ (H ) 2,112,000,000 211,200
R-g®8+tE¥+=-B=+-—8H 9,000,000,000 900,000
BITRER
W_BEZETRF+_-_H=+—H 3,290,579,361 329,058
WERERITERETRG 5,538,000 554
RIEEXF+_A=Z+—8 3,296,117.361 329,612
LT (T EED) 630,188,000 63,019
AREEITEREITRS 9,334,000 933
R-BEBtE+=-B=+—8 3,935,639,361 393,564

@ Z—ZTETLFT—FEZ+—B ARERREIEIT2,112,000000 R EEERI0LZTE
#55% F Bg 28 75 % 688,800,000 7T 12 41 & 7 # 900,000,000 7T © 5 £A9,000,000,000 % & ik @ E 5%

010zl - HREARLABRAPEREZTEONSEITAOAGRISESR -

) —ETELFE+H-+RE  ARARBILE=FEIT150,000,000 SR EEEEO 0T ZH
B EREHTEBERSRIL  LLERIES S HE%1,287,000,0005T - #1TR G S RNEFEHR
AR EEREEY  RERE  WHEHHBBURE —KBBESHTE -

ZEFLFT-AZ+T+8  RAwE R ARSE S Permira IVE17323,384,0005 B AR A B ¥
QIO HlE  SRBETEERSNRT  LEBBESARXBEN2723,0000007T BB @ A7
HETEEBRAS$IEA50% R ELFLE » BlIAE#1,320,000,0007T & 48 & 71 156,804,000 8 & A% @
BEE¥OIOTZEHR SRETEAEYESA2T - BTROMBSAEFERBERHESEZEH
R URTER O KRBBEUR-RBEESHS LR HAE¥1,32000000THEELS

B #150% °
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REMBBMRHE

28. B & R 1T & &k
BITREFRS 1,339,154 1,625,187 438 -
EHETER 6,891,208 4,158,010 4,548,284 1,853,249
8,230,362 5,783,197 4,548,722 1,853,249

FE@MBALAYESERFTESSD B A %1,934,000,0007T ( Z B FNFE - #%3,325000,0007T)
J %1 577,000,000 75 (= BB A F ¢ #%1,577,000,0007) « TRV T XM ERGROAERERE

EHE ZTRBEHAREEAE -

FEEMZRERETEBEASBUATIERHIE

B

il 5,587,741 2,302,649 2,647,691 -
ET 2,264,440 3,337,890 1,901,031 1,853,249
R 306,976 73,385 - -
AR% 71,205 69,272 - -

8,230,362 5,783,197 4,548,722 1,853,249

HeRRTESZTEMNRAIN%B(ZFTERF - 47%)

—t+mxX) -

MEHHABR=ZTAR(ZREARF -
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26. FEly (M) HE R BB RE

FE W A R I TR BUR (M & a)

339,168

174,053

FE {3t [R) $ 6 7F 8 30 0R (BT 5 b)

(2.177)

{294)

(a) AHAEM187,226,000T (= BB 34,483,000 ) 7 B 1 & B B %5 648,000T (=
BRNFE - BMSE8000T) ABER  RENZTBANRHBENERMEFNME - LHER
TEEER 2R ERBEEBTERNE - BRRERAERIE -

by BEXREBER 2ERBETENH -

27. H R &

£

—BELE
werr N

EBLMZBREAES  BHHE 57,768 29,636
fTHEE@MIA  LTIRAFZFBAGE - 9,605
57,768 39,241
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REMBHRERNE

25. B RANRK (H)

(a)

(b)

{©

(8)

AEEyENERSIEEE S A Y B N354343,000C (ZEEANE - B%302,826,0007T) 2
REEBEWRR - FESESSEN262,231,000 (ZFEFNF © % 201,564,00070) 2 BUK
EEEHRENARIN FAERYEUZSERAZRABBRTIERH SR EERKE
HAZEREHSHOT

s -
s e it
S TR AN Y

BHA -
—EAR 66,566 47,161
—E=@EA 73,867 50,621
ZxBA 63,051 44,656
AEEBE 58,747 59,126

262,231 201,564

Ro-BB+E+-A=+—RB  FEBAEBES44000007E (ZBFF : B ¥50,2880007)
CENEAEREY M IREEH AEOR N EREBEUERETHENSE 2 BERME
EREL:R 3

EWRAZBAEEHEE

B—H—Rz#&& 50,288 52,832
Uy 88 B B 2 A - 100
FERFURERE 3,016 -
FAREEEXKE 2 BUWR (3,133) {46)
DEEFSAEH - {2,643)
BERE=E 4,229 45
B+ A=+—Hz&& 54,400 50,288

H b BE W BR 3008 #5348,254,000 T ( ZFE N E - #H%68,193,0007T) X ELAB LA E - MAFIH
fiyig -

BUSRARENR 2B RREBEHREE -
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5. BEWRFR B (E)
(a) EBBUERTEROAHEEEMN - T EERBEDRERZENEEERR - FEHBTHE
ERAMEE AR — BN FINXRENXR METHIRRGEEEZEZHERE -RUNTF
1202180k - L FE R EERB T BHKRT -

FEBZEBRUERANRRERBBERERAHZERESNDT

—BARA 160,066 136,508
—EZ=-{#A 178,714 148,612
mENfEA 118,994 97,840
A AL 158,800 121,430

616,574 504,390

AEEBREREAEHEATIHERIE

AR 398,942 329,594
ik 161,365 129,724
PR 56,267 45,072

616,574 504,390
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FEMBHRHE

2. 78
s A
BEF
BREMHE

AR R 33,019 31,720
BEITEDORE 8,485 13,527
AR 7,118 6.599
B 14,767 24,116
HES 14,770 6,766
78,159 82,728

R g
g 6,462 8,769
HE 2,052 1,521
HER 3,776 1,504
12,290 11,794
90,449 94,522

25. BRI REAMSR

EREBERRMEG RS (HEa) 616,574 504,390 - -
H o fE R (Fi kb)) 348,254 68,193 21,138 1,245
FE UGB & AR 38 (Bl sEc) 5,166 183 - -
it 32,948 72,620 240 568
EUREEERZBEHES 36,394 43,699 - -

1,039,336 689,085 21,378 1,813

200743 98




. HMWFERBEE (@)
(b) B EEHER

“ETLE R

Eefr
At g k] 204,435 250,860
FEHREE WA (30,603) (38,609)
173,832 212,251
HARDEEZHBHRS (36,394) (43,699)
137,438 168,552
MEBEAN T EFWE :
BE (A RAER

R

—ER 36,394 43,699 50,709 57,844
E—ZERF 121,685 166,245 137,550 190,592
HAELF 15,753 2,307 16,176 2,424

173,832 212,251 204,435 250,860

(c}

ELRBERAEBTAREENR BROAARBHIEEFER  TUERDHEHERE - EHS
HBREE-F % BERRZAPHBSESHFARBBERAR -

R-BZELF+ZAZ+—8 - ZRERBITHEREMES0,000000 T HiEBEARRREETER
FERATREZAR -RITREREANE Y2900 2R A2 +FEMA—B
HEHGHEEREORE P FZAZ+—RB(UARREZAL)  ZEFERLUCBFAHM
ATRAN BELARBRRETALEZEZRREHEE -

RZBZXRFTZA=+—H0  ZRHIBITFRAEN 259,000,000 HEFRIESERLREAREE
FRETREZAR -RITBRELEBRAEE4850000 T2 HFE  E_FT+F-A-+—
HER ZERRURFABRIASEA BERLBARTEARBZEZZRANEE - LEE
REREEMIE AR EETS.000,000T 2 BREHERZERF -

SRHRAERUBARBII%(ZBREAE : 386%) - FHHWAA - TEXR(ZFETA
f£:=+=K)o
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REVBRERHE

23 HiwkRiBERE
BET T A
ERBIEE (Kiska) 256,257 284,932
FEmERE R (fiEb) 137,438 168,552
IR 3E ST

ABRXLEHA 51,538 68,574
TRAOWEBEHR 15,867 10,930
HNELAHBER 83,675 105,880
iF AE U R (BT EEe) 4,827 6,604
ZREHBITER (B Ed) 50,000 259,153
599,602 904,625

(@ ERDIKE
- 3 o - 3 e
BE TR R
ELEHERE  ELOTEE 123,256 151,931
EHETHEARABR 133,001 133,001
256,257 284,932

ETPREQABRABER LEREREERY - ZEBRUERERES -
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21.

22,

95

BEnw(K|)

@ FHEEMEEBRELTZAEE AMREEBROT

ERBEE 7,211 -
REAE 12,385 730
nEhaf (4,700) —
ERBA N (14,166) -
730 730
i A 5,929 -
& (5.929) -
B B At F - _

(b B D AFEBEINH T4 () -

fTEEmIA
. %Q%

—zzts [N
7 BET R % B
HAHARSRHATIEEBEHRSH 1,155 47,072
HEBESREARAFEETXEEEREY (8,673) -
AHREREESTER o (M & 320 (468,858) (573,109)
(477.531) (573,109)

TIEREHANMNETAS E H600,000,000E 5w (ZBE5E - 600,000,000 7T) °

RZBELET _AZ+T—B BEMENFITHEIASU%TE(ZBENE 1 947%E
0495%) - TEEZHHEZAFERITRAERELRIPTRALEFLE - R _FTB+E+-_/=+—8 -
RN EERPENNENPEZAYEPMERES (ME3) SEAR N EBXRAEHBER 2B ([

F32) .

RAREEMERDE



20 HEEHER (H)

21.

(a) HAEMEEEHFAZHTR2AE ARRRAESRRSOT :

REMBHERME

ERMEE 814,795 441,948
BN E E 443,256 380,915
REBaE (238,249) {159,690)
nBafE (513.609) {(276,653)
506,193 386,520
WA 469,028 462,691
il (462,866) (430,717)
B B AT A F 6,162 31,974

b BEERAYEHERER/HEEFEFEANE ZARTHHEFHERANE40) -

B & al
£ 730 21,346
Hig#E - 730
FE (G 34

BB RTEs 18 - (612)
HEBTHMEB LA - {20,734)
R 730 730
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19.

20.

93

i 8 2 =)

T

L

FELWHRE - BKAE 1 1
FE W Bt BB 2 R 3R IR 14,831,229 14,973,752
FE W Bt B8 2 Bl B K 381,208 544,508
FE 15 M BB & R SR - (172,955)

RUEENFAREER EREETERY -

FEURERBBER  ARBERZTEMNRERME  LEEEFERY -

TEERAHEHERAR REAEREREARE 2B R FBE R M H E44() o

HEEHESR
=22t [N
BT R
£ 386,520 279,432
WixE 110,984 63,880
FEIE%E
fe 81 A 4 & 6,162 31,974
i IH (6,110) {2,351)
Az 8 (21,504) {6,565)
EEEHES 30,141 20,150
FER 506,193 386,520
RITISEE @A R AT




REMBBRE

BRDEBAEEANEERARRES S HES ZRSELERUTUSE - FEHSHABEN
28,524,0007T (= BB/ F : % 28,524,0007C) & i % 4,490,000 7T ( Z BB ARHF - #%4,490,0007T)
2ER THOUNSEERMALEEZBEMESS EBERZTKEESRNEREREEANH -
HEERBEMBZEIBEBSDUEAN S B2 ERERTARZFEEHERE -

18. BILE E
=
5L EEER e A
=E:- .;5“ T {é} o B I__E- ‘.:i.( S * 8 _:5‘:5 LA

KR

R-BEXFE4+_-_A=+—8 33,014 16,887,329 18,201 16,938,544

o — — 4,268 4,268

i - - (2) 2)

R-BEL+E+_FZ+-—8 33,014 16,887,329 22,467 16,942,810

EHEH

R-ZBEANF+-_A=+—H - 1,416,851 1,207 1,418,058

EEEEH - 998,360 5,728 1,004,088

it & - - (1 M

W_ET+F4+_-_RA=1+—H - 2,415,211 6,934 2,422,145

BREFE

R-gg2tE+=-A=+-—8 33,014 14,472,118 15,533 14,520,665
R-BEXFE+S+_-_B=+—H 33,014 15,470,478 16,994 15,520,486

w0075® 92




16.

17.

91

REAYF

N l]
F1

ATERH

FX

62,500

REMEDRBTHFER TFHERAEETERS

LHETEFEREDEZGE-

BUEEREMASHAEFGHEMAR 2 FHE

HEetwfpthERAE
? :

FEHEREmEE 1,621,917 1,638,620
ER=H 240 121
byl 104 22,463
#iE (41,484) (39,287)
FREmRZE 1,580,777 1,621,917
XA 1{E 1,766,277 1,765,933
RIEH (185,500) (144,016)
R R E 1,580,777 1,621,917
+EER+EHRAH

sl 1,344,091 1,378,510

FiE 233,503 240,462

R A 3,183 2,945

1,580,777 1,621,917

EEAROFEARERE 2221730000 (ZBENE  B%216978000) 2 HEL 2 BB IERET

fe Bz i (BT EE32) »

MRS EEER R F




15. & - S Rk h

GEMBBRRME

=3

! HIR @R WERGR

? RN 25(3 R isﬁgﬁ“ BERTE g
A E
R-EE E+-F=+-H 1,694,939 53,251 1,246,604 866,015 798305 4,659,114
ERER 2933 6 19,608 12,788 - 35,335
byl 173,268 4,989 38,964 42,939 992176 1,252,336
LB 376 {1,434) (60,395) 61,453 - -
HERB DA (5,294} - {51,719) (1,341) - (58,354)
HE {2,358) (2,253) {43,977) (21,763) - {70,347)
B-EZTLE+_-HR=+-—H 1,863,868 54559 1,149,085 960,001 1,790,481 5,818,084
AEHEREE
RS E+-RA=+-18 21,652 35,368 511,403 208,187 - 776,610
EAEE 488 100 8,872 8,823 - 18,283
XEEEH 57,280 6,697 99,430 164,873 - 328,280
it & i B 22 5] (2,498) - (9,156) (983) - (12,6370
& (986) (706) (38,461 (10,043) - (51,096)
BE 13,781 1,863 11,585 228 - 27,457
R-EZ+tFE+-_A=+—-8 89,717 43,322 583,673 370,185 - 1,086,897
REEH
R-88+E+-A=+-8 1,774,151 11,237 565,412 589,906 1,790,481 4,731,187
A (B
R-Z2E2n%E+-A=1+-1° M,773 34,778 726,144 274,274 752,306 1,829,275
EHER 1,751 81 11,609 7,575 - 21,016
R B R R - - 6,922 1,398 - 8.320
B 23,644 9,051 55,473 595139 2,142,245 2,825,552
g 1,628,168 9638 458 440 - (2,096,246) -
i (397) (297) {11,984) (12,371) - {25,049)
R-_EEFRFE+-_A=+—-F 1,694,939 53,251 1,246,604 866,015 798,305 4,659,114
AmYERAE
R-ZEZEF+-R=t+-H 7,736 26,102 455,177 152,597 - 641,612
EHEH 253 36 4,693 4,094 - 9,076
FEESR 13,722 9,275 59,707 61,788 - 144,493
HE (59) {46) {8,958) (10,292) - (19,355)
HE - - 784 - - 784
R-BERE+-A=+-1° 21,652 35,368 511,403 208,187 - 776,610
R 18 5
R-ZEAE+-AZ+—H 1,673,287 17,883 735,201 657,828 798305 3,882,504

(a) HWFESESH -

FERRE SERBRAE

b HEREHEHEORBLRHEESEREEN77020007T (ZFF/RF  BHI127,000T)

© FTEEA ARERE-BERFAERNTIRATHMESZEERBESEI10412000T(ZFFAF  BE
72,060000T) L EHEHSENZBHR(ZSRAE  BY26,340,00) CFARLEANAEREEN - FH

BARERAIA%(ZFFAF 1596%) PREREESZERZEMEEREK -
00725 90



1N2.BRRELER

BREEEEEDEARYBEBREFER - B E%258860007T ( ZFR/SF - 4 %68,975,000
TT) e

13.8RE18

EREAEBDERR R LS BEK466,2000007L (Z B2 NF | BHiEAE%1,531.546000T) BE
REBWITAR D 2 MM F 1981 3,373,065,02208 ( Z BT 7<4F | 3,293,135,44008 ) 5T 8 o

TERLFRIRRRF L ERBEFEASRORELRESE BERTERREZTERTRR
FENBATREBREREREILE -

14. BB

EERRBAN R E PR F T A=+ —HUSFETERIMARE(ZFFT AT  #) -

89 HUMLNBERAT




REMBRRHE

11. B 18
AEFEHE
HERAER 7.660 708
oh B A FR R IR 11,965 1,932
R IR E R 3,635 4,029
iR A 1E 2,912 (821)

26,172 5,848

BRNGHNEREANGEB 2 TARREREREBAFEAH BRBEAINKI7S%(ZFEX
175% ) BLEERR - BEELMIERFENRAPEBRZATHEAEHEL ZERBBNER -

AREFBRABRCRARENENR= (T REER OB ZEAMBZNETFHE) MetH 212

WHRER  FHEOT -
:ggt$ E ;}‘,f\\f's?
B F R 537 -

B B AT B B (476,061) (1,525,662)
FE{G BRI R B8
H[E] 4 &) 7 88 (52) {29,623)
d N - 612

(476,113) (1,554,673)

REABEZHERA 73,925 198,149
MEmez WA 527 1,769
ERERZ WA 20,607 7,638
BaeBmzar, (B8 97,881 (33,654)
ARz (163,216) (145,778)
FRAMFAERAZHEBR 1,257 6,866
RERBCHERER {56,653) (40,556)
HEZEHTE (500} (282)
BRE L (26,172) (5,848)
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0. EEEMS (&)

(© BARBFEE (H)
AEMRTBAMHEELEBMETRASHNS BRI - Bt ZREFRI0%E
2BEHE (BT EANRIAETNE) - §AARSH B ERER « B LSRR AR -
AEMPEESHEA L RARTMBREER A -

RAFTEERBGRAMBRZERKENASHAS ERAEBYHERHB ZERAEE
43,298,000 ( ZFB/RNF : #%29,356,0007T) - MB R Rz HEES27571,000 Tt (Z B2 X
F o EE1,119,0007T) - FEE%1,380,00070 (- FB/NF ¢ 292,000 ) REKTTBENR
KEAEK -

(d) sRAxHE
REARFAZBREHNHURTEFREE 2RREAEARSRREZATH  REBEH
B EREZERBMNS -

10. M B8R A

o
S

N
R
. e

8 F
AEARTFEHNEZEHEBEZAERERRE - 276,340
AR AFAN2BEEZBRREREERERER 493,842 206,393
| HRAEAEZYEE>FEFERE 123,141 140,781
| BRAFAZEEREZIARARRE 111,630 5,464
' RETERBEX 35,792 31,795
ARAFTAZYEEE REHARR 1,227 56
EBREBEP 2 ITESBATEESD (105,924) (67,818)
BTN EREHRERA (14,174) (11,626)
H il {8 ;A A 15,981 12,901
661,515 594,286
EREBEEEFR(LESE (104,120) (72,060)
557,395 522,226
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9.

REeWBHRRHE

TEEEME (#)
by EEEEMEAL

FEEHERTEEEMEATTFEEREB(ZBFNF: —R)EF  EMETEEMEQ@TF
i A= (ZFTXRF - NB)ALZMEET

L T R

FR
H

HEREMMNG 12,915 21,380
BB T 4T 2,188 3,194
BIKEH 476 675

15,579 25,249
HHEALZEIS@ARNET

CHEAR
%4 000,001 70 2 5 #54,500,000 7T — 2
7 #.4 500,001 7T = # % 5,000,000 7T 2 —
5 %5 500,001 7T = 7 6,000,000 T 1 -
%6 000,001 7T = # ¥ 6,500,000 7T - 1
# #10,500,001 7T Z # % 11,000,000 7T - 1
3 4

IRKAE FIEH &

FEERTERBZENAT  AESHBHMLEE (REDFIER  H#IRARXREBZEA
ABRARS% - lih REABREER - REBHRA —FEIBERA DGO IETH
REF -HBRUFHENS MEECEZAREHAAEMELZE  ALEEAAHHE
W EREAENRARRZER - U EERBUIEEEGCER  THARHEEESRARBR -

AEBENAEFSENEREN HEHHRREUELHE - RAIBTEAERTIHAARE
EEZBURREARIKAUMAER - FEBEREES AWK BIFLFEMAK -

20078 86




9. EEEME

(@) EEB®
HEAT 16 R

B HEER AR
HTES
BEME+ 100 3,150 3,000 158 - 6,408 3527
REFEELE 127 11,550 3,000 577 - 15,254 12,067
BR e 80 2,587 - 100 - 2,767 2,692
hEmEL 80 2288 610 205 - 3,183 1712
Biliy 80 789 172 38 - 1,079 1,061
BR8mit 80 - - - - 80 268

547 20,364 6,782 1,078 - 28,111 22,327
FUTES
FRWEL 217 - - - - 217 298
BRERE 160 - -~ - - 160 254
ELELE 160 - - - - 160 278
ElfEL 117 - - - - 117 198
ERERE - 98 - - - 98 -
Martin Clarkef £ - - - - - - -
Guido Paolo Gamucci

itad - - - - - - -

654 58 - - - 752 1,028
s 3 - 23 Hs 1,201 20,462 6,782 1,078 - 29,523
_SENFES 1,080 16,406 304 1017 1,548 23,355

CERRHFENNIBBRANKETRNF I RBEN -

85 @RANSEMERLT




REMBERRME

8. HERAK Rt WM ARKERA (BH) (&)

BHY
(0 LEEN " (BSE)ENRTIEE
il 328,280 144,493
8
152 998,360 998,089
BREH 5,728 1,135
ERELER 15,057 16,475
HELBEER 20,609 15,050
BRELOESEH 3,105 1,959
HE T A 1 e A (B eki) 41,484 12,938
EEHERS
TH RER 81,169 49,166
PR BS b 5% 1,738 3,900
BB 4,790 5,916
HEWE HBERSBEZES 1,229 119
HEMH B AR 2 B8 (3E37) 2,337 -
BIRAE  BEEFME (FE) 1,406,263 947,069
ERBTERE 4,569 4,237
ME B REERE 27,457 784
ENEZERRE 3,016 -
REMELATFHET - 500
RAEWMELE 518 660
ZEAMB S
ZE R
TEEEHE 7,525 7,643
LEEBEHETE 54 1,375
% BB G
FEERE 2,501 476
FEERETR 77 78
() —BRRrEERAEYHE AL ERRIBHBERERL(ZFRAF  #%26349,0007T) ©

i ZRFEFEINETERERBREIL(ZFFAEFE  BEI6L000T) RERDIAECREEREESEESF
192,210,000 (ZBF/NF - H¥48,559,0007T) A A{LEFBR -
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8. HEMZEZ HHEWARKERN (BR)

o o - E3
A

(@ HEMAX
FRFABRZANSIEERERES 4,439,215 1,289,236
PAARNES KRR 4,207,442 1,240,210
EEFEMRE 1,306,974 1,106,659
HMEERA 1,429,841 619,117
11,383,472 4,255,222

by HilA
& WA 3,792 9,286

B M A
RITER 219,281 156,578
183K P H G 5 7T 88 (P 3E26a) 5,409 2,073
BRTHELT - 3,371
i RE JE UK (B 32 23¢) 719 797
RKEBEEBZITREA 30,089 16,864
FELTEREREKA 11,973 9,229
LTHiRAEREWA 1,223 349
it EE SR R RER KR 68,429 3,883
HESOERREHTRWES 28,863 -
HEIERENITE k2% 1,736 —
REEERAF 14,514 11,441
i H s 1,146 9,417
H fth 28,558 39,037
415,732 262,325
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GEMBERRWE

Wzt (&)

ETHTREZGRESKBUTLRBERHOURTENBROT

BEY N

S E 1,730,121 2,732,614
PR EE WA 11,242 22,820
Fleal A 9,527 18,085
1,750,890 2,773,519

SEHNF

MBRMAENZANOERNEEERES (698,314) (1,101,141)
2PN ANFEES BER (615,260) {(1,042,232)
& 8 T H (292,793) (328,559)
Hitt&EEA (84,770) (73,065)
1,691,137) (2,544,997)

MEELSEENEM 59,753 228,522
REXEFGES, (ME&28E) 19,213 (61,465)
4 [ FE (5 5 B SR 78,966 167,057

2007 8
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7.

81

i &

BHEEREERENH BERBRBEEREBNERR -

R
BEMEHEE 1,554,212 1,280,728
WREE R
R EN 11,135,284 3,186,893
B S () 78,966 167,057
N YA 33,276 19,692
BIEEK
ERmEE 139,519 10,739
BYMRER 37,835 3,924
H b 56,347 462
13,035,439 4,669,495

fitt: REARE THRTRASAIREB((ETHTREVRES DAFSEATLETRRUBHR)) - BRFHASF
REAMFINTRERM(TERMABRF DT INEBERESR EE_F_—_FXAE&K -

REGE ETREHER((EFHEADERAAETHMRASRENEBEHEEER SARERTHRR
TRESHEKNMETS - L4 RERER TR R FREEM AR Y 2 BNEL B AT RERM
FEMBEHAEN PRFEAAGEIAETHERTRER - ACAMBREDERBEEZRIFTEETR
HE-NRARMBRAXC2EIMEHRLGHRIIE HBBR R E3BRRGHNEARZUWAERMEEN
MEERTHRAZERBREHERFASE -

FEEEFANEHBATREXFEEBAEFZAREOERE FEETEDPRAGREB I UREREZR

HEFRZRELBEBHAROAMBAIGZBIBZHREE R THER - UERXEBERNEZBTA -
o ETRTHRAAREBERL LM MBARERTHAES  YARNFAMBERABERLATEERS -

RIMREERMARLQA



GEMBBRRME

6. 7EEMN(HE)

(a)

ERBRoEHER (F)

MERRS

BETR

H-—g28+H#+=-K=+—H
PHEE 20,593,125 1,855,623 8,805,520 31,254,268
HEEHTER (2.595) 508,788 - 506,193
iR /N - 730 - 730
BEE 31,761,191
SHEE 3,153,545 586,592 9,082,611 12,822,748

RZBERE+ZA=+—H

PHEE 20,403,330 1,782,149 6,636,269 28,821,748
HEEHTH (2,769) 389,289 - 386,520
R NG] — 730 - 730
BEE 29,208,998
SBaE 2,907,093 539,522 11,638,884 15,085,499

BE-SRtFE+=-R=+-HLEE

P 11,756,085 1,238,195 24,698,271
& 686,311 9,592 5,694,789
& B A 593,043 22,153 1,368,131

13,035,439 1,269,940 31,761,191

BE-_ZRXFE+-_A=+—B8ILtEFEE

bR 3,620,336 2,796,186 25,077,008
& 516,380 30,515 2,860,182
B A 532,779 22,029 1,271,808

4,669,495 2,848,730 29,208,998
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6.

79

TRHEFR (H)
(@) XIEHWERN ()

BE-—BRXF+_A=+—-BILEE
e 25 3,388,767 1,280,728 — 4,669,495
B (R, /HA (HEE) (1,187,893) 52,512 102,934 (1,032,447)
BEEAR (522,226)
FE {588 | 85 18

HE TS (2,803) 32,426 - 29,623

/N - 612) - (612)
BEriAR (1,525,662)
g {5,848)
KEEER (1,531,510)
BEAR (2,773,738) (69,533) (5,459)  (2,848,730)
e (60,570) (82,729) {1,194) (144,493)
BH (1,007,187 (38,459) - {1,045,645)
BB ARE - - (4,237) (4,237)
ME - BELRERE - (784) - (784)

fit: WERRRE S RAN BT RS RS REREERRESHFELEZANIRAIAESR

267,868,000 7T °

R BLEMTR LA




RE MR R

5 Mgt ERAN ()

(@) FTie#
AEHARERE BFETEARSARR EHEFAEEEZRHN o HRABRAER  FRELE
AHE - E—REKBEDP  AFZRINGETSENRBBUBHAETEETHEN - FRE
BREHECTRESMBIIERAGES  WEEHBEBREZAHE NHESFEHNEERBERR
RENCENERTR  WEEERPEFLILSEFVBRERNERHARTRERE -

6. ZHEHR

RELAREARUBRERBERE FTESBBEUXBLIBE2N MEIBARESH -5
BEELTEZEHRDE #BSREH REDX EBEELHNIHEME BERE HtIFADHE
E-FH BUEARBRMAE REETFRE1RE  TEERIA  HEARARRERBITEE -
THARIERBEECNER EAXABRARER IETLEREREBE -MEBSBZELEGER
HEXHEHRH -

(@ XBoEAEM

B i v 5
: BWTR
BE_@88tE+-H=+—-HLEE
I 2% 11,481,227 1,554,212 - 13,035,439
B (EE) /#8R () (203,059) 74,898 209,443 81,282
HEER (557,395)
JE 18 48 RS 18
HEZHESR 174 (122) - 52
BrRaiEsE © (476,061)
BIE (26,172)
KEFEE (502,233)
=gk {1,233,343) (32,413) (4,184)  (1,269,940)
e (248,491) (77,331) (2,458) (328,280)
i | (1,038,612) (45,731) - (1,084,343)
EmBIEERNE - - (4,569) {4,569)
M BRELERE - (27,457) - (27,457)
ENERERRE - (3.016) - (3.016)

BIEE : MR RRR RNy SRR 5 R R B2 P A 5E %5 22,199,000 7T -
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5. BMRBEStEERHE

77

BEAUFGRBES  ARERBUEEREEMER  2RAHERESERR THAEELR
ZEN - HAFEZEFEEMABSAETTE FRERARERGETNRE  mATHZ &5
EHERERIBARRE - R T - HUBRIRAREEARRRUADEAER AU REBEEERE
ZEHEEBRRAFROT

(a)

185 W FR Rl (B
BREERERERISER BB ATH DEAGKSAAFR (MATHEHB)RARE
B - M REENR  AREDRBEAEEETAR  UFTRBETHEZAREE - AR
RAETDAARRERZGR  EBERIZ2BR FEBERENARLEARARARDH 2 G5 R
HAE o

MxE - BBRREZATHER
EREHTAYE ABR[EIGHHARFRENSHEE - HARFREAXNGEH TR - 8§
EEGEHAEER ANCERER R EIRENFABEAER YRR -

AL ESREERE
PHAEERTBEAZSMTIAZATE  HERGEEET - ARERLAY - HRSES
% WEERBEELHAZTRFUER - ATEFEREHRASLHEELBNREHS
WEEEEMINFRBSRR - FEEEATUREZATFAERARAZEMEERE
EmERERLGHARE -

TETRIAQFE
MESRIAZATESERISEME AR ETNRERT  CHERAKE FERZ
BREIFAGBHAMHZTIBER -

B
AEMBEOBSEBHBRITRRER - ERERBEARRAERIHEE - BEHRTRR
B BREE ZEHESERIRZBR IO RERFHESR 2 FNERERR
FRE HERBZHHEMBH -

VARG (3 R 2 3
BHZRABRBZLOTH HBVEXAEMBBEHAAYN  RRETH ERERRFEER
BRFE TRECFAFHSEEREIEE  —RARREARLBZOTFEZBERY -

MASRERFRAA



4.2

4.3

REMBEMRME

4. HHEREE(HA)

BERERER

ARBEREANBEARBALERBEENGED  UWERFISHEABRTRATHRRAE
HIERFTAEARENE  IRFSENEAEBUREAERET - ARFABBETRER =
CHGEDFHRERE  BEANMSHENERGEEFELNASRRRT AR  CREH
TEARFAMBRB|ATEEDHES  AEHETTBEBARIRCORE  ARREEES
BOTMBRREEEENRERSE -

ABBAURAABHRERELA L ERABBERUBEERRERRTEHRIH - AR
FERRBEE ORGECEEAMRAEINIRDRERDERDARERRITERTE -

CERERLFERCBEAFESI AT -HNEEAGLERMT

o
e M

EHA®E (HE32) (6,505,818) (8,972,853)
o Be kBT (H28) 8,230,362 5,783,197
neg/(AHE)EFR 1,724,544 (3,189,656)
BEERRE RIRITER 23,530,829 23,425,801
HERELR FEA 14%

MTXHE290ERE  —EFLFEENEEARK R THREIRRAFTAHERREETEREUR
BOHMTHNERM -

nFEZ A

EEBENEEANSRIAZATEHRABAEAAMEREIE -FRAKENERHAEEN
THEREAERERMN: MERAGMEETSRNAERTERE -

FEOEAZTEAALERBAERMRELARR  ETHILARREGNES - HAUERAE
RBEARTEGRTIAREN O FEZFE-

REEENATERRFHARARZARBUATB AR BIES -

—ERHHZSHEERAT  EEERER  RERRITES ENEIRADEENEE
HEHEHARE  HRTELCAATH

20076% /6



4. MEARERE (&)

41 MBRBREE (&)
(© RBHESEB (LD
Fxaq

—¥¥t¥+=-A=t+-—-8

W|ITHERK 397,891 - - 397,891
CE:Y -8 - - 1,403,142 1,403,142
TTEERTA - - 468,858 468,858
FE A5 B K B B 5T R R 30,198 - - 30,198

—EEAET+-A=Z+—H

RITER 561,369 - - 561,369
EERE - 2,778,985 - 2,778,985
AMRER - - 1,293,443 1,293,443
T¢I A - - 573,109 573,109
FENERRE B RE 16,555 - - 16,555
FEAT B B 2 BIRIE 172,955 — — 172,955

TREEBRESHINBHRTHRSFAEEN T XERERS
EXEEHMIBENREH TRERTEASHRITRESRR

- ZFAHREER

—R¥%tF+=-R=t+-H

TYHEEHEBEH
P (427,838) (3,144,888) (2,111,548)  (5,684,324)
A 461,248 3,191,248 2,141,661 5,794,157

—EBERRFEFTAR=+-HR

RXHEHRBEH
b (434,031) (434,031} (5268721}  (6,136,783)
A 470,126 470,126 5,337,828 6,278,080
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GEMBERRME

4. MREAREE (F)

41 MBRBEE(R)

(0 RBEALER
RBEeBREFRAAGENRAINNEAZAR - FREREEBRNDRIBAN
TrEELE  HENEEERDAS ERFROERNAE BE HRRAEZRD
MELEH -

SEAARABRATZADEE  ARRAXWZIDARDREAR  BHARES
HEMROARZEARSBR - WO ARUBAERBXEARZADAL TS -

TERAEDRFAAFINCHAMNANISE  ReRAMAMNRTRREREREBAR
ERAAFHEROHZFEEMHIN  YBBEMERESE -

rEX

—8QtE+-A=+-B

BTEX 589,828 3,267 9,157 16,477 518,729
ERERER 461,248 461,248 5,680,423 - 6,602,915
MHRER - - 1,403,142 - 1,403,142
Hfth {5 B 3,990 4,389 - - 8,379
fieeRTA - 60 47741 - 477,531
ERNRAEEGAR 3,523,414 62,921 1,889 313,406 3,901,630

“EEAFTZAZ+-A

BHER 689,955 3,440 9,628 19,561 722,584
TRER - 2,778,985 - - 2,778,985
ERGREE 471,402 471,402 3,155,931 2,990,858 7,089,593
TRARER - - 1,293,443 - 1,293,443
EiESE 108 - - - 108
f1EeRIR - - 573,100 - 573,109
EARRRETRER 3,243,325 5,777 1,848 382,601 3,633,551
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4, HMEEARKRERE (F)
41 EEKREE (E)

73

(a)

mig AR (4

(i} HEEE
AEBRGLABRMBEENEZBY I VEMAZNERR  FHNEBERRY
RERTEENENARERE RORTEARORARE -BHEEOBEHAERE
REETEZRERAMNAERABERAR  BRRITIFNHERTER -

BRAFEREFRERARITHANAGIH IEBEAEAFLEE  HEEEMHEA
MEERGTRABBEREARTENENRDAXE - FEANFERBRECAHBE -
EESREMNEREAEZOAZRESRENRAR RS RUNBREEARE@ A
EaFEMEER -

RZFFLFTAZ+—H  MERERRLAXTROS% - FiBEMRAZTE
FRRBREBERGE MR L EHE305600T(ZFEAF  B%3566000L) £
EHARFEGRMRSANENERM

RZER2L-F+_H=+—B MEGTRERETRESHN R AR T®OS% - i A
HUHETS FRERHREEBBER RIS MNBRI7234000L (ZBERF B
24,347,0007) *

(b) FHERE

FHEEEARG fTE2RTA ANRTEUBHBOTR. TAXEEFNEEA
B, BRAMMANBUERIENEAEZSURARRTNA - RERBTHEBTFAREH
FARRENRTUBAERTEENAR A2 B REQNE-HFARN—BEHFHIEH
MEFREXFERTRAR -FAEMTEHTHREUFEEFNEHLYE  BREEMHE
TARAKEGHLETEANE, - TEHEEERBLTRURARRHABETH
AR  UERAEEERR -

AEEEAMMAEERTNTAREYERHUHEE - B EENBHATRONEERRRE
REBREFRE BBANGEEENLECERFMET  CERREOBANEHAL
BEBRBFALEARANBBEENEL - FEBERETBRICEESUBREREEHER
B o

REARBENMER LT




e MBHRRMEE

4. M¥EREE (E)

41 MHERERBER (&)
(a) HWPAER (L)
(i) MR
ARAEEFEHRAEREESAREAMRST D RARMEE (SN &27) Rk
RBIEE (BHHE36) EFEBARRENTEEAR - BERHEEORS
M LTEHN  FARSREABLIT  FEDTAEARBRER -

AEBMFERLITREIURBERUEANFEE YRIEFIFUTRAUGNE
HEEAMLETERTELRE YR EERDRENHOERE -

ARALTARFTAFSFEMTLEIANABLRAMNAFRE  FLEAEXR
ARRGBEHLHABERBEERRR - AW ERORE - R-BPLEF+THA=Z+—
B ZA&EERAATFTHAGRENTTEAREMAZREABRRR -

MERDABRMER(RETTRRAFHGREEEAMNST) LARTRS%(ZFF
NE5%) AEARETE  TRETFLERIGEERZINNEOEE -

ey .
JG AN
Ea

xS

MAERFNWETELEFS%B( —BBRE  5%)
FAEEmREETE
B F B EF IR M 43,000 42,000

MERABOHETHUS%(—FENEFE :5%)
FFEEMwAZTE
MREESEREY 41,000 42,200
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3.

71

FESTHREHME (H)

330l B 7k
AXRTBRSBENBBEARARKBRLARNRAZEARNECEE 2 HBRAMA - RER
ABBREANTIARE -

MERERkER

FPREMTIEZCRIALEERESRAQEURENR BUESALHE RERBOES - TEHE
TER FRPEALEE HESREMEMNER  BAREALREAREE - ZSSRI AN
BRAEBHEERS FRENGHEZZENMEAR: THERR(REMERAR  FERERBRRE
mEEERR) EHABRLAADEGRAR ErEEEYENAZSARNBRERSAANENS
HABEEFE -

AEESREMNEERIAHMEFARAREZSEROEE - BV ERABANTIERE
HIiT4ERIA -AHEUNERBEALEBAMNCEEUHER RIREEEASRER -

4.1 B R K E &
(a) HHRMR
(i) SERE
AEWEEE - BMETHEAREE RUHEATEZBENELHNERR, IS
TERET ARBMANE HERBITARKRTERS CEREELRBEI
AEMNEEEUNZ EMES BB MES -

SFMERMBREERNEASONTRNEHRENEGHREAR -

R-FFELETZAZ+ -R AR UYBEENERSHUARREBRIERR
FAREREHHRMOTEY P (F20M E320) -

R-ZBELHE+T_A=+—8 WEBRAEETTRILAM% - IEHGE RS
BTE2 TFERHEBEBIEMER L EEAT3,000T (ZFFF + B % 1,548,000
) EERGWTRESHERTEABEBERER  SERI4LIACTFERSES
HSNEWRE BB -

RARLMBEERE DA




GAEMBHERRHEE

3. FESHHERXBE (H)
328 hEEE
AGEEEREOMERERISS HUEERSERENIESERENEB((IEE
VS  BAMBRRABESS - LR LT A RTIREE -
T SEAS SO ERREANEEE BT HAEEXTEEAENH S R AT
BEWH BHNE T RECNERREUR B EHENESAERABUFERERRY
ELAMELBEEESRNER -

REFRXRELTHEINEZ HFEXSREENEL 2R DAL FEREN—HSE5 - R
A HERECEREE A AR -
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